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Shougang Century Holdings Limited (“Shougang Century”;
together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) has
been listed on the Stock Exchange since April 1992.
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under
the direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission) and its
controlled corporations, Bekaert and Li Ka Shing Foundation
are the substantial shareholders of Shougang Century.

The Group is primarily involved in the following activities:

1.  manufacturing and sales of steel cords for radial tyres

2.  manufacturing and sales of sawing wires and hose
wires

° create an influential “Eastern” brand recognition in
steel cord industry based on the principles of integrity,
pragmatism and efficiency

° gradually become an enterprise with annual
manufacturing capacity in excess of 300,000 tonnes
of high-quality steel cord

° become one of the three major manufacturers of steel
cord industry in China

To learn more about Shougang Century, please visit
http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk.
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As at 18 March 2024 WH_Z_PUF=/+/\H

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

China CITIC Bank

Chong Hing Bank

Industrial Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Nanyang Commercial Bank

The Bank of East Asia

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

Moore Advisory Services Limited

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan
Hong Kong

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/shougangcentury/
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Board lot size: 2,000 Shares

Shares outstanding as at the last 1,968,903,828 Shares

trading day of 2023:

Market capitalisation as at the last HK$476,474,726

trading day of 2023:

Closing share price as at the last HK$0.242
trading day of 2023:

Basic earnings per Share for 2023:

Interim HK1.58 cents

Final HK3.17 cents

Dividend for 2023

Interim Dividend : Nil

Final Dividend HK1 cent per Share

Payment Date of 2023 Final 31 July 2024

Dividend:
2023 Annual General Meeting: 27 June 2024
Closure of Register of Members 20 to 27 June 2024

for 2023 Annual General

Meeting:
Announcement of 2023 Final 18 March 2024
Results:
Address Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2527 2218

Fax : (852) 2861 3527

E-mail address business_link@shougangcentury.com.hk
ir@shougangcentury.com.hk
schi@shougangcentury.com.hk

Website http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

Any matters relating to your shareholding, e.g. transfer of
Shares, change of name or address, lost share certificates
and dividend warrants, should be sent in writing to:

Address 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Fax : (852) 2810 8185
E-mail address is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
Website http://www.tricoris.com
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JEsc Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd. EER S HMELEEGR AT

Address: 1 Dong Fang Road, Jiaxing Economic Development Zone
Zhejiang Province, PRC
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Telephone: (86) 573 8222 2790

Bk

Fax: (86) 573 8221 3500
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Website: http://www.jesc.com.cn
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E-mail address: jesc@jesc.com.cn
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Address: 1 Dong Fang Road, Tengzhou Economic Development Zone
Shandong Province, PRC
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Postal code: 277500
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Telephone: (86) 632 525 2100
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Fax: (86) 632 525 2111

BE:

Website: http://www.tesc.com.cn
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E-mail address: tesc@tesc.com.cn

ESE SR

Shougang Century (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd. » E3l( L&) EBER LT

% Address: Room 2505, Tower 1, SOHO Tianshan Plaza

No.421 Ziyun Road, Changning District, Shanghai, PRC
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Telephone: (86) 21 6291 8806
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Fax: (86) 21 6291 8805
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Mr. Su Fanrong, aged 56, joined the Group as a deputy
general manager of the Company in January 2015 and was
appointed as the executive deputy managing Director on
1 December 2015. Mr. Su has re-designated as the chairman
of the Company and acted as the chairman and vice-
chairman of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company respectively since 18 January
2018, and he has been appointed as the managing Director
on 31 January 2018. He resigned as the managing Director
on 1 July 2023 but remains as the chairman of the Company.
At present, Mr. Su holds directorship in all wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company. He also acts as the deputy
general manager of Shougang HK. He holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from Missouri State
University and a Bachelor’s degree specialising in Pressure
Processing from University of Science and Technology
Beijing. He joined Shougang Group in 1990 and has been
working in various companies under Shougang Group. Mr.
Su has over 30 years of sales and management experience
in the steel industry.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Su and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2024
and ending on 31 December 2026 to act as the chairman
of the Company. At present, Mr. Su’s monthly salary is
entitled to HK$220,000 which is determined with reference
to the financial position of the Company, the experience
and duties of Mr. Su, the remuneration benchmark in the
industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Li Jinping, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2020. He was appointed
as the managing Director with effect from 1 July 2023. Mr.
Li was graduated from Shandong University of Finance and
Economics with a Master’s degree in Accounting. He is a
senior accountant and a Public Valuer. Mr. Li had worked
in Beijing Supervision Bureau of Ministry of Finance of PRC
for approximately 18 years and held various senior positions
including the deputy division director and division director.
He was principally engaged
supervision, inspection, risk control management and so
on. In 2019, Mr. Li joined Shougang HK. He currently serves
as a financial controller of Shougang HK. In all, Mr. Li has
extensive experience and expertise in financial supervision

in the work relating to

and risk control.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Li and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 July 2023
and ending on 31 December 2025. Mr. Li has voluntarily
declined any director’s emoluments.

Mr. Yang Junlin, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director and a deputy managing Director with effect from
1 July 2022 and 8 July 2022 respectively. At present, he
also holds directorship in all wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from Nankai University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Management. Mr. Yang had been
working in various companies under Shougang Group since
2003 and held various senior positions. Mr. Yang had been
the general manager of the finance department of Shougang
HK prior to his appointment as an executive Director. Mr.
Yang is currently a director of various companies under
Shougang Group. In all, Mr. Yang has been engaged in
financial management for years and has extensive
experience and expertise in financing and capital market.

The current service contract was entered into between Mr.
Yang and the Company for a fixed term commencing from
8 July 2022 to 31 December 2024. Mr. Yang is currently
entitled to receive a monthly salary of HK$200,000. Such
salary is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Zhang Dan, aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 August 2023. Mr. Zhang holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from The University of
California, Los Angeles and a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Beijing University of Technology. Mr. Zhang
is also a responsible officer recognised by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong for engaging in the
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

In January 2023, Mr. Zhang joined Shougang Fund. He
currently serves as a general manager of the merger and
acquisition department of Shougang Fund and a deputy
general manager of Jingxi Holdings. Prior to joining
Shougang Fund, he was the co-head of general industrials
and merger and acquisition of investment banking
department of Huatai International Financial Holdings
Company Limited and had completed numerous merger
and acquisition as well as initial public offering and
refinancing projects. He was also a director of the
investment banking department of GF Capital (Hong Kong)
Limited. In all, Mr. Zhang has over 15 years of extensive
experience in Hong Kong capital market.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Zhang
and the Company for a term commencing from 1 August
2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. Mr. Zhang has
voluntarily declined any director’s emoluments.

Mr. Adam Touhig, aged 55, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 15 January 2021. He was appointed
as the senior vice president of rubber reinforcement Asia
in Bekaert group on 1 June 2020.

Prior to joining Bekaert group, Mr. Touhig had held various
management positions including global account director,
vice president of commercial and program management,
regional senior vice president, company president, chairman
and board member in several companies for GKN Automotive
Limited, including GKN Driveline (India) Ltd, GKN Driveline
Japan Ltd, GKN Driveline Korea Ltd, Taiway Limited and
GKN Driveline Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.. He also held directorships
in the abovementioned companies. In all, Mr. Touhig has
over 30 years of extensive experience in the tier 1
automotive industry.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Touhig
and the Company for a term commencing from 1 August
2022 and ending on 31 December 2024. At present, Mr.
Touhig is entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$150,000
per annum which is determined with reference to his
experience and duties, his role played in the Board, the
Company’s performance and profitability, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin, aged 69, is a fellow member of each of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Chartered Accountants of Australia and New Zealand and
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University (“Polytechnic University”) with a higher diploma
in Accountancy in 1975. He was conferred an Honorary
Fellow of Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Lam was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company
in August 2015. He was appointed as the chairman of each
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2023. He is also
an independent non-executive director of each of Spring
Real Estate Investment Trust, Global Digital Creations
Holdings Limited, COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited, Nine
Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, CITIC Telecom
International Holdings Limited and Topsports International
Holdings Limited. Mr. Lam retired as an independent non-
executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited and Flydoo Technology
Holdings Limited (formerly known as WWPKG Holdings
Company Limited) with effect from 30 May 2023 and 2
August 2022 respectively. He also resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Bestway Global
Holding Inc. in 2021. Mr. Lam had taken the position of
an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and
Finance of Polytechnic University until 31 August 2016. He
was previously a member of the Listing Committee and the
Financial Reporting Advisory Panel of the Stock Exchange
from 1997 to 2003, a committee member of HKICPA from
1994 to 2009, a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers from
1993 to 2013 and a member of the Finance Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association until
7 July 2016. In all, Mr. Lam has over 40 years of extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and business consulting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Lam and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2024
and ending on 31 December 2026. At present, Mr. Lam is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Feng Yaoling, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each
of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
1 January 2020. He was appointed as the vice chairman
of nomination committee of the Company with effect from
1 September 2023. Mr. Feng was a professor-level senior
engineer who is awarded special government subsidy by
the State Council of PRC as a specialist. He graduated
from Beijing University of Chemical Technology with a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in January 1982.

Mr. Feng is currently a deputy chief engineer of Eve Rubber
Institute Co., Ltd. and he has over 35 years of extensive
experience in the tyre manufacturing industry. Mr. Feng
was previously the chief engineer, senior engineer, deputy
general manager cum chief engineer and director of Aeolus
Tyre Co., Ltd. (“Aeolus Tyre”) from 1982 to 2017. Aeolus
Tyre was listed on the Main Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange in October 2003 (Stock code: 600469).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

On 6 March 2015, Aeolus Tyre received the administrative
penalty decision including warnings and a fine of
RMB600,000 from the Henan regulatory bureau of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, due to its misstatement
of accounting information in the 2011 and 2012 annual
reports which violated the “Measures for the Administration
of Information Disclosure of Listed Companies”. Mr. Feng,
as a then senior management of Aeolus Tyre, among others,
also received the “Decision to Impose Training Order to
Zheng Yuli, Fan Rende and others in Total 7 Persons” and
the “Decision to Issue Warning Letters to Zheng Yuli, Fan
Rende and others in Total 10 Persons” (the “Decisions”).
Pursuant to the Decisions, Mr. Feng needed to participate
in the training of laws and regulations related to listed
companies, and was warned and recorded in the Integrity
Archive of Securities and Futures. Mr. Feng confirms that
(i) remedial actions have been taken by Aeolus Tyre which
include correcting and restating figures in the relevant
annual reports; (ii) the proceedings regarding the aforesaid
matter has been completely settled; and (iii) the Decisions
have been fully complied with and no further administrative
penalties or liabilities were outstanding by Aeolus Tyre or
Mr. Feng regarding the aforesaid matter.

A service contract was entered into between Mr. Feng and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 January 2023
and ending on 31 December 2025. At present, Mr. Feng is
entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000 per annum
which is determined with reference to his experience and
duties, his role played in the Board, the Company’s
performance and profitability, the remuneration benchmark
in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.

Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina, aged 39, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director and a member of
each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company on 1 September
2023. Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor’s degree of Laws (graduated
with first class honors) from The University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s degree of Laws (Commercial Law) (graduated
with distinction) from London School of Economics and
Political Science. She was called to the Hong Kong Bar in
2009. She is a practising barrister and a holder of the
Mainland China Lawyer’s Licence (Guangdong — Hong Kong
- Macao Greater Bay Area). Her practice focuses on
commercial, company and insurance law.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

)

Ms. Ho is a member of the Election Committee (Legal
Sector) of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
the Competition Commission, the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform, the Board of Review (Inland Revenue
Ordinance), the Disciplinary Committee of the Estate Agents
Authority and the Torture Claims Appeal Board. She is also
a director of eBRAM International Online Dispute Resolution
Centre Limited. She is an arbitrator on the list of arbitrators
of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and an
arbitrator of the Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration.
She is also a member of the Bar Council of the Hong Kong
Bar Association.

A service contract was entered into between Ms. Ho and
the Company for a term commencing from 1 September
2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. At present, Ms.
Ho is entitled to receive a director’s fee of HK$240,000
per annum which is determined with reference to her
experience and duties, her role played in the Board, the
Company’s performance and profitability, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.
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Shougang Century
Holdings Limited
BERERERRAR

http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk

" For identification purpose only {£4:4 7!

JEscC

Jiaxing Eastern
Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
(Zhejiang, PRC)
EERHER
BRATRE

(B H0T)

http://www.jesc.com.cn

100%

Manufacturing and sales
of Steel Cords
for Radial Tyres
BUEREE T T REBMR
RS TEscC
Tengzhou Eastern
Steel Cord Co., Ltd.
100% (Shandong, PRC)
PR M 3R 75 6 B 4%
BRAF]
(FPE - IUR)

http://www.tesc.com.cn

Provision of
Management and
Consulting Services

in the Mainland

(for Steel Cord
Segment) to the Group

100% 5

Shougang
Century (Shanghai)
Management Co., Ltd."

B 2% £ [ 42 (B Y (Shanghai, PRC)
(RIBES D) B (L) SEERAT
EEMBHRE (FREL - £%)
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the fellow members of the Board, | am pleased
to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

In 2023, China adhered to the keynote of seeking progress
and maintaining stability, and the economic development
rebounded and demonstrated an upward trend, with the
gross domestic product of 2023 exceeding RMB126 trillion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 5.2%. However, as
the external environment was becoming more complex,
severe and uncertain, and the economic development was
still faced with difficulties and challenges, the triple pressure
of shrinking demand, supply shocks and weakening
expectations remained relatively high. In the face of many
economic development and market uncertainties, the Group
made significant adjustments to its operation and
management strategies.

BRI IRER -

AABRREZSSEKERAREAEEHZ -
L CFT A+ HUIFEZEERFE
ESR

REZZEZ=F FHEBBHEBPRETE
REF KEZEROAMT  — T _=FEH
RNEERBEBRAARE1268E T ALEE
52% ' B EINEBIRIBEFHEMN - BRIE T T
MR EEERDEGEEMKE  FK
ke R EEMBEHEBN =EENEAR
R -EHEZCESRRMTS T EEERE
AEBELETIREME LEITTRAFE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

During the year under review, on the basis of proactively
sorting out and summarising its operating conditions, the
Group conducted an in-depth analysis of the internal and
external proactively responded to new
situations, seized new opportunities, and put forward its
operating principles of “stabilising operation, adjusting
product mix, reducing costs, and improving quality and
efficiency”. By strengthening the management foundation,
improving and optimising the marketing strategy, innovating
the marketing means, adjusting the product structure,
establishing a flexible supply chain to reduce costs and
increase efficiency, and streamlining procedures to enhance
efficiency, we made every effort to optimise the Group’s
operation quality and asset quality. Therefore, the Group
delivered another set of solid annual results in 2023.

environment,

The decreases in raw material costs and export sales
dragged down our average selling price. However, thanks
to the unremitting efforts of our sales team, the total sales
volume grew by 18.1% year-on-year in 2023. Besides,
through actively adopting stringent cost reduction measures,
the Group lowered its purchasing and production costs,
therefore gross profit margin improved by 1.6 percentage
points to 15.0%. In addition to the increase in gross profit,
the decline in finance costs brought the increment of the
Group’s net profit by 30.6% year-on-year from HK$47,858,000
to HK$62,506,000. The results manifested the distinctive
competence of our core business, which helps us adapt
quickly to the challenging operating environment, while
producing high-quality steel cords for our customers in
both domestic and international markets.

As the steel cord industry has developed rapidly, the Group
strives to enhance its productivity. Aiming to add an
additional 100,000 tonnes of steel cord production capacity,
the Group actively propelled an expansion plan in its
Tengzhou plant. With a satisfactory construction progress,
the new facilities were in operation during the year under
review. Since the increase in productivity significantly
enhances the Group’s core competitiveness and profitability,
the Group continues to make great strides towards its goal
of manufacturing over 300,000 tonnes of high-quality steel
cords annually.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

The Group’s net asset value was HK$0.86 per Share as at
31 December 2023, an increase of 2.4% as compared to
HK$0.84 per Share at the end of 2022. The Group recorded
basic earnings per Share of HK3.17 cents for the year, an
increase of 29.9% when compared to its basic earnings
per Share of HK2.44 cents for the previous year.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1 cent per Share for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Looking ahead to 2024, with the mitigation of COVID-19
pandemic, global demand for logistics will witness an
increase, boosting the demand for large vehicles’ tyres.
Leveraging the Chinese government’s policy, coupled with
the solid demand on tyres, the prospects of the Group’s
business operation are promising as the sales of steel cords
are expected to bloom. Moreover, taking into consideration
the Chinese government’s regulations on energy conservation
and emission reduction, the constant increase in output of
electric cars drives demand for their accessorial tyres, which
will in turn expedite the market expansion of steel cords for
domestic radial tyres and bring a more ample room for
development to steel cord industry in the long term. Through
research and product innovation, along with productivity
enhancement, we will continue to sharpen our competitive
edge and grasp opportunities in both domestic and
international markets, with a view to increasing market share.

During the period of the 14th Five Year Plan, China targets
to build towards a modern socialist country and accelerate
the establishment of a new development structure that is
driven primarily by the domestic cycle and complimented
by the dual circulation of domestic and international
economies. In accordance with changes in national policies,
the Group is committed to continuously implementing green
and environmentally friendly practices in each aspect of
our production, so as to achieve sustainable development
and fulfil social responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERWHEE

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express sincere RNABREEZToUHMMARE HEGMEE
gratitude to all Shareholders, suppliers and customers for HEEYTIFRRIOKRG FAEXRGEZTSK
their longstanding support. | would also like to thank my EMAERE THAEFEBHERTE R K
fellow members on the Board and staff members of the Ko AREFBBESEFRSEROZE RERIE
Group for their unwavering commitment to the Group’s TigH:E  AIREFZEE SO H -
business. Looking forward, the Group will continue to

maintain steady development and capture opportunities in

the market, so as to strive for higher returns to Shareholders.

By order of the Board AEEFED

Su Fanrong EER

Chairman ]

Hong Kong A

18 March 2024 —E2-FE=A+/\H

18 SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELEBR AR



The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of steel cords for radial tyres, sawing wires and hose
wires. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded revenue of HK$2,494,534,000 (2022: HK$2,464,242,000),
representing an increase of 1.2% as compared with the last
year. Meanwhile, the gross profit increased by 13.2% to
HK$374,166,000 (2022: HK$330,540,000). Therefore, the Group’s
net profit increased by 30.6% from same period last year of
HK$47,858,000 to HK$62,506,000. The Board considered that
the increase in profit after tax was primarily attributable to the
following reasons:

- the improvement of gross profit margin arisen from
the decrease in production costs; and

- the reduction in net finance costs.

REBXTERERERBEETFFEHBR AN
B UMM ERBENMGK BE-_T ==
F+-_A=+—BHUEFE AEEHEEE
XA 5 #2,494,534,000T( —F — —F : B
2,464,242,0007T ) - B AFIENN1.2% ° [FFs -
F F) 12 IN13.2% = % #374,166,000T( = =
© 78 #330,540,0007T )° [ I AN &=
E 2 % s MR A F R HIE N30.6% - BB
47,858,000t + F+ = /& #62,506,0007T ° &=

ERE BEBEFIERIEZEHNA TR
:

EERATREFENERNES + &

- WBRAFREEE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

During the year, the Group recorded basic earnings per
share of HK3.17 cents, an increase of 29.9% when
compared to the previous year of HK2.44 cents. Besides,
the Group generated positive cash inflow from operations
and maintained a sustained healthy financial position. The
Board has proposed a final dividend of HK1 cent per share
in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023
(subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting), representing an increase of 37.0%

year-on-year.

The economy and society in general resumed normal
activities since 2023. However, global political and economic
situations remained complicated, and the foundation for
sustained recovery and development of the domestic
economy was still unstable. In 2023, China’s economic
development showed the momentum of recovery, with the
gross domestic product reaching RMB126,058.2 billion, up
by 5.2% year-on-year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s revenue
of steel cord segment amounted to HK$2,493,165,000
(2022: HK$2,462,767,000), representing an increase of 1.2%
from the previous year. Because of the increase demand
of radial tyres, the steel cord segment sold 228,637 tonnes
of steel cord during the year, increased by 18.0% as
compared to 193,701 tonnes last year. In respect of the
sales of sawing wire products, the sales volume increased
by 0.7% from 752 tonnes to 757 tonnes for the corresponding
period last year attributable to our persistent effort in
exploring new customers as well as the improvement of
the photovoltaic, sapphire, and magnetic material markets.
There was an increase of 21.3% in the sales volume of
our other wire products from 8,886 tonnes to 10,782 tonnes
for the corresponding period. The sales volume of this
segment for the year is analysed as follows:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLFE

2023 2022
—EC-=E o F

% of % of

Sales  total sales Sales total sales

volume volume of volume volume of
(Tonnes) steel cords (Tonnes)  steel cords % change

3 3 HHERAR

BHER BHEE
HEE (W) BAt(%)  HEE(H) BHL(%) 25(%)

Steel cords for: MEGAR -

- truck tyres -HERRK 133,308 58.3 113,889 58.8 +17.1
- off the road truck tyres ~ — Ti2%M 15,568 6.8 10,628 5.5 +46.5
- passenger car tyres - BERk 79,761 34.9 69,184 35.7 +15.3
Total for steel cords MEGAG 228,637 100.0 193,701 100.0 +18.0
Sawing wire products YIEIMA4E o 757 752 +0.7
Other steel wires H fth 4% 10,782 8,886 +21.3
Total @t 240,176 203,339 +18.1

There was no significant change in sales mix during the
year, the proportion of sales of steel cords for truck tyres
accounted for 58.3% of total sales volume of steel cords
for the year, decreased by 0.5pp as compared to the
previous year, it remained as the largest sales volume of
steel cords of the Group for the year. Attributable to the
great effort made by our sales team, the sales of steel
cords for off the road truck tyres increased by 46.5% to
15,568 tonnes from 10,628 tonnes last year.

AEEHEBRALEEREL  WERHEES
HEGRANEREAFEMNESRHEES
58.3% ' Lk EF T 705 B D (RIFAF
EASESANMEGHES -ARBMBEE
EBRNEALE ) HEGHER TRRIE AN

BEAR B & = 1 & F /910,628 12 1N46
15,568l
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEWMK D

In respect of sales by region, the revenue from export sales
amounted to HK$897,554,000 for the year, decreased by
16.5% as compared to HK$1,074,701,000 last year. The
export sales represented 36.0% of total revenue from sales
for the year, compared to 43.6% for last year. The
breakdown of sales of steel cords segment for the year by  #17~ :

geographical location is as follows:

HERMEMS

43.6%

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BHLFE

RAFEEZEHOHES
¥ % & 5 #897,554,0000T 0 th £ F B
1,074,701,0007C © | #16.5% ° 1 O 4§ &
EARFERIHEEXT36.0% MEFAA
6 o ANGF S SN SR AR D SR IR b [ /O 5 AR 4

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
% of total % of total
revenue of revenue of
Revenue steel cord Revenue steel cord
HK$’000 segment HK$’000 segment % change
ERRED HHERDE
BETT B2 (%) BT B (%) BE) (%)
PRC i 1,595,611 64.0 1,388,066 56.4 +15.0
Export sales: HAHE -
Asia (other than PRC) M (REIRRSN) 518,171 20.8 531,056 21.5 -2.4
EMEA (Europe, EMEA(EUM -

Middle East and Africa) RERFZEN) 188,739 7.5 308,056 12.5 -38.7
North America =M 148,860 6.0 157,953 6.4 -5.8
South America mEM 41,784 1.7 77,636 3.2 -46.2

Total export sales BmrOHE 897,554 36.0 1,074,701 43.6 -16.5
Total @t 2,493,165 100.0 2,462,767 100.0 +1.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREwWLR D

Gross profit of this segment increased by 13.3% over last
year to HK$372,939,000 (2022: HK$329,236,000) for the
year. The gross profit margin also increased from 13.4%
over last year to 15.0% for the year. This improvement was
mainly due to the decrease in production costs.

RAFEWDE 2 BN EFH EFA13.3%
% B #372,939,0000L( Z T = ZF : B
329,236,0007T)° EFEITHEF#H13.4%
HEARFEMNI5.0% - ERNEETBERANEE
B A HY T B o

Revenue of the Group amounted to HK$2,494,534,000 # & F F- K & 2B E WS
(2022: HK$2,464,242,000) for the year, increased by 1.2% 2,494,534,0000( — & — — F: B #
over last year. The breakdown of revenue of the Group for 2,464,242,0007T) * kb EF R EAE IN1.2% 7
the year is as follows: NEBAREF 7 SEFEBPMUOT -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE
2023 2022
—E-= “EF
% of total % of total
HK$’000 revenue HK$°000 revenue % change
-2 =S
BETT  BI(%) BETT  BOL%) 2E(%)
Steel cords il 4 2,493,165 99.9 2,462,767 99.9 +1.2
Property rental MERE 1,369 0.1 1,475 0.1 -7.2
Total @5t 2,494,534 100.0 2,464,242 100.0 +1.2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREWL KD

Gross profit of the Group increased by 13.2% over last
year to HK$374,166,000 (2022: HK$330,540,000), which
was mainly due to the increase of gross profit of steel cord
segment. Accordingly, the gross profit margin of the Group
increased by 1.6pp to 15.0% for the year as compared to
that of last year. The breakdown of gross profit of the
Group for the year is as follows:

NE&E B ZEMLEEFEMI2%E B
#374,166,0000( — T = = F: B K
330,540,0007T) " IEEEENH%Z?’MBEGEE
FIEMATE - B RAFEAEE 2 EFE
M EFRB EA1.6MEEHEHE15.0% ° 1
RNEFEAEE 2 EFHMAIAT

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1t-HLEFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —EofF
Gross profit Gross profit
HK$’000 margin (%) HK$'000 margin (%) % change
BETT  ERR®%)  AETT  EFNE%) BE(%)
Steel cords HEs 372,939 15.0 329,236 13.4 +13.3
Property rental MERE 1,227 89.6 1,304 88.4 -5.9
Total st 374,166 15.0 330,540 13.4 +13.2
Selling and distribution expenses amounted to RAFEAEEZHEHERDHEHER®B
HK$124,033,000 (2022: HK$114,563,000) for the year, 16124,033,0005c( — T — — 4 : & &

increased by 8.3% over last year, mainly due to the increase
in sales volume of steel cord segment.

Administrative expenses of the Group amounted to
HK$56,433,000 (2022: HK$58,307,000) for the year,
decreased by 3.2% as compared to last year. The Group
would continue to implement the cost control measures.

Research and development expenses of the Group
amounted to HK$108,296,000 for the year, increased by
4.8% as compared to HK$103,335,000 for last year. Such
expenses were all incurred by the steel cord segment for
aligning with the requirements from our tyres manufacturing
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWAR D

Other income of the Group decreased by 61.2% from
HK$20,738,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
HK$8,039,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. This
was primarily due to decrease in government grants in the
current year.

Other gains, net of the Group decreased by 96.9% from
HK$21,498,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
HK$662,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023. This
was primarily due to the fair value gain on Convertible
Bonds decreased from HK$21,700,000 to HK$3,554,000 in
the current year.

Finance costs, net of the Group decreased by 62.6% from
HK$50,615,000 to HK$18,914,000 for the year. This was
mainly because the total net foreign exchange differences
on the borrowings and Convertible Bonds for the year ended
31 December 2023 recorded the gains of HK$1,487,000
while those for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
the losses of HK$28,550,000.

The treasury and funding policies of the Group concentrate
on the management of liquidity and the monitoring of
financial risks, including interest rate risk, currency risk and
counterparty risk. The objectives are to ensure the Group
has adequate financial resources to maintain business
growth with a viable financial position.

Surplus funds of the Group are generally placed on short
term deposits denominated in HKD, EUR, RMB or USD
with reputable banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
financing of the Group principally comprises bank loans.
The financing portfolio takes into consideration of the
liquidity of the Group and interest costs.

The Company manages its capital structure with the
objectives of ensuring that the businesses of the Group
can maintain a sustainable growth and providing a long-
term reasonable return to its Shareholders.

AREZEMUABBE-F-—F+ =7
=+ — B It F & &% #20,738,0007C B
Bl o2%EHE—_E-—=—&E+—fB=+—H &
J£ )75 #8,089,0007 L EE B R AN AFE
B B e Bl R >

REBZHEMYZ  FEHBEE-_T-__F
+TZA=+—HIFEHHE%21,498,0007T
T8 I%EHE T -_=—F+_-_A=+—
H IF F & #) 78 662,000 2 = E 2 B
RAFEABRBREFNAFERZHBE
21,700,0007T P& 2= %% 3,554,0007T ©

RAFEAEBZMBERA FEABE
50,615,0007C T f#62.6% = i %18,914,000
TemzaTEZERBAREEZE T _=F+=A4
=+ —ALEFEERRITBRRES ZINEEH
= RS ek B #51,487,0000T ¢ A
EE - —F+-RA=+—HLFELHEE
18/51%28,550,0007T °

AEENSHERRETNRBE S ERMEE
AR - BIEF R E R - R RN R 5 8
FRE -HENRERAKREARENUBEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The total number of issued shares of the Company was
1,968,903,828 Shares as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
1,971,379,828 Shares). Net asset value of the Group was
HK$1,689,673,000 as at 31 December 2023, increased by
1.9% as compared to HK$1,657,743,000 as at 31 December
2022. Net asset value per Share was HK$0.86 as at 31
December 2023, also increased by 2.4% as compared to
HK$0.84 as at 31 December 2022.

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a related
party and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund)
whereby the Company issued and Jingxi Holdings
subscribed for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000. The interest rate is 4.0% per
annum while Conversion Price is HK$0.33 per Share, with
conversion available commencing 6 months from issuance
date till end of term. Tenor is 3 years from issuance date
which can be extended by Jingxi Holdings for one year
twice to the date falling on 11 February 2024.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations between the Group and Jingxi Holdings with
reference to the prevailing market prices of the Shares. On
11 February 2019, the issuance of the Convertible Bonds
was completed. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting the costs and expenses of approximately
HK$1 million, are approximately HK$149 million and are
expected to be used as follows: (i) as to approximately
HK$37.3 million for repaying interest-bearing borrowings
with higher interest rate of the Group (excluding borrowings
provided by Shougang HK and its related party(ies)); (ii) as
to approximately HK$110 million for funding the capital
investment for the TESC Phase Il Project subject to the
construction cost and time needed to supplement the
production need for both TESC and JESC; and (iii) as to
approximately HK$1.7 million, being the remaining proceeds
for supplementing general working capital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fully utilised the
aforesaid proceeds. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Company received from Jingxi Holdings an extension notice
to extend the maturity date to 11 February 2023 and a
conversion notice to convert the Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$24,000,000 at the Conversion Price
of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share. The Conversion Shares
were issued in February 2022.

In February 2023, the Convertible Bonds matured. The
Company has made full redemption of outstanding principal
amount of HK$126,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds, in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Convertible
Bonds.

The Group’s bank balances and cash (including pledged
bank deposits) amounted to HK$97,140,000 as at 31
December 2023, decreased by 57.0% as compared to
HK$225,908,000 as at 31 December 2022. Total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group were HK$487,537,000
(comprised of bank borrowings) as at 31 December 2023,
decreased by 16.9% as compared to HK$586,626,000
(comprised of bank borrowings and Convertible Bonds) as
at 31 December 2022. The amount of net interest bearing
borrowings (total interest bearing borrowings less pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash) therefore increased
from HK$360,718,000 as at 31 December 2022 to
HK$390,397,000 as at 31 December 2023.

Gearing ratio represented total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity of the Group and increased
from 21.8% as at 31 December 2022 to 23.1% as at 31
December 2023. The current ratio (calculated as current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group remained
at 1.2 times as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group’s source of revenue is mainly denominated in
EUR, RMB and USD, while those of purchases and payments
are mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD. As at 31
December 2023, the interest bearing borrowings were
mainly at variable rates, the Group also entered into cross
currency swap transactions to manage our risks on
exchange and interest rate in respect of our interest bearing
borrowings.

We will review and adjust the currency composition of our
interest bearing borrowings from time to time to minimise
these risks. In any event, we would keep monitoring the
currency and interest rate composition of the Group’s
interest bearing borrowings under the guidance of the
Internal Control Manual and take appropriate action to
minimise our exchange and interest rate risks when needed.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$78,842,000.

In 2019, TESC entered into agreements with the relevant
governmental authorities of Tengzhou in relation to the
investment of a construction project to be carried out on
the three parcels of land through a public auction in 2010
and 2011 (the “Lands”). Pursuant to the agreements, TESC
shall invest in construction of the production lines for an
annual capacity of 100,000 tonnes steel cords on the Lands.
The Tengzhou governmental authorities shall assist TESC
in the construction project, such as handling relevant
procedures for the construction, facilitating in the
construction of infrastructure of the project such as water,
electricity and roads, and assisting in application of
governmental policy support and applicable support funds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The construction project has commenced to acquire the
machineries and construct the factory plant, ancillary
facilities and peripheral roads since November 2019. The
project is carried out by phases according to the market
conditions and the financial capacity of the Company from
time to time. Facing the growing automotive and tyre
market, the Group strives to enhance its productivity. During
the year under review, the Group continued to propel an
expansion plan at TESC. Our steel cord/wire production
capacity at TESC was expanded to reach an annual
production capacity of 160,000 tonnes. Together with the
annual capacity of 80,000 tonnes at JESC, the Group’s
annual production capacity of steel cords increased to
240,000 tonnes. in productivity
significantly enhances the Group’s core competitiveness
and profitability, the Group continues to make great strides
towards its goal to manufacture over 300,000 tonnes of
high-quality steel cords annually.

Since the increase

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 2,413
employees located in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually. In
addition to salary payments, other employee benefits
include medical subsidies, hospitalisation scheme and a
defined contribution provident fund, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and other retirement scheme or other similar
defined contribution provident fund stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC which provided retirement benefits
to employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively. The
Group’s contributions to these schemes are charged against
profit or loss as they are incurred. The total employee
benefit expense for the year amounted to approximately
HK$301.7 million.

The Group had also provided training programmes or
courses for the mainland staff at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the
Company so as to further enhance their technical skills in
production operation and management, professional skills
and knowledge, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to
individual performance, the Group’s performance and
profitability, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.

The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of assets
pledged as security for bank borrowings and bills payables
are:

1. Bills receivables of HK$17,601,000; and

2. Bank deposits of HK$20,002,000.

The moderation of the epidemic and gradual relaxation of
the government across the globe’s quarantine measures
had a positive effect on returning our daily life to normalcy
gradually. In 2023, China has gradually resumed steady
economic growth. However, the threat posed by the Sino-
American relations, Russia-Ukraine conflict and Israel-
Hamas war still brought uncertainty in the global economy
in 2024. But we, Shougang Century, are confident and
optimistic about our business in light of the followings:

o The PRC’s
infrastructure investment is expected to improve, this
leads the sales in the automotive and tyre industry to
increase continuously;

macro-economic environment in

° To continue the construction of our production lines
at TESC to facilitate the expansion plan of an additional
100,000 tonnes of steel cord manufacturing capacity
within the 14th Five-Year Plan;

° Through our diligence and conviction to reduce our
costs of production, we are confident to make orderly
investment in expanding our steel cord/wire production
capacity at TESC which has reached an annual
capacity of 160,000 tonnes;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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o By taking into consideration the Chinese government’s o ZE R hEBTNE R T B8R

regulations on energy conservation and emission BEEMTEIE NS T HRERKY
reduction, the constant increase in output of electric TSR B RGE RN ERE AT R 15
cars drives demand for their accessorial tyres, which MESNTIBIER  WAMEGRITESK
will in turn expedite the market expansion of steel FEMNEREEZSZR &

cords for domestic radial tyres and bring a more ample
room for development to steel cord industry in the
long term; and

° To reduce carbon emissions through reduction of e FBRIEREFE [ F S 2R - I KR

energy consumption, application of clean energy, EmRkERABRMAMFRES A BE
research and development on low-carbon products, WRBER RNEE ] ZEBAEE - (K]
the application of new technologies and new equipment ERRENBETHEEE-

and so on, the Group can achieve the green, low-
carbon and sustainable corporate development and
fulfil social responsibilities.
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The Board is committed to practising and achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and also recognises that
effective risk management and internal control systems are
crucial to the long-term development of the Company. In
order to maintain sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems, the Board periodically reviews
the daily corporate governance practices and procedures
of the Company and its subsidiaries and procures the
Company and its subsidiaries to strictly comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, and the rules and guidelines
of regulatory bodies.

Shougang Century is committed to developing a corporate
culture which is based on the principle of integrity,
pragmatism and efficiency. Our culture is embedded in our
daily operations, business model and relations with
stakeholders and is supported by a wide range of
procedures, guidelines and standards of the Group. This
allows employees across the Group with a concerted effort
to create value by providing quality products to customers,
maximise return to the shareholder of the Company whilst
contribute to community in social and environment
perspectives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to
the accounting period covered in this annual report in
compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance
Report set out in the Corporate Governance Code of
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules. Also, the Company has
applied and complied with all the principles and code
provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) of the Corporate
Governance Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2023, except for the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1
of the Corporate Governance Code during the period form
1 January 2023 to 30 June 20283.

On 6 April 2004, the Board has adopted a SCHL Code on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of the
Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct and rules
governing dealing by all Directors and Specified Individuals
in the securities of the Company. In order to keep the
SCHL Code in line with the changes brought upon by the
relevant amendments to laws, rules and regulations, the
Board will revise the SCHL Code from time to time. All
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and SCHL Code for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

On 18 March 2024, the Board currently consists of eight
members, including four executive Directors (namely
Messrs. Su Fanrong (chairman), Li Jinping (managing
Director), Yang Junlin (deputy managing Director) and Zhang
Dan), one non-executive Director (namely Mr. Adam Touhig)
and three independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr.
Lam Yiu Kin, Mr. Feng Yaoling and Ms. Ho Shuk Ying,
Sabrina). The Directors’ biographical details are set out on
pages 7 to 13 under the heading “
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The major duties of the Board are set out below:

° Develop business model and business goals of the
Company;

° Formulate the strategies, planning and development
of the Company;

° Set up objectives of management;
° Monitor the performance of management;

° Ensure that a framework of prudent and effective
controls are in place to enable risks to be assessed
and managed;

° Review and approve the Company’s results and
operations to be disclosed on a regular basis to the
public; and

o Approve the Group’s operating strategies, budget and
strategies in collaboration with various jurisdictions
enterprises, as well as other major investments,
application of funds and other substantial exercises
with other enterprises.

In order to have a clear guideline in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decision, functions
between the Board and the management are formalised in
the Internal Control Manual. In short, the Board, which is
accountable to Shareholders for the long-term performance
of the Company, is responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs to safeguard the best interest of the
Company as a whole. The affairs reserved to the Board
including but not limited to the development of business
models and strategies of the Company, the preparation of
financial reporting and the expansion and development of
any new business. The managing Director motivates the
management and general staff to achieve those business
goals and strategies set out by the Board, applying business
principles and ethics enshrined in the Internal Control
Manual.
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Each Director owes a fiduciary duty towards the Company.
He/she should act in good faith and in the best interests
for both the Company and Shareholders as a whole. Also,
the Board has three independent non-executive Directors
which represent more than one-third of the Board so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
different professional qualification and experience in various
aspects, including but not limited to (i) legal professional
qualification and experience; or (ii) auditing, accounting and
tax professional, or business consulting experience, which
has fully complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing
Rules. Hence, we believe that we have sufficient calibre
and number of independent non-executive Directors for
their views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
and his/her immediate family members’ independence.
According to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
are independent throughout the year under review.
Furthermore, all Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors, should be re-elected at least once
every three years at the annual general meeting of the
Company and the reasons the Board believes that the
individual to be independent are set out in the relevant
circular. In addition to the above, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, there is no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship among members of the
Board.
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In order to ensure independent views and input are available
to the Board and a strong independent element on the

board, the Mechanisms ensuring Independent Views
available to the Board has been recommended by the
Nomination Committee and adopted by the Board on 28
December 2022.

The Mechanisms ensuring Independent Views available to
the Board is summarised as follows:

36

The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors which represent more than one-third of the
Board, so that there is a strong element of independence
in the Board. Also, the Board has established various
board committees, namely remuneration committee,
nomination committee and audit committee. The
majority of the committee members are independent
non-executive Directors, so as to ensure independent
views are available. The remuneration committee and
audit committee are chaired by an independent non-
executive Director.

Each independent non-executive Director must provide
an annual confirmation of his independence to the
Company, which have fully complied with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

In order to strengthen the assessment of independent
non-executive Director’s independence of the Company
and to improve transparency of independent non-
executive Directors’ relationships with the Company,
every independent non-executive Director must submit
a “Declaration form on assessment of independence
of independent non-executive Director(s) and his/her
immediate family members of the Company” annually.
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Independent non-executive Directors (including other
directors) are entitled to seek for more information
and documents than is volunteered from management
of the Company on the matters to be discussed at
board meetings, and get accessed to the advice and
assistance of the company secretary of the Company.
Independent non-executive Directors (including other
directors) can also, upon reasonable request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The chairman of the Board shall at least annually hold
a meeting with all the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors. This
provides an effective platform for the chairman to listen
independent views on various issues concerning the
Group.

No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or
grants) with performance-related elements will be
granted to independent non-executive Directors by the
Company as this may lead to bias in their decision-
making and compromise their objectivity and
independence.

During the period form 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023,
the roles of chairman and managing director in the Company
are performed by Mr. Su Fanrong which constitutes the
deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code which stipulates that the roles of
chairman and managing director should be separate and
should not be performed by the same person. In order to
satisfy the requirement of the code provision C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Board appointed Mr. Li
Jinping as the managing Director with effect from 1 July
2023, and Mr. Su ceased to act as the managing Director
with effect from the same date but remains as the chairman
of the Company.
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The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings
(including the board meetings, audit committee meetings,

EENAFERTH

EZZEgeR FwHEZEBEEHR-

eR(BEREFEES

RE2ZE

remuneration committee meetings, nomination committee @@ZERRIAFAE)Z2HEFBELERTER
meetings and annual general meeting) held during the year  %l|/x :
are set out in the following table:

Number of Meetings Attended and Held

EECHERETHA
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
Name of Director EEng EXgeE ENZES%E FWZECe3 REZEE8E RRBEAS
Su Fanrong HAR 5/5 N/A TEF 3/3 3/3 11
Li Jinping Fe¥ 5/5 N/A FER N/A NEf N/A NEf 1/1
Yang Junlin B 5/5 N/A TEf N/A i N/A TiEF 11
Ye Qian (Note 1) BZ (i) 172 N/A T N/A T N/A T4 11
Zhang Dan (Note 2) K (Hfit2) 3/3 N/A TiEF N/A B N/A REF 0/0
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig 1/5 N/A 1ER N/A TEA N/A NER 11
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Note 3) ~ ERR(#/7#3) 3/3 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
Lam Yiu Kin MIRE 5/5 4/4 33 3/3 11
Feng Yaoling HR% 5/5 4/4 3/3 3/3 11
Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina (Note 4) {15 (ffit4) 2/2 0/0 1/1 1/1 0/0
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Notes:

1. Mr. Ye Qian resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1
August 2023.

2. Mr. Zhang Dan was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 August 2023.

3. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company,
and the vice chairman and a member of nomination committee
of the Company on 1 September 2023.

4. Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Company on 1 September 2023.

During the year and after the balance sheet date, two risk
assessment meetings were held to deal with risk
management issues of the Group. In addition, the executive
Directors and the management of the Group held a budget
meeting to review the business performance of 2023 and
planning of 2024 business after the balance sheet date.

The Company will provide a comprehensive and formal
induction package to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties,
responsibilities and obligations as a Director under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirement and ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business.
In compliance with the code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code during the year, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors
have attended programmes or seminar(s) organised by the
Company, other qualified professional bodies and regulatory
authorities.

GEX

1. EFRER-T-=FN\A—BRIRITES-

2. REKERZ-ZZ-_=FN\A—BEZTANTE
=

3. EREREAV-_ZF-_=FNLA—BEMBIIEN
TEE ARRERZBEERFMEER 2R
ERBERARNBIREEZEGRITFEIKE
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Furthermore, in order to ensure that the contribution of all
Directors to the Board remains informed and relevant, the
company secretarial department of the Company has from
time to time provided Directors with relevant reading
materials to keep them informed of the latest updates in
the relevant industry and market and the latest changes
on the legal and regulatory environment. The records of
the training received by the respective Directors are kept
and updated by the company secretarial department of the
Company. Areas of their training activities provided by the
Company, relevant professional bodies and regulatory
authorities are summarised as follows:

Legal, Regulatory and
corporate governance

BE RERMAEZSEREFTSFELARR
KIGEMER - RAR AR WERPI T ME
SRFARRRE T R RS NERBEITE LD
BHRITEBASERTERREN R E
- BEEMEX ZEILBCHAARRWE
MREMEFH -ARE  EHEFEXERERM
ERERBRERNEFRHNFIEDHRER
AR

Anti-corruption training
Group's policies/ and other professional

updates businesses development programs

HE ERR KEEH REFEINR

Name of Director ESi% TEEREN B/ $% HtEERRRR
Su Fanrong BAF / / /
Li Jinping XAt v/ / /
Yang Junlin B / / /
Zhang Dan (Note 1) KA (M) / / v
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig / v v
Lam Yiu Kin B / / v
Feng Yaoling i 2= / / /
Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina (Note 2) B (Hz2) / / v

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Dan was appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 August 2023.

2. Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Company on 1 September 2023.

3. Mr. Ye Qian resigned as an executive Director with effect from 1
August 2023.

4. Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman and a member of each of the
audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company,
and the vice chairman and a member of nomination committee
of the Company on 1 September 2023.
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Directors have disclosed to the Company at the time of
his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments and
the time involvement in those public companies or
organisations. In particular, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin holds seven
listed company directorships. The Board, however, still
believes that he is able to devote sufficient time to act as
an independent non-executive Director on the basis that
(i) he has confirmed that he is able to and will devote
sufficient time to discharge his duties and responsibilities
as an independent non-executive Director; (ii) he is not
preoccupied with any full-time work and none of his current
commitments as an independent non-executive director of
the other listed companies would require his full-time
involvement and he does not participate in the day-to-day
operations of those listed companies; (iii) with his extensive
experience and knowledge, particularly on corporate
governance acquired and developed from his background
and past experience (including his directorships in other
listed companies), he is fully aware of the responsibilities
and expected time involvement for independent non-
executive directors; (iv) he has held directorships for over
three years in the seven listed companies he worked; and
(v) he has demonstrated that he is able to devote sufficient
time to discharge his duties owed to each of the listed
companies he has held directorships by attending board
meetings and board committee meetings of these listed
companies during their latest financial year, as disclosed
in these listed companies’ latest published annual reports.

During the period form 1 January 2023 to 30 June 2023,
the roles of chairman and managing Director were combined
together and performed by Mr. Su Fanrong, and thus
deviated from the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. Further details of such deviation has
been set out in page 33 under the heading “ ”
above.
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Since 1 July 2023, the roles of chairman and managing
Director are separated and performed by Mr. Su Fanrong
and Mr. Li Jinping respectively. The chairman, Mr. Su
Fanrong, is responsible for formulating the overall strategies
and policies of the Company, while the managing Director,
Mr. Li Jinping, is authorised by the Board to manage the
day-to-day business operations of the Company in
accordance with business model and goals set up by the
Board and the guidance of the Internal Control Manual. He
is also supported by the full Board members and
management.

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023 and expiring on 31 December 2025, except (i) Mr.
Lam Yiu Kin, who was appointed for a term commencing
from 1 January 2024 and expiring on 31 December 2026;
(i) Mr.
commencing from 1 August 2022 and expiring on 31
December 2024; and (iii) Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina, who
was appointed for a term commencing from 1 September
2023 and expiring on 31 December 2025. They are all
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least
every three years at annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.

Adam Touhig, who was appointed for a term

The Board has established various board committees,
namely remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee to manage particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs and aid in sharing the responsibilities of
all the board committees have
formulated their specific written terms of reference in
accordance with the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code. The board committee members will also

the Board. Moreover,

from time to time report their decisions and recommendations

to the Board, if necessary.
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To comply with the Corporate Governance Code in relation
to the requirements of the establishment of internal audit
function and appropriate and effective risk management
and internal control systems, the Company has engaged
Moore Advisory Services Limited as the internal auditor of
the Company since 2015. The audit committee takes the
responsibility to review the risk management and internal
control systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal audit function and its other duties
under the Corporate Governance Code.

No corporate governance committee has been established
but respective board committees (as disclosed below) are
responsible for performing corporate governance functions
set out in the terms of reference in code provision A.2.1
of the Corporate Governance Code.

The remuneration committee has been established on 4
April 2005 and consists of four members with a majority
of independent non-executive Directors. The current
members are:

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman)

Mr. Su Fanrong (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Feng Yaoling

Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina

and its terms of reference are summarised as follows:

i) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy;
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to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management (if any), including benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments (including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment), or to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors, and also to consider salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management (if any)
for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to consider the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors and senior management (if any), having
regard to their achievements against the performance
criteria, and make recommendations to the Board;

to ensure that no Director or any of their associates
are in deciding
remuneration; and

involved that director’'s own

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the remuneration as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Corporate Governance Code.
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During the year under review, three remuneration committee
meetings were held by the Company and two written
resolutions of all members of remuneration committee were
passed and the works performed by the remuneration
committee included but not limited to: (i) the consideration
and review of remuneration of the Directors; (ii) the
consideration and recommendation of the terms of service
contract of Mr. Li Jinping as the managing Director; (iii)
the consideration and recommendation of the terms of
service contract of Mr. Zhang Dan as the executive Director;
(iv) the consideration and recommendation of the terms of
service contract and remuneration of Ms. Ho Shuk Ying,
Sabrina as the independent non-executive Director; (v) the
consideration and recommendation of the renewal of service
contracts for the executive Director, Mr. Su Fanrong and
the independent non-executive Director, Mr. Lam Yiu Kin;
and (vi) the review of the terms of reference of remuneration
committee. The emoluments of the Directors are
recommended by the remuneration committee to the Board,
having regard to individual performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, remuneration benchmark in
the industry and prevailing market condition. The attendance
record of the remuneration committee members at the
meetings held during the year is set out in the “
” on page 38 of this report.

The information in respect of emolument policy of the Group
is set out in the relevant sections of the “

” of this annual report and a separate report,
2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“2023 ESG Report”).

The nomination committee has been established on 4 April
2005 and consists of four members with a majority of
independent non-executive Directors. The current members
are:

Mr. Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Mr. Feng Yaoling (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yiu Kin

Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina
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Terms of reference of nomination committee are summarised
as follows:

i)

46

to review and monitor the structure, size and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, language, age,
religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service) of the Board at least annually in accordance
with the
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

Board Diversity Policy and make

to identify and/or nominate and then select or make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of
qualified individuals for appointment as additional
Directors or to fill Board vacancies in accordance with
the Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
by considering the skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that the individual is expected to bring
to the Board and what are their potential contributions
as and when they arise with due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Such appointment is subject
to the approval of the Board;

to make recommendations (taking into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and diversity need in
the future) to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors in accordance with the Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive;

to disclose the Policy for Nomination of a Director of
the Company, performed by the nomination committee
during the year. This
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the nomination committee to select and recommend
candidates for directorships during the year, setting
out the procedures for the appointment and
reappointment of Directors and board succession
planning consideration;

includes the nomination
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to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors annually;

to review the Board Diversity Policy concerning
diversity at all levels of Board members, including any
measurable objectives and progress on achieving
those objectives, and make disclosure of the policy
or a summary of the policy in the corporate governance
report annually;

for corporate governance issues, the nomination
committee should (i) review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management (if any); and (ii) develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and Directors;

the nomination committee shall make a statement or
report to the Board after each meeting about its
activities, the diversity of board members and the
process used for appointments, reappointment of
Directors under the Policy for Nomination of a Director
of the Company and board succession planning
consideration and explain if external advice has been
used and disclose and publish in the annual report or
other report as required subject to the Listing Rules
which is amended from time to time; and

to exercise such other powers, authorities and
discretion, and perform such other duties, of the
Directors in relation to the nomination as the Board
may from time to time delegate to it, having regard
to the Corporate Governance Code.

Vi)

vii)

viii)
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During the year under review, three nomination committee
meetings were held by the Company and two written
resolutions of all members of nomination committee were
passed and the works performed by the nomination
committee included but not limited to: (i) the review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (ii) the
review and assessment of the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; (iii) the review of the Board
Diversity Policy, the progress of achieving measurable
objective for 2023 and 2024 and other long-term measurable
objective; (iv) the recommendation and nomination of
Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company; (v) the consideration and
recommendation of the appointment of Mr. Li Jinping as
managing Director; (vi) the consideration and recommendation
of the appointment of Mr. Zhang Dan as executive Director;
(vii) the consideration and
appointment of Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina as independent
non-executive Director; and (viii) the review of terms of
reference of nomination committee.

recommendation of the

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company
has been recommended by nomination committee members
and approved by Directors and adopted on 18 December
2018.

The Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company is
summarised as follows:

° state the objectives of the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company, including ensuring the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business;

o emphasise the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors rests with the entire Board;
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set out the procedures for the selection, appointment
and reappointment of Directors containing the selection
criteria, including but not limited to considering the
potential contributions a candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

set out other factors, such as the present needs of
the Board for particular expertise skills or experience
and whether the candidates would satisfy those needs,
the requirement for the Board to have independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidates for independent
non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence
criteria or guidelines set out in the Listing Rules, the
suitability to the Company’s present needs for
particular skills or experience and whether it fits with
the Company’s culture, which are related to the
Company shall be considered to select a proposed
candidate;

list the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures;

state the requirement for the re-election of retiring
non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) who have served for more
than 9 years; and

state the board succession planning considerations
and periodical reviews of the plan.

nomination committee will monitor the Policy for

Nomination of a Director of the Company to ensure the
effectiveness and will discuss any revisions that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for adoption.

The

nomination committee will review the Policy for

Nomination of a Director of the Company and disclose in
this report on the Board’s succession planning considerations
to achieve the objective to ensure that it remains relevant
to the Company’s needs and reflects both current regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.
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The audit committee has been established on 30 December
1998. At present, it consists of three members and all of
them are independent non-executive Directors. The current
members are:

Mr. Lam Yiu Kin (Chairman)
Mr. Feng Yaoling
Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina

Terms of reference of audit committee are summarised as

follows:

i)

ii)

iv)

v)

50

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

auditor’s

to review and monitor the external

independence and objectivity;

to review and monitor the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before
the audit commences;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services. For this
purpose, “external auditor” includes any entity that is
under common control, ownership or management with
the audit firm or any entity that a reasonable and
informed third party knowing all relevant information
would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally;

to report to the Board, identifying and making

recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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Vi)

vii)

R EAWE

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year

report and,

if prepared for publication, quarterly

reports, and to review significant financial reporting

judgements contained in them.

In reviewing these

reports (if applicable) before submission to the Board,
the audit committee should focus particularly on:

any changes in accounting policies and practices;

major judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from audit;

the going concern assumptions and any
qualifications;

compliance with accounting standards; and

compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

in regard to (vi) above:

(a)

members of the audit committee should liaise
with the Board and senior management (if any);

the audit committee must meet, at least twice a
year, with the Company’s external auditor; and

the audit committee should consider any
significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the report and accounts, it
should give due consideration to any matters that
have been raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) (or
person occupying the same position), or external

auditor;

Vi)

vii)
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viii)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)
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R EAWE

to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk
committee, or by the Board itself, to review the
Company’s risk management and internal control
systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have effective systems. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s
response to these findings;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal auditors
(if any) or the professional firm performing internal
audit function and external auditor, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review and assess the annual internal audit plan of
the Company;

to provide comments and recommendations on the
enhancement of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

to meet with the internal auditor (if any) or the
representative of the professional firm performing
internal audit function, if required, to ensure that there
are no unresolved issues or concerns relating to risk
management and internal control function;
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XV)

XVi)

XVii)

R EAWE

to seek assurance from internal auditor or the
professional firm performing internal audit function that
internal control processes for risk management are in
place for the strategy determined by the Board;

to review the content of the confirmation made by the
management in relation to the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
prior to submission to the Board;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

xviii) to review the external auditor’s management letter,

XiX)

XX)

XXi)

XXii)

any material queries raised by the external auditor to
management about accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the management’s
response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response
to the raised in the external auditor’s
management letter;

issues

to review arrangements employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters. The audit committee should
ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair
and independent investigation of these matters and
for appropriate follow-up action;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing
the Company’s relations with the external auditor;

to report on all of the above matters in the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code to the
Board;

xxiii) to consider any other matters specifically referred to

the audit committee by the Board;
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xxiv) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board, and implement the
corporate governance policies laid down by the Board;

xxv) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and

xxvi) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and other related rules.

During the year under review, four audit committee meetings
were held and the attendance record of the audit committee
members at the meetings held during the year is set out
in the “ ” on page 38 of this report.

The works performed by the audit committee included but
not limited to: (i) discussion on and review of the half year
and annual financial statements of the Group (including but
not limited to financial and accounting policies and
practices); (ii) meeting with the representatives of the
professional firm performing internal audit function (the
internal auditor) to discuss risk management process and
the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group
and make recommendations in relation thereto; (iii) review
of the findings in respect of the internal audit service
together with the recommendations to the Company; (iv)
review of the internal audit plan prepared by the internal
auditor; (v) meeting with external auditor in the absence
of management to discuss any issue arising from the audit
and the other matters the external auditor may raise; (vi)
recommend the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
as external auditor of the Group and review of the audit
fees; (vii) respond to the external auditor their knowledge
of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the
Group; (viii) discuss matters in relation to the compliance
of law, rules and regulations, and accounting policies and
practice of the Group; and (ix) review of the audit service
plan prepared by the external auditor.
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The audit committee members also discuss matters falling
within its terms of reference with the external auditor in
the presence of the financial controller and the company
secretary from time to time as they request. When there
are uncertainties or ambiguities in the interpretation of
accounting standards in preparing the half year and annual
accounts that may likely to materially impact on the financial
position of the Group, the Company will prepare certain
analysis explaining the situation in relation thereto for the
audit committee members consideration and understanding.
The audit committee members have full access to, and the
co-operation of, the Company’s management in ensuring
that it is satisfied with the Company’s internal control
system.

During the financial year of 2023, the audit committee
members had made valuable and positive contribution, and
delivered independent and informed comments for the
formulation and implementation of the Company’s
operational strategies and policies. Apart from meeting with
the internal auditor, the audit committee members had also
reviewed certain areas of the risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the code of corporate
governance and reviewed the risk assessment reports,
required the management of the Group to confirm the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and advised them to pay attention to those areas
associated with high risks and take relevant measures to
further improve the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. The concerns raised and discussed
in respect of risk assessment and internal control systems
had also been put forward to the Board to consider whether
the measures to mitigate those risks are effective and
adequate during the year under review.
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The Board is responsible for maintaining, reviewing and
monitoring risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and to ensure their effectiveness. We
believe effective risk management and internal control
systems are essential for the success of the operation of
business and good corporate governance. The Internal
Control Manual, which sets out the guidelines for the
operation of the internal control system and risk management
system, had been adopted by the Company since 1999.
These systems cover all main aspects, including financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management. In
order to align with the amendments made to relevant laws,
rules and regulations, and further improve the risk
management and internal control systems, the Board is
responsible to review and improve the systems from time
to time, if necessary.

In fact, the Board has set out five objectives for the
management to achieve, details are as below:

1. Maximise profitability by increasing the profit margin
of the business segment and at the same time minimise
the production costs

2. Maintain a strong cash flow position of the Group
3. Enhance product quality

4. Attract new customers and develop markets for each
of the business segments

5.  Full compliance with laws, rules and regulations and
financial reporting requirements

Hence, a risk assessment on the existing or potential risks
that may affect the achievement of the above objectives
would be conducted from time to time, at least twice a
year by the management during the course of business
operation and management.
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The framework of the risk management and internal control ~ KNEBMEGEIENRANEPEEIE XG 2 ESR -

systems of the Group:

Establish risk

context Identify risks
BEIRBARN e b

Assess risks Monitor risks
ey g B e e

Evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s objectives
FHERETEKRASE R ERMREZANAREE MZE
Maintain appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Company
HRARNREE AR ERERE R A RS

Delegate the responsibility to the management to design,
implement and assess the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group

ZIREFETERRERGT - BheMaT (425 B # [z B I8 A A B L %
Delegate the responsibility to the audit committee to review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group
EREETERZESEHESNEEREERREEMAEL R
ESilop=py gk

Perform the duties delegated by the Board, that is, review
and oversee the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group

BOTEEFERTHRE IESNEERAEERAREEMAILER
ESilop=py gk

Discuss with the internal auditor the major findings in respect
of internal audit services and review the annual internal audit
plan

HEABZEEN A mABEZREOFAETER  UEHFAZANE
ZEtEl

Review the confirmation from the management of the Group
and the comments and recommendations from the internal
auditor in relation to the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems prior to submission
to the Board
EHNAEEEREEZREZGRIR R 2 MR R AIPZER 2 &
RigEs NERASENRREIRMAPEE R g ot
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Perform internal audit services for the Group
RAEBETAREZRE

Deliver internal audit reports to the audit committee and the
Board

MEZEZEENEFSRIANMBERRS

Meet with the audit committee members to discuss the major
findings and make recommendations to improve the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
HEZZEGNESH IREIEFAEERTRENSAEERR
EIBMAEE RGN ER

Assess the risk levels based on potential impact and likelihood
of risks in different aspects at least semi-annually
ROBFFRBEEZEMA LA ETR 7 EH AR 2 @2
E

Identify the material risks and discuss measures to mitigate
risks

Bl AR I 5w b R R O HE e

Give a confirmation annually on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of its business
unit/department and submit it to the audit committee
BFERASBEBEL FFAZAREENADEIT RGN AR
M WRREANTEREZES
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Two risk assessment meetings were held during the year
and after the balance sheet date, at approximately half
year intervals. The heads of the core business units/
departments of the Company and/or its subsidiaries
assessed the risk levels based on potential impact and
likelihood of risks in different aspects including business
risks, financial risks, compliance risks, operational and other
risks and environmental, social and governance risks that
may be exposed to. They filled out the risk assessment
form which was devised with reference to the guidance
entitled “Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic
Framework” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants before the meetings were held. The
management of the core business units/departments of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries participated in the risk
assessment meetings. The meetings aimed to identify the
material risks and to discuss the measures to manage risks.
Besides, the status and effectiveness of implementation of
internal control measures taken after the last risk assessment
meeting would be followed up in the risk assessment
meetings.

Subject to the Corporate Governance Code and terms of
reference of the audit committee of the Company, the
management of each core business unit/department of the
Group will provide the internal auditor with their written
confirmation annually in relation to the effectiveness and
adequacy of their risk management and internal control
systems for further review, comments and recommendations
and thereafter the audit committee will review the same
prior to submission to the Board. The internal auditor will
base on the nature and extent of the risks of each individual
core business unit/department to perform further review
and recommendations.

In addition to the above assessment process, the
management reports and discusses at the monthly meetings
the existing and potential risks that the Group has to face
and monitor, as well as business operation and cash flow
position of the Group.
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The Company has engaged Moore Advisory Services
Limited, as the internal auditor of the Company. During the
year, the internal auditor had (i) met with the audit committee
to discuss and provide recommendations on improving the
risk assessment process of the Group; (ii) discussed the
major findings in respect of internal audit services with the
audit committee and provided recommendations for
improvement on internal control; and (iii) delivered the audit
committee the internal audit reports regarding the main risk
areas of the business segments of the Group and internal
audit plan in relation thereto, etc. Apart from taking part
in advising the maintenance of effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems of the Company,
they also reviewed and monitored the internal operation of
the Group through the testing and controls performed after
arranging site visits to the two steel cord plants.

All relevant confirmations from the management provided
to the Board on the effectiveness and adequacy of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2023 had been received.
The audit committee members had reviewed those contents
of the confirmations and submitted the same to the Board.
The Board had reviewed and confirmed the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at the Board meeting.

A whistleblowing policy and system have been implemented
and set up since 22 March 2012 and revised from time to
time thereafter for employees and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns,
in confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the
Company.

The Company has established policies and system that
promote and support anti-corruption laws and regulations.
A detailed discussion on anti-corruption is set out in the
2023 ESG Report.
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In view of the foregoing, the Board had duly ensured the
review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
was conducted at least annually and the Board therefore
considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group were effective and adequate
throughout the year of 2023. However, there is room for
improvement in certain areas, for instance, the measures
of managing operational and other risks, such as product
quality control and new product development.

The Company complied with the Listing Rules, SFO and
other regulatory requirements regarding the handling and
dissemination of inside information. Directors and senior
management of the Company oblige to take all reasonable
measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure
requirement. Directors and senior management of the
Company follow the guidelines stipulated in Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy of the Company, which has
been adopted by the Board since 2011. Some principles
of dissemination of inside information of the Company were
stated in the said policy, details are as follows:

The heads of business units/individual departments identify
and assess whether a potential event or transaction may
constitute inside information. If that is the case the potential
event or transaction should be reported to the senior
management of the Company, through the company
secretarial department. The senior management will
consider with the chairman/managing Director whether the
information constitute inside information and report to the
Board. The Board will consider whether the information
may constitute inside information and whether disclosure
and/or trading halt would be required. If this constitutes
inside information, the company secretarial department of
the Company would have to arrange for trading halt, prepare
and publish an announcement after approval by the Board.
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Below flow chart illustrates the internal control and reporting UTREBRARISEBASEE ZNZPELE & H
system of the Company relating to inside information: MELGTIZE -

*
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Heads of business units/individual departments to identify and assess whether potential or
developing events may constitute inside information®

EBEBEN ERHPIEETHRIMTEAEMEERERDNEMH RS A LB ARE S

If yes, report to senior management of the
Company (the usual channel is through company
secretary of the Company)

W BAARTSREERE(—RESBBARAFATH
WERE)E®

Responsible senior management to consider with the chairman/managing Director whether the
information may constitute inside information

HEECEREEBHRESR ESHRBEEZRZENRRRBRARIES

If yes, report to the Board with supporting
documents through the channel of company
secretarial department of the Company. The
company secretarial department considers
potential disclosure implications (with assistance
of legal counsel if appropriate) and arranges for
collating and circulating relevant information to
the Board for further consideration
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The Board to consider whether the information may constitute inside information and whether
disclosure and/or request of trading halt would be required

MEEEZEZEHNTAUBRABERREERERER AFEERFLY =

If yes, the company secretarial department of
the Company arranges for trading halt and/or
preparing announcement
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Trading halt is made and announcement is published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after approval by the Board
RESESENIER  REBERENMERAR LB AEMTIEAS

The heads of business units/individual departments can consult * EREBENERIPIEEE B BB NS

the functional departments of the Company, if he/she has any HE AR A TR - bt 7] EA D B AR
query about what constitute inside information BEHFIEE—TER
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Directors or employees of the Group in possession of the
inside information must maintain strict confidentiality of
unpublished inside information until it is announced and
ensure that the strictest security of the information is
observed within the Company and its advisers and if the
necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained,
an announcement shall be made as soon as reasonably
practicable; or if inside information has been inadvertently
divulged, an announcement shall be issued immediately so
as to disseminate such information to the market as a
whole.

The Board monitors the inside information disclosure having
regard to the SFO and Listing Rules requirements and the
Company ensures that the dissemination of inside
information to the Shareholders and other stakeholders is
dealt fairly in order to avoid any person having a privileged
dealing position.

In order to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
practice and be in line with Code Provision F.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code requiring all listed issuers to
disclose their dividend policy in their annual reports, the
dividend policy of the Company has been adopted by the
Board on 18 December 2018, which includes setting
standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the Board
in deciding whether to recommend dividend out of the
profits and the amount of dividend per Share to be
distributed. The objective of the dividend policy is to reward
its Shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits, while
also ensure that enough funds are retained for future
prospects of the Company and strive for a balance between
the growth of the Company and the benefits of the
Shareholders.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, we
will take into account both the internal factors and external
factors.
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For internal factors, we will consider the: (i) profitability of
the Company; (ii) liquidity position and the availability of
free cash flow; (iii) capital requirements for growth plans
of the Company which may require funds preservation and
internal funds generation, both internal and external; (iv)
investment opportunities available with the Company; (v)
borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities, inorganic or otherwise; (vi) ability to
receive dividend from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associated companies; and (vii) Shareholders’ expectation
of a profitable return on their investment to maintain their
investment in the Company.

For external factors, we will consider the: (i) statutory and
regulatory requirements and restrictions on the dividend
distributions; (ii) contractual restrictions/restrictions in debt
covenants which affect the Company’s ability to pay
dividends; (iii) prevailing economic climate in the global
including the PRC that will affect the availability of profits
for dividend; (iv) emerging trends in the financial market
and business cycle of steel cord business that will affect
the growth and performance of the steel cord industry; and
(v) taxation consideration.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute
discretion in line with the dividend policy, or if the Board
are justified by the profits of the Company available for
distribution. If the share capital is divided into different
classes (if applicable), the Directors may pay interim
dividends on shares which confer deferred or non-preferred
rights with regard to dividend as well as on shares which
confer preferential rights with regard to dividend, but no
interim dividend shall be paid on shares carrying deferred
or non-preferred rights if, at the time of payment, any
preferential dividend is in arrears.

The Directors may also pay at intervals settled by them
any dividend payable at a fixed rate if it appears to them
that the profits available for distribution justify the payment.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the Board may recommend quantum of
final dividend payable to the Shareholders at its annual
general meeting in line with the dividend policy, based on
the aforesaid factors arrived at as per the audited financial
statements.
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The dividend shall be paid in the form of: (i) cash; or (ii)
a scrip dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and
partly in (ii) above. The Company may offer the Shareholders
the option of receiving scrip shares in lieu of cash, which
may enable the Shareholders to increase their investment
in the Company without incurring brokerage fees.

The Company shall endeavor to maintain a reasonable
dividend payout ratio, whether as interim and/or final
dividends, subject to (i) capital needs of the Company; (ii)
positive operating cash flows; and (iii) other financial factors
enumerated in the dividend policy. The Company may
recommend a special dividend in special circumstances.

The dividend policy would be subject to revision and
amendment under the Articles and the Hong Kong law,
including the Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules,
from time to time, on the subject matter. The Company
reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend
any of the provisions of the said policy.

In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.
issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with
the provisions laid down under the said policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc. shall prevail upon
the provisions hereunder and the said policy shall stand
amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular etc.

The dividend policy does not constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future
dividend and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare
a dividend at any time or from time to time, but only
represents a general guidance and information purpose
regarding the dividend policy. The Board reserves the right
to depart from and amend the said policy as and when
circumstances so warrant.
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To the extent permitted by applicable laws and the Articles,
subject to the dividend policy adopted by the Company
and in the absence of unforeseen circumstances, the
Company plans to distribute dividends of an amount not
less than 30% of the Group’s annual consolidated net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company for each of the
three financial years from 2021 to 2023 to the Shareholders.
The Board may propose a distribution plan with a higher
level of dividends based on the financial performance
growth from time to time. Details were also disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 21 February 2022.

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as
follows:

FEEBRERMERARATNEERN  BIE
RARERANKRERE  EETAIERNER
T RAAFFEE T —FE_T_=F=
EFREFEEFRARRRENDARARG RS
ABEAEBFEHLEEGF RN 230%H <58
EBRE - AAR B TEHRBEVEEELRIE
o REESREIRETE -FRAAAFA
MR- T -_—F-_A-+—HmMRE-

ERFEE BN/ BN TINEZBEE A
KIBEETRIEBANM ST ¢

Services rendered P4z it AR 7% HK$’000

BT T

Audit services EET IR 1,485
Non-audit services: IEF AT RS -

Interim review R HA 28 B 378

Others Eb 30

1,893

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting and financial reporting standards to enable the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
The Directors will be subject to statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards, select
suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and
estimates and prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

or error.
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The company secretary of the Company is a full time
employee of the Group. She reports to the chairman and/
or managing Director. During the year, the company
secretary of the Company has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

The Board Diversity Policy has been adopted since 2013.
Other than the elements of board diversity, in considering
the nomination of new directors, the nomination committee
members will subject to the Policy for Nomination of a
Director of the Company take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience and professional ethics of the
candidates, especially their experience in the business/
industry of the Group and/or other professional areas. The
nomination committee then put forward the recommendation
in respect of the above factors, where appropriate, to the
Board for consideration and adoption according to the
Policy for Nomination of a Director of the Company. The
attendance record of the nomination committee members
at the meetings during the year is set out in the “
” on page 38 of this report.

The Board Diversity Policy has been reviewed and
recommended by nomination committee members, approved

by Directors.
The Board Diversity Policy is summarised as follows:

° articulate the benefits of diversity, including gender
diversity, and the importance of being able to attract,
retain and motivate Directors from the widest possible
pool of available talent,
development of a broader and more diverse pool of
skilled and experienced employees and that, in their
skills, will prepare for senior management and board
position to enhance the quality of its performance;

and also be aware of
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° express the Company’s commitment to diversity at all
levels, including but not limited to gender, language,
age, religion, social-economic status, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge, thinking styles, know-how and length of
service, in particular focus on gender diversity,
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and skills and experience; and

° prepare a board skills matrix helping the Board to
assess the current mix of competencies and diversity
on the Board and identify any gaps that may exist.

The nomination committee will discuss and agree annually
all measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and recommend to the Board for adoption. At any
given time the Board may seek to improve one or more
aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.

The Company recognises that board diversity is an essential
element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
objectives and its sustainable development.

Our Board has a balance of tenure, diversity and age, with
an effective mix of experience and fresh perspective. During
the year, the Board was pleased to welcome a female
independent non-executive Director to join the Board on
1 September, 2023. In the future, the Board will continue
to pay due regard to the importance of diversity when
identifying potential candidates for directorships and will
continue to ensure that gender is one of the factors to be
considered by the nomination committee of the Company
when appointing directors.

68 SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELEBR AR

s BIRARBBINZIEEEZTIEHN
A BREARNMER - EE - Fik
REOHEWL XERBESR B
Tk BEER MENMTERER  XEE-
A BARSERL - BT M AR TSR - 45 R
EXEMRZ T BUIERITEFTNE
MEIA R IR BE MR B ¢ M

. ERERERSERAPEBGTHE
BTN RS AR - A T8
FAERTR -

RAZEEREFIRENHENETES T
LW ARGERR YRESSHEBRM-
EEFEENSRE EFEAE—EkZEN
EZKREZ T NFTERIZNEE -

ARARBIEZTR L TR FFERA AT
BRELHEAHEERNEZRR -

BPNEFSETH ZMFRITERE
TR BRMEE T RBRAMBH - FA -
EEEMABL U REBYIFRTEER =
T_FAA-BAMAEFEE -RK EFE
REBENEELESREARADERZ T
BRI WHEERERSREZEERN
REEEREENREZ -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN gy
ERERRE

At workforce level, the Group aims to create an inclusive and
safe working environment where everyone is treated equally
and free from discrimination and gender bias. All employees
are entitled to have equal opportunity in recruitment, career
development, promotion, benefits and training.

As at 31 December 2023, the ratio of men to women in
the workforce (including senior management) of the Group
was 84:16, the ratio of men to women in the office being
49:51 and the ratio of men to women in the steel cord
plants being 85:15. Due to the nature of work in the
manufacturing industry, it is relatively difficult to achieve
gender diversity across the workforce in steel cord business
of the Group. Nevertheless, the Group will actively promote
corporate principles and values which include equal
opportunity for men and women, and to reduce the reliance
on male workers through implementing different measures,
such as provision of additional machinery and equipment
as well as optimisation of the work process and thereby
enhance gender diversity. Details on the gender ratio of
the Group together with relevant data can be found in the
2023 ESG Report.

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with Shareholders. In order to maintain an
ongoing dialogue with Shareholders, the Company has
opportunities to directly communicate with Shareholders at
various annual general meetings and other general meetings
where Shareholders are encouraged to actively attend. In
addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman of
each of remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee were present to answer any Shareholder’s
questions at the 2023 annual general meeting (the “2023
AGM?”). The external auditor also attended the 2023 AGM
to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor’s independence etc.

Under Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance, the
directors are required to call a GM if the Company has
received requests to do so from members/Shareholders of
the Company representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the members/Shareholders having a right to
vote at GM.
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The request:—

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(c) may be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial
Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for
the attention of company secretary in hard copy form
or in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.
com.hk;

(d) may consist of several documents in like form;

(e) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

() must be verified with the share registrar of the
Company, and upon the share registrar’s confirmation
that the request is proper and in order, the company
secretary of the Company will notify the Board to
convene a GM by serving proper notice in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the registered
members/Shareholders of the Company. On the
contrary, if the request has been verified as not in
order, the requesting members/Shareholders will be
informed of this outcome and accordingly, a GM will
not be convened as requested.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to
access the Company’s website at http://www.shougangcentury.
com.hk for up-to-date information of the Company. They are
advised to send enquires and concerns to the Board:-

(@) by post at the registered office of the Company
situated at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre,
6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary; or
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(b) by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk for the
attention of our Investor Relations section.

The Company will make responses to members/Shareholders
and other stakeholders’ questions through their required
communication channels or deliver the relevant material
directly to their emails as soon as the information becomes
available online and make necessary arrangement for
direction of enquires to the Board, if required.

The company secretary forwards communications relating to
matters within the Board’s purview to the independent non-
executive Directors, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson
of the appropriate committee, and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquires
and complaints, to the appropriate Company’s executive.

Members/Shareholders and other stakeholders can read the
Shareholders’ Communication Policy in details at the
Company’s website for effective communication. The
Shareholders’ Communication Policy was devised and
adopted on 22 March 2012 and revised from time to time
thereafter to maintain candid and constructive communications
with Shareholders and potential investors. A Summary of

which is set out in the
” on page 74 of this report.

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if a
company is required to hold an AGM under Section 610,
the members/Shareholders of the company may request to
give, to members/Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the AGM, notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting.
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The Company must give notice of a resolution if it has
received requests that it do so from:—

(a) the members/Shareholders of the Company representing
at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members/Shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate;
or

(b) at least 50 members/Shareholders who have a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the
requests relate.

The request:-

(@) must be sent to the registered office of the Company
at Room 1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun
Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong for the attention of
the company secretary in hard copy form or in
electronic form to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;

(b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given;

(¢) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

(d) must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6
weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate;
or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting.

The written request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar who will check if the written request is proper
and in order, the company secretary will notify the Board
for including the resolution in the agenda for AGM.

Pursuant to Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 615 to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company’s
own expense to each member/Shareholder of the Company
entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same manner
as the notice of the meeting; and at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of
the meeting.
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If the request has been verified as not in order for the said
purposes, the members/Shareholders concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the proposed
resolution will not be included in the agenda for the AGM.

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a
member/Shareholder of the Company may request the
Company to circulate, to members/Shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive notice of a general meeting,
a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to
a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting or other business to be dealt with at
that meeting. The Company is required to circulate the
statement if it has received requests to do so from the
members/Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all the members/Shareholders who
have a relevant right to vote or at least 50 members/
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote.

The aforesaid members/Shareholders’ requests (i) may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form at the registered
office of the Company, at Room 1215, 12/F.,, Honour
Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
or in electronic form by email to ir@shougangcentury.com.hk;
(i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must
be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and
(iv) must be received by the Company at least 7 days before
the meeting to which it relates.

Pursuant to Section 581 of the Companies Ordinance, the
Company that is required under Section 580 to circulate a
statement must send a copy of it to each member/
Shareholder of the Company entitled to receive notice of
the meeting in the same manner as the notice of the
meeting and at the same time as or as soon as reasonably
practicable after it gives notice of the meeting. The expenses
of the Company in complying with the Section 581 need
not be paid by the members/Shareholders who requested
the circulation of the statement if the meeting to which the
requests relate is an AGM of the Company; and the requests
sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement
are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy
of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the
meeting.
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The Company puts a high regard for the aspect of investor
relations and recognises that establishment of investor
relations can enhance its transparency, maximise its value
and increase investors’ understanding of and trust in the
Company. Therefore, the management, as requested may
meet with Shareholders, potential and institutional investors
and research analysts. The management will also provide
them with the information of the latest business development
of the Group and answer their queries subject to the
Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy. The Continuous
Disclosure Obligation Policy is to help and provide guidance
to the Directors and employees of the Group to fulfill their
obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO while
allowing them to actively inform the market of the Company
development as well as how to make judgement as to what
inside information is and when disclosure is required. The
corresponding presentation materials subject to the
Continuous Disclosure Obligation Policy are made available
upon request, if appropriate. The procedures for handling
and dissemination of inside information have been illustrated
under the heading
” above.

The Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Taking into
account the multiple channels of communication and
engagement in place (details of which are listed below),
the Board considered that the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been properly implemented by the Company
during the year and remains effective.

The Shareholders’ Communication Policy is summarised as
follows:

° set out the channels for Shareholders to communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company
issuer, in which Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend and vote, subject to the Articles, at general
meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the general meetings;
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° state the Company’s information shall be
communicated to Shareholders through: (1) the
Company'’s financial reports (quarterly (if any), interim
and annual reports); (2) notices of general meetings;
(8) annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened; (4) all the disclosures
required to be submitted to the Company and The
Stock Exchange; (5) other corporate communications
on the Company’s website; and (6) the Company’s
website at http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk; and

o articulate the steps taken to solicit and understand
the views of Shareholders and stakeholders, including
(1) Board members in particular, either the chairman
or vice chairman of Board committees or their
delegates and appropriate management executives
should use their best endeavors to attend the AGM
to answer Shareholders’ questions; (2) the external
auditors are requested to attend the AGM and be
available to answer Shareholders’ questions about the
conduct of the audit and the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report; and (3) Investor/analysts
briefings and one-on-one meetings, media interviews,
roadshows (both domestic and international), marketing
activities for investors will be available as requested
in order to facilitate communication between the
Company, Shareholders and the investment community.

In order to further promote a sound communication between
the public, the Company fully utilises its website
(http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk) as a means to provide
the latest and updated information in a timely manner, and
from time to time enhances the homepage of the website
to reflect its current business development. Also, the
company secretarial department of the Company will
respond to the telephone enquiries and email or
correspondences from Shareholders or investors in respect
of various issues subject to the Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy. Any opinions, views and suggestions of
Shareholders will be solicited and brought to the attention
of the Board and management, if necessary.
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During the year, the 2023 AGM was held on 26 June 2023
to approve ordinary and special businesses of annual
general meeting. The resolutions of 2023 AGM were duly
passed by way of poll.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents. The Articles has been posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

76 SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELEBR AR

RAFE —E_=FERRAFASCR =
TC=FRAZTREAR RIERREF
RELNEBMFHER —T-_-FERR
FERE ORBRERARZERRGTALAERFR

BE_Z_=F+_"A=+—HIEFE AR
AlZBENMHUBEEAEE -SRANDEH
PAZR ) e B 52 P 0 48 i



The Directors herein present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2023
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 120 to 254.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK1 cent per fully paid ordinary share (2022: HKO0.73
cents), with total amount of approximately HK$19,584,000
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$14,389,000),
payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company at the close of
business on Wednesday, 17 July 2024. The final dividend
is subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after
31 December 2023 has not been recognised as a liability
as at 31 December 2023.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval of the proposed final
dividend at the Company’s annual general meeting to be
held on Thursday, 27 June 2024, the final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Wednesday, 31 July 2024.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong
time) on Wednesday, 17 July 2024, for registration.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 20 June 2024 to Thursday, 27 June 2024,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to be entitled to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting which
is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 27 June 2024, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, 19
June 2024.

Our mission is to be one of the top tier steel cord and
wire products manufacturers in the PRC capable of
consistently purveying premium quality steel cords and wire
products; and the evolution into a diversified metal product
manufacturer benefiting from a successful “Eastern” brand
recognition in the PRC and worldwide markets. Our ultimate
goal is to maintain long term profitability, strive for the
greatest return for Shareholders, deliver sustainable growth
in our stakeholders’ value under a prudent and manageable
capital structure and contribute to the economic and social
development of the communities in which we operate.

The Board is responsible for the development of business
models and setting of strategies, planning and development
of the Group. The strategies adopted by the Board will be
executed by the managing Director who will motivate the
staff to achieve the designated business goals and financial
targets under risk tolerance levels prescribed by the Board.
The progress of implementation of the strategies and
business goals will be reviewed and adjusted to respond
to the constantly changing market environment. Corrective
and follow-up actions are made regularly at the Board and/
or other management meetings throughout the years.
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The Group recorded net profit of HK$62,506,000 for the
year in compared with net profit of HK$47,858,000 from
previous year. Further details in respect of the fair review
of the Group’s businesses, please refer to the sections
“ ” and
of this annual report.

The Group’s businesses, results of operations and financial
position may be affected by risks and uncertainties relating
to the Group’s businesses. These risks and uncertainties
could result in the Group’s businesses, results of operations
and financial position to defer materially from expected or
historical results. The risks and uncertainties set out below
are known to the Group during the year under review:

1. As the majority of sales of steel cords of the Group
are domestic, the business and prospect of steel cord
segment is therefore highly dependent on the economic
performance of the PRC, in particular, the performance
of automotive and transportation industries and those
that involve high volume of road transportation for
commercial and industrial purposes, such as property
development and import/export. Therefore, any
downturn in the economy of the PRC may cause lower
demand for steel cords and hence may have material
adverse impact to the operations of steel cord
segment. Despite the majority of the Group’s customers
are radial tyre manufacturers located in the PRC,
however their customers, the vehicle manufacturers
that are located in the United States are affected by
the Sino-US trade debacle that has weighed in
sentiment.
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The average selling price of steel cords decreased
during the year under review, attributable to decrease
in raw material prices. The selling price of steel cords
is highly dependent on the supply and demand
situation in the PRC as well as the price of its major
material — steel wire rod; therefore, any change in these
two factors will have material impact to the steel cord
segment.

The revenue from sales to top five customers of the
Group accounted for 48.3% of total revenue of the
Group for the year under review. Any change to the
business operations, financial conditions or purchasing
patterns of these customers may have adverse impact
to the revenue of the Group.

The measures to manage the impact on these potential
risks and uncertainties are described in the heading

1

1.

80

” of the section of the “
” of this annual report.

The following factors may have negative impact on
the revenue and net results of the Group:

a. Change in the mix of revenue contributions, such
as the income of steel cord segment from sales
of steel cord for truck tyres, off the road truck
tyres and passenger car tyres;

b. Unfavorable economic development in the PRC
and worldwide markets that may have negative
impact on our steel cord segment;
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(continued)

c. Increased market and price competition for steel
cord segment; and

d. Failure to reduce production and operating costs,
in particular, certain unit fixed production costs
of steel cord segment can be lowered by increase
in sales and production volume.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the majority
of the revenue of the Group was denominated in RMB,
while there were some borrowings of the Group
dominated in HKD. Hence, any movement of the
exchange rate of RMB will affect to the results of
operations of the Group. Furthermore, the results and
financial position of the Group are denominated in
RMB but presented in HKD for reporting purposes,
therefore, the movement of the exchange rate of RMB
will have impact to the financial position of the Group
when translating the Group’s results and financial
position into HKD.

The Group is required to conduct an impairment
assessment on its property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. Any future impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed depends on various
factors including the general economic and financial
conditions, market competitions, prevailing product
selling price and market interest rates. Such impairment
loss to be recognised or reversed will have material
impact to the results of the Group, however, it is a
non-cash item and therefore will not affect the future
business operations and financial conditions of the
Group.
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The Group utilised a certain extent of bank borrowings
to finance its operations. As at 31 December 2023,
all bank borrowings are due within one year, therefore
the Group will be exposed to the liquidity risks of
inability of repaying these borrowings when due. The
Group is expected to service the debt repayments due
in 2024 by utilising cash generated from its operations,
refinancing from banks and other sources, with an
objective to gradually reduce the amount of interest
bearing borrowings of the Group. However, the Group’s
ability to generate sufficient cash to service its
outstanding debts and obligations will depend on the
operating performance of its various business segments
in the future, which will be affected by factors such
as the prevailing economic and liquidity conditions,
the demand of its products and prevailing selling
prices. Whether the Group can refinance its borrowings
also depends on a number of factors, including the
operating performance and financial conditions of the
Group, the prevailing economic conditions, the
prevailing credit policy of respective lender and the
liquidity of the financial markets. If the Group is unable
to service any of its borrowings due in 2024, this may
result in a default and will have significant adverse
impact to the financial position of the Group as the
Group will be requested to repay full or part of its
outstanding borrowings on an accelerated basis. The
management of the Company is seeking for various
banks refinancing to mitigate these potential risks.
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The financial key performance indicators of the Group for

the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 are

AEBRBE_T_=FM_

T-—_F#+—-H

=T HLEFENMBERRRIERES W

summarised as follows: T :

2023 2022 Change
—E-=F B F BE
1. Current ratio (times) BN (£F) 1.2 1.2 N/ATE A
2. Liquidity ratio (times) TEESLE(E) 0.9 0.9 N/ATEH
3. Gearing ratio (%) BELE(EAL) 23.1 21.8  +1.3ppEIH

4.  Average turnover period on F’ELIQEE X9 EEE(R)
trade receivables (days) 89 101 -12

5. Average turnover period on FERT BRI AEE (X)
trade payables (days) 113 105 +8

Current ratio (calculated as current assets divided by
current liabilities) of the Group remained at 1.2 times as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Liquid ratio (calculated as current assets less inventories
divided by current liabilities) of the Group remained at 0.9
times as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Gearing ratio (calculated as total interest bearing borrowings
less bank balances and cash (included pledged bank
deposits) divided by total equity) of the Group increased
from 21.8% at 31 December 2022 to 23.1% at 31 December
2023.

Average turnover period on trade receivables (calculated
as average trade receivables for the year divided by gross
revenue times 365 days) was 89 days for the year, shorter
by 12 days as compared to 101 days for the previous year.

AEER _ZT_=FRk_FT__F+_AH
T HNRBEER(URBEERURBE
ARt ) #2105

$%IF_?:_¢&:;::$+:H
8 LB 3T E) H57E0.9f%

$¢.5A777_¢-|— A=+—RZz&/E

KA RER@BERRITET LRE (BHEE
MRTERRARRERTRE )BT -

+ - A=1+—H#{21.8% L FZE23.1% °
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Average turnover period on trade payables (calculated as
average trade payables for the year divided by cost of
sales times 365 days) was 113 days for the year, which
was 8 days longer as compared to 105 days for the previous
year.

Further details regarding the above and other financial
information, please refer to the section “

” of this annual report. Key
performance indicators mean factors by reference to which
the development, performance or position of the business
of the Group can be measured effectively which we can
use to monitor progress against our strategies while figures
reporting under accounting standards could not serve such

purpose.

In the view that uncertainty is one of the main challenges
facing by the Chinese economy, the performance of the
Steel cord industry might be affected unless a strong cash
flow is maintained as well as cost saving and risk mitigation
measures are implemented in order. Details of future
development of the Company’s business, please refer to
the sections * ” and
“ ” of this
annual report.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of
the environment and community in which it engages by
controlling and minimising the generation of wastes, waste
gases emissions and sewage discharges, and at the same
time, complies with the applicable environmental laws, rules
and regulations on the prevention and control of wastage,
waste gases emissions and sewage discharges in Hong
Kong and PRC during the production process.
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In order to attach the importance to environmental
protection, the Group has formally adopted an Environmental
Policy (the “Policy”) since 2017, which has already been
implemented all along as part of the Internal Control Manual.
The underlying principle of the Policy is to reduce, reuse
and recycle resources used in the production lines and
offices so as to mitigate wastes and use energy and
resources effectively. Various measures have been
implemented within the Group and are monitored from time
to time, for example, measures on effective energy
conservation to reduce the use of energy, water and other
resources; measures on managing the reduction of wastes
and greenhouse gas emissions, etc. had been taken and
complied with since 2015. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is
set out in the 2023 ESG Report. The English and Chinese
versions of the 2023 ESG Report are available on the
Company’s website at http://www.shougangcentury.com.hk
and Stock Exchange’s website at https://www.hkexnews.
hk. You may access the 2023 ESG Report (i) by clicking
the “Investor Relations” section in the menu on the
homepage of the Company’s website; or (ii) by browsing
through the HKEX’s website.

In addition to the above measures, the Group has also
provided further trainings to Directors and employees and
has participated
organisations to emphasise the importance of environmental
protection and to promote occupational health and safety

in activities organised by various

in offices and production lines. To promote the concept of
occupational health and safety in offices and environmental
protection, we participated in the “Green Office Awards
Labelling Scheme” and “Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards
Labelling Scheme” organised by World Green Organisation
since 2017. These measures and trainings taken and
provided by the Group in supporting the Policy are based
on the needs and actual circumstances of the Group and
will be reviewed by the management annually.
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The Group is committed to comply with the laws and
regulations in which it operates its businesses. During the
year under review, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such
as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO,
Employment Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance, we have also
complied with laws of the PRC, including the Company
Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract
Law of the PRC, Enterprise Annuities Fund Measures,
relevant laws, rules and regulations in relation to child and
forced labour including the Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour and the Law of the PRC on the
Protection of Minors, as well as other environmental laws,
relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention
and control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission.
These laws, ordinances and regulations include but not
limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance, Environmental Quality Standard for Surface
Water, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to
Municipal Sewers, Measures for Hazardous Waste Operation
Administration and Solid Wastes of Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC etc. These environmental laws will have
impact on the Group’s operation since if we do not dispose
all wastages, discharges and waste gases properly, we
might have to bear heavy environmental protection tax and
so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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Furthermore, the Group has started to attach more
importance to gender equality and the protection of women’s
interests, as well as on the compliance with the related
laws of Hong Kong such as the Sex Discrimination
Ordinance, which the underlying principle is also enshrined
in the Basic Law, and related laws of PRC such as the
Law on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests
and Special Rules on the Labour Protection of Female
Employees. To acquire further knowledge on this topic, we
have nominated a representative to participate in activities
related to gender equality and gender mainstreaming
organised by the Women’s Commission (an organisation
which actively engages in activities in relation to women
empowerment and advancement) for the purpose of
understanding the current role and status of women in
business sector and different parties’ concerns on gender
mainstreaming. In the light of the need to address these
issues and to put our knowledge into practice, the “Policy
on Prevention on Sexual Harassment at Workplace” has
been formulated as a way of the Company to show respect
to our employees, especially female employees.

The Group also notes the importance on human resource
management in which the representative of the Company
has learnt from the seminar that good human resource
management on effective communication when handling
verbal violence at work and such message has been
Further discussion on human

management is set out in the 2023 ESG Report.

conveyed. resource

To ensure compliance with these requirements of laws, rules
and regulations, the Company has implemented an effective
internal control and approval procedures, and to obtain
high level oversight of the operation of various business
units. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant
employees and/or business units of the Group immediately.
Certain discussion regarding the Group’s compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group is also contained in the “

” section on pages 32 to 76 of
this annual report and the 2023 ESG Report.
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The Group’s success also depends on the support from
key stakeholders which comprise employees, customers,
suppliers, Shareholders, government and regulators, as well
as banks and financial institutions (creditors).

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been
serving the Group for a long period of time. However, young
talents are also provided with opportunities to work in the
Group. The Group does not only offer competitive salaries
and benefits, but also provide training programmes or
courses for the Mainland employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees
of the Company in order to further enhance their
management skills, expertise and knowledge, and at the
same time, make continual contribution to the Group.
Different activities such as family day, employee appreciation
dinner, sports events, etc. had been organised by various
business units of the Group for general staff together with
the management to participate in order to strengthen their
mutual cooperation and communication.

The major customers of steel cord segment are the radial
tyres manufacturers. Most of them have been customers for
more than 5 years and in return of their loyalty, we provided
them with good quality products and after-sale services.

The major suppliers of steel cord segment are the steel
wire rod suppliers. We have co-operated with most of the
suppliers for more than 5 years and have maintained good
relationship with them through regular face-to-face meetings
and visits in order to achieve cost-effectiveness and obtain
long-term commercial benefits.

The ultimate operational goal of the Group is to maximise
our Shareholders’ return. The major Shareholders are
Shougang Group and its controlled corporations, Bekaert,
Li Ka Shing Foundation and minority Shareholders. It is
grateful to have Shareholders who are being supportive to
the Group for a long period of time in particular the times
when market conditions are adverse and challenging.
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To set standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the
Board in deciding whether to recommend dividend out of
the profits to reward the Shareholders, the dividend policy
of the Company has been adopted by the Board on 18
December 2018, Details of which is contained in the
“ ” section on pages
32 to 76 of this annual report. For details regarding the
dividend distribution plan for the financial years from 2021
to 2023, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 21 February 2022.

Decisions made by the government and regulators can
significantly affect our Group’s operations. It is important,
therefore, for us to maintain good relationships with local
officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or
community developments that may affect our business. In
view of the need to maintain good relationships, we have
arranged occasional visits and face-to-face meetings
whenever necessary.

Banks and financial institutions are lenders of our Group
who help us to finance our businesses, asset purchases
and supply purchases. As a trustworthy borrower, the Group
always try its best to meet every payment deadlines
responsibly and consistently, and at the same time, we
strive to improve our financial performance so that we have
a greater chance to receive quality financing in the future.
Through regular meetings and visits, we have maintained
stable relationships with them.

For further details regarding the above, please refer to the
sections “ ”
and “ ”in this annual
report and the section *“

” in the 2023 ESG
Report.
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements

ATRAEENBEABMBERE 2B AE?
BERENBEREZ ZFEMREEALAE
B REZRAMBRE

of the Group, is set out below:

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

—E-=f —ZT--f CZE-—F Z—T-FTFE —ET-NE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BETT BETT BT T BET T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR R4 &% A 62,506 47,858 80,879 148,254 108,344
TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 3,312,149 3,327,430 3,973,724 3,371,907 3,143,918
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE5E (1,622,476) (1,669,687) (2,240,778) (1,726,336) (1,728,846)
TOTAL EQUITY RS HREE 1,689,673 1,657,743 1,732,946 1,645,571 1,415,072

Details of movements in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 16 and 17, respectively, to the

consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2023 are summarised on page 255 of this annual
report.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had any share
option scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 124 of this annual
report and in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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During the year, the Group made certain amount of
charitable donations.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Su Fanrong (Chairman)

Li Jinping (Managing Director)

Yang Junlin (Deputy Managing Director)

Ye Qian (Executive Director)
(resigned on 1 August 2023)

Zhang Dan (Executive Director)
(appointed on 1 August 2023)

Adam Touhig (Non-executive Director)

Lam Yiu Kin (Independent Non-executive Director)

Feng Yaoling (Independent Non-executive Director)

Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Independent Non-executive Director)
(resigned on 1 September 2023)

Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina (Independent Non-executive Director)
(appointed on 1 September 2023)

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with articles 101 and 102 of the Articles.
Messrs. Li Jinping, Adam Touhig and Feng Yaoling will retire
from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 106 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang
Dan and Ms. Ho Shuk Ying, Sabrina will retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Su Fanrong, Yang Junlin and Cheung Ngai serve
as directors of all subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report. Other than the above
directors, the persons who serve/had served as directors of
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and/or up to
the date of this report include Messrs. Dai Jihong, Li Meng,
Wan Chuante, Wang Liang, Yu Zhigao and Zhao Xuewu.
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The list of subsidiaries of the Company is set out in the
note 13 “ ” to the consolidated financial
statements and below.

° Rise Boom International Limited
o Endless Inc.

° Messiah Investments Limited

° Online Investments Limited

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Apart from information disclosed under the heading

«

”

and in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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° Online Investments Limited
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As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$244,763,000.

As at 31 December 2023, save for the interest of the
Directors in the Shares set out as below, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests and short positions in the Shares, debentures or
underlying Shares or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred therein or which were
required to be disclosed herein pursuant to the Model Code.

Total number of

R-E-_=F+-HA=+—8" Tﬁ’ATMWU%
291 ~ 297 N 299K 2 MRERTE » AR A5
IR 2 g A A1244,763,0007T °

R-FB-_=F+-_A=+t—8 BREFNHEA
2B (BREFBEN TN MEEERA
RAIRSITRABRAR RS EETEEEE
(RFEHF LB KRPIEXVE 2 RE) 2 RHD - &
REIRERN T BHEAREES MPERK
BIEXVERSET7 8D BR A& A A R) R B X Py 2
EEms AR (BERER %&H B IGRBIR
ERGIEREFERE 2R RAR)  HAR
B MR RDE35215F .:EEMFEHF EACIY)
7B AR BARE ST ABR AR R 2 (B #E s
KRR o

Approximate% of
the total number Capacity in which

Name of Director Shares held of issued Shares interests are held
WEBERTR®E

EENA BERGES HYBE2BEML BEEERZZEH

YANG Junlin 226,000 0.01 Beneficial owner

BEM EmmEa A

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief B TUEXEEEIIN R-_ZTE-_=F+_A4

executives and their associates had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, debentures or underlying Shares
or any of the Company’s associated corporations at 31
December 2023.

TR YEEF RRTRABRERE
A AR RS E A REOEE 2 (A
[ERERE SRR D 2 B BR R
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No Director or his entity connected had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or
contract or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract
that is significant in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

During the year, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors is considered to have interest in the businesses
which are considered to compete or likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

Name of entity
whose businesses are

RAEEABZEEREHENERRARRK
EAERIM B R R ATE] LA AN SR B X 75 7]
BERZRS RFEXREHT  TwmEKKME
EoBEAAESERD-

REBAKINN RFEEABE L FAER
REEMREMERF D EHNERERITHRE
ZEk=gol

WAERR BT XAEESN R TR
£8.1005  BLE BRI A SR E LI
BFATEEAET (THEELER HEY
A HEE -

Description of businesses of

considered to compete or the entity which are considered to
likely to compete with the compete or likely to compete with Nature of Director’s

Name of Director businesses of the Group

the businesses of the Group

interest in the entity

HEBBERARAREEY
BREBFATEBERTZ BEREAREEBBARTER
EENEA ERER TRBRHRT CEREKEN EERERCESNE
Adam Touhig (Note) Bekaert Manufacturing and sale of steel wire Senior vice president of rubber
and/or cord products reinforcement Asia in Bekaert
group
Adam Touhig(#f:#) Bekaert BEREENGAR/SINERE R Bekaert £ B MR GBI R 2

Note: Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by the Company
and Bekaert in September 2006 and further agreement between
Bekaert and the Company in February 2015, Mr. Adam Touhig
was nominated by Bekaert group as a non-executive Director and
was appointed on 15 January 2021.

In general, directors should owe their fiduciary duties
towards the company as a whole and as such the Board
believes that all Board members shall act in the best interest
of the Company and its Shareholders when they discharge
their duties and responsibilities as Directors.
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As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following parties had an interest or long
position or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were required pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,

to be entered in the register referred therein:

Total number of

Approximate% of

RZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H BESHA"
THATRARRRIRMDSKABARGPHEEER
BEAEMBE G EXVEEE2MID SR E T
NBEBE s ERITEIAE R EREE
% RHE G365 F RN RIBZ GO FE
LRI RIORE ¢

Shares/underlying the total number
Name of Shareholders Shares held of issued Shares  Capacity in which interests are held
FisR1a WIEERTRG
RREE HERRAEHE BYE AN HEREZZHHA
Fair Union 894,349,179 45.42  Beneficial owner
EnfiAA
Shougang HK 894,349,179 45.42  interests of controlled corporations "ete ()
EpE REAE 2 Emh
Shougang Group 978,846,451 49.72  Interests of controlled corporations "t @
BHEE XLz #mEe
Bekaert Combustion 250,000,000 12.70  Beneficial owner
EnfiAA
Bekaert 250,000,000 12.70  Interests of controlled corporations "ot ©
TR LA 2 0
Li Ka Shing Foundation 100,000,000 5.08  Beneficial owner
RHESE ERfBA
Notes: Mt -
(1)  As Fair Union is Shougang HK’s wholly-owned subsidiary, by virtue (1) A RAFair UnionBBIXEE B2 2EWEB A
of the SFO, Shougang HK is deemed to be interested in HARBESRBAEGRY  5EE /%?)HEF%EAFalr

894,349,179 Shares held by Fair Union.

(2)  As Shougang Group is the ultimate holding company of Shougang

HK and Capital Industrial Financial, by virtue of the SFO, Shougang
Group is deemed to be interested in 894,349,179 Shares held by
Fair Union, the wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang HK, and is
deemed to be interested in 11,770,000 Shares held by Lyre Terrace
Management Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Capital
Industrial Financial. By virtue of the SFO, Shougang Group is also
deemed to be interested in 72,727,272 Shares held by Jingxi
Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Fund, which is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group.

UnionfT#% 75 2 894,349,179 A% {0 FR B #E2S ©

@ EBHNEEAEZEELNEEERMZERIERA
A MRERBF S RBAEEN EWEERRE AR
Fair Union( BB X BB 2 2EWB AR MEF
B,2894,349 17908 I h P HE B #E s - MR B
REAEEBARAT(AEBEEERZZENBR
A FT#E A 211,770,0000% B (D P B 42 - A
RRAERDERNES 2 2EWB AR mMEH
EeEHEEZ2ENB AR BURIEES K
HEEN EMERER AR RAERIEFE 2
72,727 2728 R D P HE B s o
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Notes: (continued)

(3) By virtue of the SFO, Bekaert is deemed to be interested in
250,000,000 Shares held by Bekaert Combustion, which is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bekaert.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “

” below and/or in note 35(i)(a) to the
financial statements, at no time during the year had the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any of
its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or
any contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

The Company is committed to practicing and achieving a
high standard of corporate governance and the Board has
approved and adopted the SCHL Corporate Governance
Code on terms no less exacting than those set out in the
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. Further
information on the Company’s Corporate Governance Code

is set out in the
on pages 32 to 76 of this annual report.
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Set out below are particulars of repurchases by the AKREERAD TR FTEE[DHE@mIRAEE
Company of its own ordinary shares made on the Stock  AAERIRHIAOT :
Exchange during the year:

Consideration per Share Aggregate

BRAE consideration

Number of Highest Lowest paid

shares 1] RIE ERERE

Month of repurchase in 2023 repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
“ECZERERGZAS BEROHE B B B
August NA 158,000 0.175 0.172 27,506
September A 368,000 0.184 0.163 64,528
October +A 526,000 0.18 0.168 92,194
November +—A 1,080,000 0.195 0.168 196,216
December +=A 10,522,000 0.243 0.196 2,318,958
Total BE 12,654,000 2,699,402

All Shares repurchased in 2023 were cancelled up to the HBHZEAFRAH FAIEE_ZT-_=FELRKHD
date of this annual report. KEFEH -

The above repurchase was made for the purpose of LilEIFERE M AENEREEEEFEN
achieving an increase in the consolidated net asset value  sK&R&F]-
and/or earnings per Share.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any B EXE BN RAFBREEAAR QAT SHHET

of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any B ARWEEE HEXBELEAQRNE
listed securities of the Company during the year. Al EHES -
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The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage in respect of legal
actions brought for committed or alleged wrongful acts
against the Directors and officers of the Group throughout
the year, but exclude any criminal, dishonest or fraudulent
acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director, secretary or other
officer or auditor of the Company shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against any liability, loss or
expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or
omitted to be done by him as Director, secretary, officer
or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in
connection with any application in which relief is granted
to him by the court from liability in respect of any such
act or omission or from liability to pay any amount in
respect of shares acquired by a nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the report of the directors
prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance with
Section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
standard. These transactions mainly relate to contracts
entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business which were negotiated on normal commercial
terms and on an arm’s length basis and the Company has
complied with the applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules. Further details are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements. The following connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions were recorded during
the year:

98 SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELEBR AR

RER ARARERAEBZEERITTRAR
AERISRBRTRETBBEERMME-
AHEXMEFITRKEZ) MmO ERT
B ZHEENEERTBRASEERE

ERRMARTE BREF MEHAQFHM
TTRABIZBEMIERES WERARF
HITHA B BRI IMEA R F el =52
RFHPERNEEERER WEIARFEM
TTIRA B R BEMELSBERIER Z1TTR M
BREHRPRABELRERIELZITRAZE
FEHRAR AR B ARBRO TMENKIBZE
EREBT  BEEEFRE LR BRI EREE
RAEEZEAEL BR&FAS AARAR
RIEETESHRE-

A E I R RS ISR A e & B
FATOGER R TR ESREZEETEREER
B A TEBIE391(1)(a) E BB A2 -

AEBERBEA S ENPRSEEA
TIZALTRINETRG - WERXRSHEEF N
AEER—REEEXEHBRETIE —REBE
RERFPRAEFMAI LB RARRIEE
S ETRARERRE o E— T FBRIINY
BIREMFESS5 « A T SRANFE ok B
RGRFERERS



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERESE

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the
Subscription Agreement with Jingxi Holdings (a connected
person of the Company) whereby the Company conditionally
agreed to issue and Jingxi Holdings conditionally agreed
to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds
carry the Conversion Rights to convert into the Conversion
Shares at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion
Share (subject to adjustment), and the Convertible Bonds
will carry an interest rate of 4.0% per annum and will mature
on the third anniversary of the issue date of the Convertible
Bonds. Assuming the Conversion Rights are exercised in
full at the Conversion Price, 454,545,454 new Shares, being
the Conversion Shares, may be allotted and issued to Jingxi
Holdings subject to the Conversion Restrictions, representing
approximately 23.64% of the total number of issued Shares
as at 31 December 2019 and approximately 19.12% of the
total number of issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares, assuming that there
is no other change to the total number of Shares.

The net proceeds from the Subscription Agreement of
HK$149,000,000, are expected to be used as follows: (i)
as to approximately HK$37,300,000 for repaying interest-
bearing borrowings with higher interest rate of the Group;
(excluding borrowings provided by Shougang HK and its
related party(ies)), (ii) as to approximately HK$110,000,000
for funding the capital investment for the TESC Phase Il
Project subject to the construction cost and time needed
to supplement the production need for both TESC and
JESC; and (iii) as to approximately HK$1,700,000 being the
remaining proceeds for supplementing general working
capital.

RZZE—NEF+ZA+NB AR RERAE
R(AABEEAT)FILRBHZE Bt - K
ARBBRGREZETMRAEREGERER
BASERS A 5%150,000,0007T H) 7] #i%
B - A MREFMTERE TERARES
AR AR A% 1 %6 0.33 7T (] T H B ) ik Bk
A& 19+ K o] ¥ A% & 5 8 1R F I R4.0%5T B
BN R ESEHITABRE=-FAFTEH
FH - B BR RN REEREITE UK
B REEE M E) - 454,545,454F% %
A 0 (BN AR AR 1 ) AT 72 85 A BRIl 47 PR T 25 B
RBETTRAZR HERZZT—NF+=A
=+ —HEBTRHBEH23.64% A RED
fe R EITHRRIRGD IERES B BITRGM B EL
19.12%

R B 15 &% P15 3N 1B )% 58 % %149,000,0007T
FTEEAF E T %I A& ¢ (i)4) 78 37,300,000
AREEAEBENEEaNiEER(EE
BEEREBEFRENDERRIN ¢ ()HAEE
110,000,000T AR AEEMEF BB M E
RIEEREE S R RA A R T
MEF REER S 2 A EFKETRER i)
FT1S FAIE £ 58 £ 78 #1,700,000 7T F A i 78 —
MEBEBES -
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The reason for entering into the Subscription Agreement
as this is an appropriate means of raising additional capital
of the Company considering the recent market conditions
which represent an opportunity for the Company to obtain
the funding at reasonable cost for construction of the brass
wire production lines, enhance its working capital and
strengthen its capital base and financial position. Also, it
will not have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding
of the existing Shareholders and the interest payable under
the Convertible Bonds is more stable and predictable than
bank borrowing. The Subscription by Jingxi Holdings
reflects the confidence and commitment of Shougang Fund
towards the long-term business development of the Group
which is beneficial to the long-term business development
of the Group.

Jingxi Holdings is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shougang Group. Shougang Group
Shareholder interested in an aggregate of 906,719,179
Shares, representing approximately 47.15% of the total
number of issued Shares before the date of the Subscription

is a controlling

Agreement. Therefore, Jingxi Holdings is a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

On 11 February 2019, all conditions precedent under the
Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and the
completion of the Subscription Agreement took place and
the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$150,000,000 were issued to Jingxi Holdings.

Details of the Subscription Agreement were also disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 18 December
2018 and 11 February 2019, and in the circular of the
Company dated 11 January 2019. The Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved, confirmed and ratified by the independent
Shareholders on 1 February 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fully utilised the
aforesaid proceeds according to the proposed usage as
set out in the circular of the Company dated 11 January
2019.

On 11 January 2022, the Company received a notice from
Jingxi Holdings to extend the maturity date of the
Convertible Bonds by one year to 11 February 2023.

Besides, the Company received a conversion notice from
Jingxi Holdings in relation to the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Bonds to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000
at the Conversion Price of HK$0.33 per Conversion Share
(the “Conversion”). Accordingly, on 7 February 2022,
72,727,272 Conversion Shares were allotted and issued to
Jingxi Holdings in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Convertible Bonds. Details of the Conversion of the
Convertible Bonds were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 7 February 2022.

In February 2023, the Convertible Bonds matured. The Company
has made full redemption of outstanding principal amount of
HK$126,000,000 of the Convertible Bonds, in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds.

On 13 April 2023, (1) Bekaert and (2) TESC and JESC entered
into a patent license agreement (the “Patent License
Agreement”), pursuant to which Bekaert, being the owner of
a patent (the “Licensed Patent”) for invention registered in
the PRC for certain steel cord constructions (the “Licensed
Products”), agreed to grant to TESC and JESC a non-
exclusive, non-transferable license under the Licensed Patent,
without the right to grant sublicenses, to manufacture and
sell the Licensed Products only in the plants of TESC and
JESC (the “Licensed Rights”). Unless terminated earlier in
accordance with the terms of the Patent License Agreement,
the Patent License Agreement shall be effective retroactively
from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

R_ZE_ZF+_A=+—0B AEEZRE
ARFARR-—T-NF—A+—HZBHAHM
FHEREK LA B HRIREEEA -

RZE-—F—A+—8  ARFIRIIRAEE
fRr@an BrERESsNIPAER—F2
—E-=F-A+—H8H-

BN R ARWEI R AERE L BEITE AR
AR (8 25 B 75 1) 83 30 0 9 B8 038 A - DAIRIRAR (B
BERBRRGBE0ISTERANSE LD
#24,000,0007T 2 AT AR E A ([ Z @) |)o
At RZEZ_F_A+tH CiEENH
REH 2GR GG R REZER D B R EIT
72,727 272[R R0 o B BBZE R AT AR E
HFZHBA2EARARRIHHA—S 41
S =N:0l/N=

RZZE-_=ZF_F a#REEEH - XA 7]
ERBAIBKRESFNERRGH BE8ED
KREBKSFB1126,000,0007T 2 Al A% &
#0

RZEZ=ZFWMNA+=H" (1)Bekaertf(2)[
MR KBRS B A e ([ B ET
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Pursuant to the Patent License Agreement, TESC and JESC
shall pay to Bekaert a royalty which is calculated by
multiplying the net sales amount of the Licensed Products
by the applicable tiered royalty rate. Different specified
royalty rates are payable for different average monthly sales
volume of the Licensed Products. Reports about the sales
of the Licensed Products sold are required to be submitted
by TESC and JESC to Bekaert on a quarterly basis.

The historical actual transaction amounts paid by the Group
to Bekaert for the grant of the License Rights for the
financial years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
were HK$845,000, HK$1,452,000 and HK$2,177,000
respectively. As the actual transaction amounts on an
annual basis are less than HK$3,000,000, the grant of the
License Rights historically constituted a de minimis
transaction of the Company under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules. The annual cap of the royalty payable by the
Group to Bekaert under the Patent License Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is RMB9,600,000.

The entering into of the Patent License Agreement is part
of the Group’s ordinary and usual course of business, and
is consistent with the Group’s business development
strategy. It is expected to enhance the Group’s market
presence, experience and reputation, and improve the
competitive strength of the Group in connection with its
steel cords business, and will thereby bring positive impact
on the performance of the steel cord segment of the Group
in the long run. Under the Patent License Agreement, the
Group will be able to continue manufacturing and selling
the Licensed Products. To expand and meet the rapid
development and international market needs, the Group
has been adhering to providing customers with stable and
quality products. The License Rights enables the sales of
the Group’s products, and lays a solid foundation for the
smooth development of its global business.
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TESC and JESC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. Bekaert is a substantial Shareholder and
hence, is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
the transaction contemplated under the Patent License
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction
and is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and the independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Patent License Agreement were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 13 April 2023.

On 1 December 2023, the Company entered into a finance
services agreement (the “Finance Services Agreement”) with
Shougang Finance in relation to the provision of the deposit
services and settlement services by Shougang Finance to
the Group. The term of the Finance Services Agreement is
from the date of the Finance Services Agreement and
continue up to 31 December 2025 (both dates inclusive)
(the “Term”).

In respect of the deposit services, the Group will deposit
funds into the deposit accounts in Shougang Finance in
return for interest income. The daily maximum balance of
deposits placed by the Group shall be not more than
RMB15,640,000 during the Term.

As regards the settlement services, Shougang Finance will
provide payment and collection services and other ancillary
services related to settlement business in accordance with
the Group’s instructions. No service fee will be charged by
Shougang Finance for the Group to utilise the Settlement
Services.
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The reason for entering into the Finance Services Agreement
is that Shougang Finance (1) provides settlement services
to the Group on a free-of-charge basis; (2) has in-depth
knowledge about the operation of the Group and could
provide more convenient and effective services to the Group
than other financial institutions; (3) is a non-bank financial
institution licensed by the National Administration of
Financial Regulation with customers primarily comprised of
members of the Shougang Group, which means it is
exposed to lower risks than other financial institutions and
hence could offer better security to the deposits of the
Group; (4) offers the deposit interest rates will be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered by commercial
banks in the PRC to the Group for comparable deposits,
which would enable the Group to generate interest income
therefrom; and (5) is the financial institution under the
Shougang Group, and the credit rating of Shougang Group
as rated by Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd., a credit
rating agency recognised by the People’s Bank of China,
for the year 2023 was “AAA”, which evidenced that
Shougang Group has healthy cash flow and strong capability
to repay its debt; hence, the credit risk in relation to placing
deposits with Shougang Finance, would be relatively low.

Besides, the Finance Services Agreement does not preclude
the Group from using the services of other financial
institutions. The Group has the discretion to select any
major and independent commercial banks in the PRC as
its financial services providers as it thinks fit and appropriate
for the benefit of the Group.

Shougang Group is a controlling shareholder and a
connected person of the Company. As Shougang Finance
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group, Shougang
Finance is an associate of Shougang Group and is therefore
a connected person of the Company. As such, the
transactions contemplated under the Finance Services
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company and are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but are exempt from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and the
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the Finance Services Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 1 December
2023.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
continuing connected transactions as set out above during
the year have been reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has issued an unqualified letter
containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group

Institute of

in the paragraph above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.
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The following table sets out the actual transaction amount
and the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2023
in respect of the above continuing connected transactions:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Continuing Connected Transactions

TRIIEHE LABSERERSGBEE T =
FT- A=t HIEFEZERRZGEENF
ELER
BE-_E_=F+"A=1—-HLHFE

Transaction

amount Annual cap
RHEH FELER

Patent License Agreement BRI HhaE

Finance Services Agreement ERRSHE

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group
is based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry.
Remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are generally reviewed annually. The
emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee, having regard to individual performance, the
Company’s performance and profitability, remuneration
benchmark in the industry and prevailing market condition.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year and as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report.

For the year under review, the revenue from sales to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
48.3% (2022: 57.1%) of total revenue of the Group and
the revenue from sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 12.6% (2022: 21.3%)
of total revenue of the Group.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 49.8% (2022: 52.0%) of total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest
supplier, included therein amounted to approximately 16.9%
(2022: 18.0%) of total purchases of the Group for the year.

Save for disclosed above, as far as the Directors are aware,
neither the Directors, their associates, nor those Shareholders
(who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Further details related to relationship with customers and
suppliers, please refer to sections

in this annual report and
in the 2023 ESG Report.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution
for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Su Fanrong
Chairman
Hong Kong

18 March 2024
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To the Members of
Shougang Century Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Century
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), which are set out on pages 120 to 254, comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

B o R K 38
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights
° Impairment assessment of trade receivables

BAEREFESTMASHMAKFTBET
ERDETRG - RPEZFER TAENE
FEEARSE [ ZBE AT RS M B RETA
ENEE RO EE— P -

BPRE - PP EGNERRET R LE
B ABMNET B RIRHER -
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RETFRESRERMNERHE  REYH
AHHEEMBRRNEARDEENTIR &
LEFRERMEBFBERGEUBHRRIEE
TARETREEN BT EHELIAEREH
BEENER -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

(1) Impairment assessments of property, plant and equipment and land use rights

(1) Y% - BERREELEHERETG

Refer to Note 4(b), Note 17 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements

F2HRE RGN E4(0) - WEE17 KHizE20

As at 31 December 2023, the Group owned certain
property, plant and equipment and land use rights
amounting to HK$1,251,122,000 and HK$124,604,000,
respectively, which relate to the steel cord segment.
RZZZ=F+=-A=+—H  EBESEEEYX KF
R 3% 8 £ b (56 FR#E 55 Il /378 %61,251,122,000T K B ¥
124,604,0007T - HHEHFRGZ D HAR o

Taking into considerations the results of the steel cord
segment for the year ended 31 December 2023 as
well as a comparison between the Group’s market
capitalisation and its net assets value, management
identified impairment indicators existed for the relevant
property, plant and equipment and land use rights.
BEEHEZE S -_=F+_A=T—HILFEMEFHEH
BERRALLE SEECTEMHEFEEE  BEE
BETYER BWEARRBEIMERBENRERRZ -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights included the
following:

BAHBEEERENEYE  BERREELMER
BREZ FIRT B

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors such as
complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.
BATERTERENEYE  BMERREELMER
BEORER A BDIEGIMFT (B2 - WBBZEBMLET T
EMHMREENEMAERREZ (PlIEME - T8
M BE REERRRSFENSURE) NIRRT
fit B R EEER R ) WA
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPANESNMEERRENSE

Management grouped the assets of the Group at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows that are largely independent of the cash
flows from other assets or groups of assets (Cash-
Generating Units) and performed impairment
assessments in respect of the two Cash-Generating
Units of the steel cord segment identified using the
value-in-use method. This involved significant
judgement in determining the assumptions used in
the calculations. The key assumptions included:
ERER BERENEENRRENRE HUEBFEMNRE
MA ME LB EREBDBILNEAMEESNEEANIR TR
ANBReELEN) - ERERNNEREREEEZHME
,aﬁﬂMWﬂﬁiﬁiﬁuﬁmeﬁmﬁtE¢ FHERE
B ERANRRENEAHEG R FERBREE:

o rate of annual increment for the steel cord price;

. EARGERNOTERE

° rate of annual increment for the sales volume;
and
e HEEMFHERE R

° discount rates
B IR K

The impairment assessments prepared by management
were subject to oversight and review by the directors
of the Company. Based on management’s assessment,
no impairment on property, plant and equipment and
land use rights was considered necessary as at 31
December 2028.

EREREMOMETHR BEAREFNEENEE R
BERENNG R_ZE_=F+_A=+—BIEH®D
¥ BB KRR T AR RRE

We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the impairment assessments of property, plant and
equipment and land use rights performed by
management, including the selection of valuation
method, determination of recoverable amounts
and key assumptions made in the future cash flow
forecasts.

B EMAATEREHEYE  BENMREE L
& AR RE R B S FIHE bE - BIEFTE AR
EE . AIWEeENEEARRKBRRERAFH
RS IRER -

We evaluated the composition of management’s
future cash flow forecasts used in their value-in-
use calculations, and the process by which they
were prepared.
BAFETEREEEABEFEREANARERS
METR AR - A R ERELTERARE -

We involved our internal valuation expert in
assessing the appropriateness of the methodologies
used and the reasonableness of key assumptions

applied.
BAER PN AT EERTEAR A ENEE M
KATEARAREBRNGEN-
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balances and the estimation of the recoverable
amount of the Cash-Generating Units of the steel cord
segment is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, as well as significant judgements involved
in the selection of assumptions used.

B IZBECARERNEREUANARCELSE
AT B SRS R EXRHE (BEFEEREBERR
RrRE) -

We evaluated the reasonableness of management’s
key assumptions made in the forecasts. For steel
cord price, we compared the long-term steel cord
price used in the forecasts against the market
price, and benchmarked the rate of annual
increment to industry forecasts and market trends.
For sales volume, we assessed the reasonableness
and feasibility of annual sales plan and productivity.
For the discount rates, we benchmarked the rates
used in the forecasts against our research of the
discount rates used by comparable companies in
the industry. We considered the potential impact
of reasonably possible downside changes in these
key assumptions. We also considered whether the
judgements in selecting these key assumptions
would give rise to indicators of possible
management bias.

BMETERBAEREAPHBAREBRNSIE L -
REERER RIS FEARERNRAMERER
ETHIGE M HETT 7 LhB - WA FIE R E BT FRBIAN
MEBEERELE - HNHEE B HE T FEH
EEEMEERNSEBUMAIITE - HRAR X 3
1P LA TEORI o {6 A O B 3R R R EERURI R APT 8 EL 17 26
AL AR AT R E A RO BA IR X « F IR S LR R R
RPZRTAEAREN TTRIENBEERLE - KR
ZRTEZELHERBRRGFNHBS S SEH A et
HERREOEZ-
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

We compared the current year actual results with
the amounts included in the prior year cash flow
forecasts to consider the quality of management’s
forecasting, and where any deviations were noted,
we corroborated management’s explanations with
our knowledge of the market and the Group’s
performance in the current year. We also checked
that these relevant factors had been taken into
account in this year’s forecasts and that
management had considered the current year
actual results in the preparation of this year’s
forecasts.

BB AFREEREARE F—FEREREAATE
ENEHETTHEER NZEERENTRAES - &K
AR EREERR AT EEREGE FFEEALR
RENRE BEEEEHRMETSOERER &
SERANFENRBABMEE - RPIERE T SFH
BRAPRESZER T ELHBRER - RMATRE T ER

EREERTAFENERERANERAFENR
Al e

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s significant judgements and
assumptions applied in the impairment assessments
of property, plant and equipment and land use
rights were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

BEFATHET RFIRREEEEDE KBEK
A% 1 B+ 3 {55 PR A O RU(EL BT A P 50 PR O B 32 1 T AN 1R
RIGEI PTG ERNATHNRF IR -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPANESNMEERRENSE

(2) Impairment assessment of trade receivables
(2) FEWERFRETG

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii), Note 4(c) and Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements

B2 BERE SRS M EES.1(b) (i) ~ FiIFE4(c) R FizE22

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$667,322,000 and provision for
impairment losses on trade receivables of HK$21,803,000.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on
trade receivables.

N_ZBE_=ZF+_A=+—H EEENEKRER
48 78 R 75 #667,322,0000T  FE 4 BR BB (B B BB
21,803,000t EEEFEKERNTHEHAEEEE
TR -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment of the expected credit losses for trade
receivables included the following:
BAHAEBERET HENEREREEEE ZET
R aE

We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over credit procedures performed by
management, including the periodic review of
aged receivables and the assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables. We
also assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity and subjectivity.
B TR EEEERNITHMREREERE
Fr - B35S 8 B e W BR SR EY 1E HA 25 B I B W BR R TR
HEEBERNM - RMEBREEBMEGTHEEMLD
12 8 AN E A 2 L B R 2= (A REME AN 871 ) 972
JE AT AH A B AR R B R T LB

We obtained management’s assessment of the
expected credit losses for trade receivables and
tested the accuracy of the aging profile of trade
receivables by checking to the underlying invoices
on a sample basis.

BMERE T EREBYHERRFAREEEENTG
WiRB BT B RA T FECRIA BR e e 8% 1) 2EFE
1 o
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESANMEERRENSE

Management applied judgement in assessing the
expected credit losses. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and aging
profile. Management considered that full provision
would be made for balances with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, while the expected credit loss rates of the
remaining balances are determined based on historical
credit losses experienced over the past 3 years and
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information including macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
EREERABNARRAEERR - RTEERBNES
1BR - EIREBEEREE R RO BREC 155 S e U AR R
ETTHH-BEBERR BREAVERENHRER T
ERWFEHNHRE T HATIRER T MH AR TEH
ERBRAXARBEBE="FNELEHIBRKETE - LE
THABRARRE R RATELEERBRYERPENBYER
RN RERBERE -

We focused on this area due to the estimation and
judgement involved in determining the expected credit
losses for the trade receivables subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty.

BRI BB EENERTE AR mE M TEE LA &
W BR TR T8 BME B B 1R SR I 8 I Al 51 A0 4 -

For trade receivables with known financial
difficulties or those not responding to collection
activities, we challenged and assessed the
appropriateness of management’s assessment
based on supporting documents such as
correspondence with the customers, customers’
responses to collection activities and relevant
public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of these customers.

HRE MNP RN E 5 EKREE FEYOE 2 = E
WEKERS RPARBEREPHNERKE  TRHE
Wk AW SR Y (R 88 A I R B B AR AR R B0 & 142
RERERMEXXM - kBAFE T ERENHNE

it

For the remaining trade receivables, we challenged
and assessed the appropriateness of management’s
assessment including the credit risk characteristics
based on the customers’ historical settlement
pattern over the past 3 years and performed
market research regarding the relevant current and
forward-looking information including
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

R T B YRR PIDEBAIGT T BB BT 4
MEEY BEEREPBAT=FENEANEER
PRl WEST TR RAE M EROMISHE &
BERTYETPENBYSRRENNEZELSBERE -

We also tested the calculation of the provision for
impairment losses.

HAFITRRA TIRER E R &

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgement and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supportable by
the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
RIBFTATTEVAZ - T APIRR /R B 32 [E B FE W AR SR TR HR
EEBENMGEAMAB SR MESHNEBRNAITHIR
P B X HF
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in Shougang Century Holdings Limited
2023 Annual Report (the “annual report”) other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We have obtained some of the other information
including Report of the Directors prior to the date of this
auditor’s report. The remaining other information, including
Financial Highlights and Management Discussion and
Analysis and the other sections to be included in the annual
report, is expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be
included in the annual report, if we conclude that there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to the directors and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B R

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENHRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

118

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B R

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah, Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2024
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #HZ - - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T BT
Revenue EEEE 5 2,494,534 2,464,242
Cost of sales SHE KA 9 (2,120,368) (2,133,702)
Gross profit EA 374,166 330,540
Other income H g A 7 8,039 20,738
Other gains, net Hib Wz 558 8 662 21,498
Selling and distribution expenses H& &5 HE A 9 (124,033) (114,563)
Administrative expenses THEA 9 (56,433) (58,307)
Research and development HEER
expenses 9 (108,296) (103,335)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains, JMNEIEH (E518), W @ F58
net (2,926) 11,708
Changes in fair values of KEMHEATEZE
investment properties 16 (2,077) 1,138
Net impairment losses on financial & @& ERIER K FEE
assets 22(c) (518) (1,114)
Finance costs, net BISAA - FER 11 (18,914) (50,615)
Profit before income tax B B 15 B¢ Bl Al 69,670 57,688
Income tax expense FriS iz 12 (7,164) (9,830)
Profit for the year attributable to N2 RI#HA ARG AFE & F)
the owners of the Company 62,506 47,858
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  Fill4r & 2 W < FEERBE I BT e — HFBIEE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeEZEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #HZ - - =%+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 5E BT T BT
Other comprehensive Hith2m (&) W=
(loss)/income
Items that will not be reclassified E#EGTEESEEEm oA
to profit or loss H
Exchange differences arising on  AME 27| &M E £/ E
translation into presentation HERE
currency (7,810) (147,094)
Revaluation of leasehold land HETHRIEFEM
and buildings 17 (6,729) 34,898
Recognition of deferred income  MELTHIRIEFEMHZELE
tax asset/(liability) on iEHiEE (BfE)ER
revaluation of leasehold land
and buildings 29 1,051 (5,225)
(13,488) (117,421)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ANARI#HA AE(EAFE 2
for the year attributable to the W,/ (B18) %%
owners of the Company 49,018 (69,563)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Earnings per share for profit for  ANQREHB AL FE G F
the year attributable to the Z GRREF
owners of the Company
- Basic -5 15(a) 3.17 2.44
— Diluted — s 15(b) 2.65 1.71

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  _Fill4r & 2 W e < FE ERBE I BT s — HFBIEE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 WZ-Z-=%F+_H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8
2023 2022
—s=-= —E-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE BT T BT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEMZE 16 43,728 55,637
Property, plant and equipment M - BB k&E 17 1,251,122 1,187,280
Right-of-use assets BEFRE 18 416 1,665
Land use rights 3 fsE A4 20 124,604 130,142
Prepayments and deposits SEENE 58 23 30,325 20,928
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISHIEE = 29 10,026 1,505
Total non-current assets FREBEEARE 1,460,221 1,397,157
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 350,013 422,303
Trade receivables FE U BR 3k 22 645,519 565,447
Bills receivables e EE 22 713,917 653,069
Prepayments, deposits and other FBI3K ~ & & K H b fE U5k
receivables 23 45,339 63,546
Pledged bank deposits EHEFIRITFER 25(a) 20,002 80,101
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERR S 25(b) 77,138 145,807
Total current assets MEEELHAE 1,851,928 1,930,273
Total assets BEEMAE 3,312,149 3,327,430
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other payables H b e 3K 140 102
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 - 446
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSHIIEAE 29 27,733 28,007
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEALE 27,873 28,555

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

122 SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BH{ERHZRUEERAT]

bt R S BA TS AR L 2R PR BB Y P R — GBI EE o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e ISR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023 WZ-Z-=F+_H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=+—H
2023 2022
—s=-= —=E——
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE BT T BT T
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables RN EE 26 795,445 800,885
Other payables and accruals HMENRRERER 26 304,427 245,910
Current income tax liabilities EHMMEHAE 6,105 6,419
Bank borrowings IRITER 27 487,537 454,552
Lease liabilities HEBE 18 446 1,292
Derivative financial instruments PTESRITA 30 643 -
Financial liability at fair value BEATFEFAERCCRIBE
through profit or loss 28 - 132,074
Total current liabilities B EEEE 1,594,603 1,641,132
Total liabilities BEAE 1,622,476 1,669,687
Equity =
Share capital % 2 31 1,215,798 1,215,798
Reserves {1 473,875 441,945
Total equity R 1,689,673 1,657,743
Total equity and liabilities e EAEE 3,312,149 3,327,430

The financial statements on pages 120 to 254 were approved 7| RE1208H £254B 2 I BHEE R =F
by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2024 and were —PNF=FA+ \HEZEESHE THNUATE

signed on its behalf: ERABEE
Su Fanrong Yang Junlin
AR B &R
Director Director
EF EF

The above consolidated statement of financial position — _Eilt4R& BAFSHA T 2K & EARERN B 5 — GBI E -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #HZ - - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Property PRC
Share Capital  revaluation  Translation reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve reserve reserve funds losses Total
S BRRE  NEEMRG EifiE HEREES ZitFR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET R BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(HEEE() (B (i)
For the year ended BZ-E-cE4CR
31 December 2023 Zt-HLEEE
At 1 January 2023 RZZE-=%F-f-H 1,215,798 23,990 170,390 209,062 98,703 (60,200) 1,657,743
Comprehensive income ~ 2EK&
Profit for the year REEGT - - - - - 62,506 62,506
Other comprehensive ~ Et2E(F8)/ W&
(loss)/income
Exchange differences arising R & 27| & mAELH)
on translation into EiER
presentation currency - - - (7,810) - - (7,810)
Revaluation of leasehold ~ & LIEFEf
land and buildings (H3H17)
(Note 17) - - (6,729) - - - (6,729)
Recognition of deferred &L REFERZE
income tax asset on RAEHEERD
revaluation of leasehold ~ (FE29)
land and buildings
(Note 29) - - 1,051 - - - 1,051
Total comprehensive (loss) AEE2E(EE)/ Kz
income for the year k] - - (5,678) (7,810) - 62,506 49,018
Transaction with owners SEZEE ANESHE
in their capacity as GO
owners:
Share repurchase (Note 31) % (¥:31) - - - - - (2,699) (2,699)
Dividend paid BHRE - - - - - (14,389) (14,389)
Transfer to PRC reserve  ERZPEREES
funds (Note (ii)) (R Gi) - - - - 3,968 (3,968) -
- - - - 3,968 (21,056) (17,088)
At 31 December 2023 RN-E-=%+-f
=+-H 1,215,798 23,990 164,712 201,252 102,671 (18,750) 1,689,673

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SREREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #Z=-Z—-=

FH-A=1T—"BLHFE

Property PRC
Share Capital revaluation Translation reserve  Accumulated
capital reserve resenve reserve funds losses Total
e BERGR  NRERRR Eidh HEREEES ZitER aif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETT BRI AT BT BT
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(HfzE()) (Bz (i)
For the year ended 31 HE-BE-_—E1CR
December 2022 ‘-|- ALLEE
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—%-A-H 1,191,798 23,990 140,717 356,156 90,450 (70,165) 1,732,946
Comprehensive income  2F K&
Profit for the year KEEHET - - - - - 47,858 47,858
Other comprehensive At 2EbE /(BE)
income/(loss)
Exchange differences arising R & 25| §H4 fELH
on translation into B EE
presentation currency - - - (147,094) - - (147,094)
Revaluation of leasehold ~ RELTHLETER
land and buildings (Kt3E17)
(Note 17) - - 34,898 - - - 34,898
Recognition of deferred ~ BE L RIEFERY
income tax liability on EILMEHARRER
revaluation of leasehold  (Iff329)
land and buildings
(Note 29) - - (5,225) - - - (5,225)
Total comprehensive REF2ANE/
income/(loss) for the year (1) &% - - 29,673 (147,004) - 47,858 (69,563)
Transaction with owners  EIERER AN FHE
in their capacity as THRS
owners:
Share repurchase (Note 31) [R{3%E (Fizt31) - - - - - (69) (69)
Dividend paid ke - - - - - (29,571) (29,571)
Issuance of ordinary shares 1R [k [EAEHRES
pursuant to the conversion & (fizt8)
of convertible bonds
(Note 28) 24,000 - - - - - 24,000
Transfer to PRC reserve  EFZhERZEES
funds (Note (i) (Bs(i) - - - - 8,253 (8,253) -
24,000 - - - 8,253 (37,893) (5,640)
At 31 December 2022 S
+-A=t-A 1,215,798 23,990 170,390 209,062 98,703 (60,200) 1,657,743

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
:M\égjiggéﬁgégykéé

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #HZ - - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The capital reserve represents the benefit of acquiring a
shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder upon the acquisition
of a subsidiary in previous years.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, these subsidiaries
are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to a statutory reserve fund (including the general
reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund, where appropriate).
Transfer to this statutory reserve fund is subject to the approval
of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when
the balance of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital
of the respective company. Statutory reserve fund can only be
used to offset accumulated losses or to increase capital.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

126

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

GEX

() BARBEBERARFEELRE -FRBEQRE [
—fIATBCR AR E R 2 s

(i) BREAPEARKMBETHEDKIZNARE
ZHBRARZ AR ERARRFEEGRERRR
o REMBARARTEEARAUEEE &
BALRBREENM0NEREEFBES
(EhEmR-—REGREERRES WER)
HEZEATE RBHBEEDERN 2 RZME RN
50%M AT BB - BRSNS EERBESTL
BRIAREEG 2 HE ZERFREESRAAN
HIH R BRI INEA -

bataRE R BB R AR MY P R — GBI -



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #Z=-Z—-=

FH-A=1T—"BLHFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B aE BT T BT
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Cash generated from operations AAEEKELZHE 33(a) 162,404 182,200
PRC corporate income tax paid B ZHBDEMESH (14,922) (2,833)
Net cash generated from REEBEEZ
operating activities H& 55 147,482 179,367
Cash flows from investing RETBHZHERE
activities
Placement of pledged bank FREERRITFR
deposits (110,525) (316,509)
Withdrawal of pledged bank B IR ITIER
deposits 169,254 419,651
Purchase of property, plant and  BEWE  BE M&E
equipment (110,932) (107,575)
Prepayments for the acquisition of B EYZ « M/FE k&E 2 BRI
property, plant and equipment (41,492) (24,928)
Proceeds from disposals of HEYE - BE & RESHE
property, plant and equipment 33(a) 910 1,586
Interest received B U F B 7,003 2,246
Net cash used in investing RERSBA RS T
activities (85,782) (25,529)

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

nv_\éiﬁ ﬁiﬁé %

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 #HZ - - =F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B aE BET T BT T
Cash flows from financing RMETBH2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings  $R{TE 2 FT{SFIB 778,903 805,766
Repayments of bank borrowings {EERITER (744,087) (798,674)
Repayment of loan from a related f{E:& —RREARZER
company - (22,390)
Interest paid ERFE (14,808) (20,018)
Dividend paid B E (14,389) (29,571)
Share repurchase & 17 B [ (2,699) (69)
Payments for principal elements of XM E&E A& HH
lease liabilities (1,292) (1,226)
Payments for interest elements of Z{fHEE&EZF EH
lease liabilities (60) (126)
Settlement of financial liability at EffIEAFEFAEBRZZ
fair value through profit or loss TRBE (128,520) (5,504)
Loan transaction costs paid BERERRZHA (10) (389)
Net cash used in financing BEEBEA IR FRE
activities (126,962) (72,201)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekRe&FEER 2(0BD)/
and cash equivalents B HEE (68,262) 81,637
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNZBEeRREEEEE
beginning of the year 145,807 73,487
Exchange loss on cash and cash R&KIAEEEER ZIER
equivalents B8 (407) (9,317)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZESRRESEHEER
end of the year 25(b) 77,138 145,807

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Shougang Century Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an investment holding company and together with
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of steel cords.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Room
1215, 12/F., Honour Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street,
Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“HKCO”) (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, derivative financial instruments
and financial liability at fair value through profit or loss,
which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

AEFBER-_ZE-_=F—HA—8H
WM RS REEMAT 2 55T

The Group has applied the following new and
amended standards for the first time for the annual

reporting period commencing from 1 January 2023:

K MERTZER

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting AL SETECRE R
HKAS 1 and Policies F1UREEEY
HKFRS Practice BRELERNE
Statement 2 TS E 25 A
EH
Amendments to Definition of Accounting EFA a4 e EETER
HKAS 8 Estimates FE8FHIEE]
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to EA AR BE—RFEEZ
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities FE125R BT BEKAEN
arising from a Single BRI IR
Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform BB ER B B 75t 1l 2l 2 —
HKAS 12 - Pillar Two Model F125MEE] S ZRED
Rules A
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BEMBREE RREL
AIZE175%%
HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS BEUBMEE BEYBREE
17 BIZE175% BIZE175%HY
(EH
HKFRS 17 Initial Application of BEMBHRELE BENBREE
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS AIZE175% RIZE175% &%
9 - Comparative BEMBERE
Information AR Q5% HY
BRER -
BRER

The adoption of the above new and amended
standards did not have any significant financial
impact on these consolidated financial statements.
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e TR R

Certain amended standards and interpretations

AEBIRIBAI KA HMEER

have been published that are not mandatory for BT _=F+-_HA=1+—HItHW
31 December 2023 reporting periods and have not WEHM B AR ERNE TEIETE

been early adopted by the Group.

AR @R

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT3 B8
Z BRI
STHBEXN

Amendments to HKAS 1

ERETERE1RAER]
Amendments to HKAS 1
ER T ERIE1RER]
Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB IR A F 165 5 1T

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(Revised)

BERBES (IB7])

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current

REBFIERBEBEZOR

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

MEROHERDEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

EEROEMNEERE

Presentation of Financial Statement
— Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

IS ERKR T — BERA S ERERERK
FOBHERNS I

1 January 2024

—ZE-pFE—H—H
1 January 2024
—E-FE—H—H

1 January 2024

—E_mE—-HA—H
1 January 2024

—E-FE—-—H—H
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Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT 5 B85
ZEFABN
SRHEEX

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7
BB ERETRR

BRMBRELENFETRNERT

Amendments to HKAS 21

BB G ERIFE215RAER]

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BRI HREERE105E K
BB g ERIF 28R MIER]

Management is in the process of assessing

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HERRE LT

Lack of Exchangeability

HRZ Al H At

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

SEERHEBENRIHELERAZ
BEHESNTE

1 January 2024
—ETMNFE—-H—H
1 January 2025

—E-hF—H—H
To be determined

N

e
fal’

potential impact of the above amended standards
and interpretations that are relevant to the Group
upon initial application. It is not yet in a position
to state whether these amended standards and
interpretations will have a significant impact on
the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s foreign currency transactions
are mainly denominated in RMB, HKS,
United States dollar (“US$”) and Euro
(“EUR”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$,
US$ and EUR, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The
Group is subject to foreign exchange
rate risk arising from commercial
transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities denominating in a currency
other than RMB and HK$ which are the
functional currencies of the major
operating companies within the Group.

The exchange rate of RMB to HKS$ is
subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rates.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R
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Under the Linked Exchange Rate System
in Hong Kong, HK$ is pegged to USS$,
management therefore considers that
there is no significant foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ (2022: same).

As at 31 December 2023, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been
HK$12,447,000 lower/higher (2022:
HK$18,234,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$/RMB
denominated bank balances and cash,
trade receivables, other payables and
accruals, bank borrowings, financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss
and the current account with group
companies.

As at 31 December 2023, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been
HK$18,952,000 higher/lower (2022:
HK$21,717,000 higher/lower), mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$
denominated bank balances and cash,
trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals, bank
borrowings and the current account with
group companies.
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As at 31 December 2023, if EUR had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been HK$1,782,000
higher/lower (2022: HK$3,302,000
higher/lower) mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange difference on translation
of EUR denominated bank balances and
cash, trade receivables, other receivables,
other payables and accruals.

The Group is exposed to commodity
price risk in relation to its steel products
which is largely dependent on the market
price of the relevant commodity. The
Group closely monitors the price of its
products in order to determine its pricing
strategies.

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to lease
liabilities, fixed rate bank borrowings
and financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable rate bank balances and bank
borrowings.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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As at 31 December 2023, the fair value
interest rate risk is insignificant to the
Group (2022: same). The Group regularly
monitors its interest rate risk to ensure
there are no undue exposures to
significant interest rate movements.

As at 31 December 2022, if interest rate
on financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss had been 100 basis points
lower/higher with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of
the Group would have been approximately
HK$746,000 lower/higher. (2023: Nil)

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rate
on variable rate bank borrowings had
been 100 basis points lower/higher with
all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would
have been approximately HK$3,049,000
(2022: HK$1,503,000) higher/lower.

Other than financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss, bank borrowings
and derivative financial instruments, the
Group is not exposed to significant cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk.
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Credit risk arises from trade receivables, bills
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables
(Note 22), bills receivables (Note 22), deposits
and other receivables (Note 23), pledged bank
deposits (Note 25(a)) and bank balances
(Note 25(b)) represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed once a year. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

The credit risk on all restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents
of the Group is minimised as the funds
are placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks located
in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.
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SR REREMERE B
BEHBRTERLRITEFTE
Ko

U BR FR (P 5E22) R R = 18
(MF5E22) - & K H b FE W3R
(Ff5E23) BB ITHER
(F=E25(a)) RERTT4ETF (M5
25(b)) Z BRE{E Jh A £ B FTE
HEHSREENEAEER

)

EEREEERR K
%lﬁﬁ@ﬁ?&*@
ABBBRHIFIEERE
Mz BT - AT
IR ZE NEEFEA
WEE A R G AR B
EEFZEEEEZNUR
REEFPEERSE HE
FPEREENRBEGFAE
— IR B I EEfh EE =
B AR REUR E
HEU[E] 260 BB 7 o

$El%ﬁ§@%mﬁ
TEREReRES
BEMEERR EWM
EZHEK BRZFE:S
AFRERS KA B
EEREEREERR
FEYERTT o

3R 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

138

Trade and bills receivables for sales of
goods of the Group and from the
provision of services are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and bills receivables.

For bills receivables, bills are issued by
counterparties at reputable banks and
the credit risk is considered to be low.
Those counterparties do not have
defaults in the past. Therefore, expected
credit loss rate is assessed to be
insignificant and no provision was made
as at each of the end of reporting
period.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and aging profile.
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Management considers that full ERERR HRE MY
provision would be made for balances 74 R 2 &) g2 BE o T B fE
with known financial difficulties or those WKR B R RRIE 2 3R
not responding to collection activities, SHIREHES  MEIREREE
while the expected credit loss rates of WIEHEABREXEER
the remaining balances are determined BRE1FHRBEENESE
based on historical credit losses ERBXEEN  WHE
experienced over the past 1 years and 177 AR E /T &
adjusted to reflect current and forward- AEMEEREERER
looking information including B 18 1 1 W BR SR BE T &Y
macroeconomic factors affecting the REKERE - AEEE
ability of the customers to settle the BRBEANEEREBERR
receivables. The Group has identified BIT¥ENTREREXZ
Gross Domestic Product and the non- REENREE  WREE
performing loan ratio of the automotive Lo E = B TE BB L AR B
industry to be the most relevant factors, FEE S EE K o

and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors.

Impairment losses on receivables are JE W 5% I8 R (B 18 2R R AR
presented as “net impairment losses on EEHEREXREINARIE
financial assets” in the consolidated BB EREELFE]-
statement of comprehensive income. e U F T &k U [
When a receivable is uncollectible, it is R 2N FIEREE
written off against the allowance account AR AR EH o 2 I E 58
for receivables. Subsequent recoveries B FX BB 20 B & Y B 1 5
of amounts previously written off are AR—1TEE -

credited against the same line item.

3R 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

The following table presents the gross TR 25| E KRR 8 ER
carrying amount and the provision for HRERRERXEE:
impairment losses in respect of trade
receivables:
Lifetime
expected Gross Lifetime Net
credit carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
20 20
FEEEEX HELE GEFE EEFE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bok  B¥Trn  B¥%Trn  B¥Tx
As at 31 December 2023 W-Z-=%
+=A=1+-8
Aging category iR
1 - 90 days 1-90H 0.10 512,980 (523) 512,457
91 - 180 days 91-180H 0.27 111,399 (299) 111,100
181 - 365 days 181-365H 0.57 22,089 (127) 21,962
Over 1 year HiE1F 100 20,854 (20,854) -
667,322 (21,803) 645,519
As at 31 December 2022 W=-Z-_#&
+=A=1+-8
Aging category AR ER 48 R
1-90 days 190 009 317,331 (290) 317,041
91 - 180 days 91-180H 0.15 202,978 (301) 202,677
181 - 365 days 181-365H 0.50 45,959 (230) 45,729
Over 1 year HiE1F 100 20,765 (20,765) -
587,033 (21,586) 565,447
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For deposits and other receivables,
management makes periodic individual
assessments on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past
experience as well as forward looking
factors. There has been no recent
history of default in relation to these
counterparties. The expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For pledged bank deposits and bank
balances, there has been no recent
history of default in relation to those
financial institutions and reputable
banks. The expected credit loss is
insignificant.

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including bank borrowings.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying
businesses, the Group’s finance department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining
adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents
and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.
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Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest-bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group maintained cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$77,138,000
(2022: HK$145,807,000) that are expected to
be readily available and sufficient to meet the
cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence,
management considers that Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total
available banking facilities, amounted to
approximately HK$749,292,000 (2022:
HK$622,376,000), of which approximately
HK$487,537,000 (2022: HK$454,552,000) has
been utilised.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities for non-
derivative financial liabilities. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying values as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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Weighted

average Total

effective contractual

interest Within 4-6 7-12 Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate 3 months months months 1year cash flows amount

TS AHRER

REAZ AR 46fA 728 BEIF ReREAR  RAE
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
sl A% AMTn B¥Tn A¥Tn BT AETr

(Note)
(Bist)
As at 31 December 2023 W=ZF-Z%
tzp=t-8
Trade, bills and other ERER - ENEE
payables REMERR - 818303 207,478 30,196 140 1,056,207 1,056,207
Bank borrowings RIER
- fived rate -BHE 416 94,141 1100 52401 - uTe2 12432
- variable rate — AT 655 368,174 - - - 368174 365105
Financial derivative (2B IA
instruments - 643 - - - 643 643
Lease liabilities HEak 2.24 342 114 - - 456 446
1,281,693 208,692 82,597 140 1,573,122 1,544,833
As at 31 December 2022 W=ZF-Z%
+=A=1-A
Trade, bills and other ERER - ENEE
payables REfEHE - w0 53254 - - 1013226 1013226
Bank borrowings HIER
- fixed rate — Bl 374 146,783 47,300 85,710 - 19798 274552
- variable rate -EH%E 6.67 150,676 30,703 - - 181,379 180,000
Financial liability at fair value RAFE:F ABEZ
through profit or loss 2HBE 400 128520 - - - 128520 132,074
Lease liabilities HEER 5,36 338 338 676 451 1,803 1,738
1,386,289 131,595 86,386 451 1,604,721 1,601,590
Note: The weighted average effective interest rates are BaE - oA E B A X TR IE R
based on the rates of the borrowings at the end HHIRMERTRGE -

of the reporting period.
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The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as
capital. The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest
bearing borrowings of the Group (including bank
borrowings and financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss) less bank balances and cash
(including pledged bank deposits) divided by total
equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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The gearing ratio was as follows:

BELRENT

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-—8

2023 2022

—g=-= —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Bank borrowings (Note 27) RITENR(HIFE27) 487,537 454,552
Financial liability at fair value ﬁi’&$fﬁa+7\i§ﬁ§2

through profit or loss (Note 28) Rt 8 & (f1E28) - 132,074
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BEERIRITER

(Note 25 (a)) (f¥7E25(a)) (20,002) (80,101)
Bank balances and cash RITHEEFERRS

(Note 25 (b)) (KF5E25(b)) (77,138) (145,807)

Net debt fEEFH 390,397 360,718

Total equity A% 1,689,673 1,657,743

Gearing ratio BELEE 23.1% 21.8%

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2022 by level of valuation
techniques used to measure its fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a

fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

TRIZFEQAFEFEANGER A
HA - BEAEEBR T _=ZF+=
A=4+—HBRZZE=Z=ZF+=A
=t HNEMIAEZAFEEL
DM - ZEBMABBERATEER
RE D ABAT=ERF :

o HRBEXBEBENARMISH
HBECREHB)(E—R)-
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° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level
2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022:

s KBE-LMEBREOREN AT
BEEXRAEE K (AER)X
A (BB ERITE) R
ABB(FE=)-

o  THREAIBEMSHEER
MEEXAEHABIERBE
EBRBABB)(E =)

-1
=+t—-BERZ=E

T -_=—F%+=-H

——_9+=-H

=T -BARSENURTFEFENS

mIA:

As at 31 December 2023
R-E-=§+-A=+-H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ ot E=8 ait
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETR BETT  B¥TR
Derivative financial instruments TTHEEMITEA
- Cross currency swaps -RXEEEH - (643) - (643)
As at 31 December 2022
RZE__F+-A=t—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—8 F-R Ea A&t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT AETr  AETr A% Tx
Financial liability at fair value ROTFEFABRL
through profit or loss Eay=U
- Convertible bonds — R ES - - (132,074) (132,074
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The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2. If one or more
of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included
in level 3.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments comprise
cross currency swaps. The fair values of the
derivative financial instruments were determined
using forward exchange rates and interest rates
that are quoted by financial institutions.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts
to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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=
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E_FNTEeRITARERXEY
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FETE
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the current tax and deferred
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
change in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell calculations.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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The Group makes provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the expected credit losses
allowance calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in
Note 3.1(b).

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of inventories is
written down to net realisable value when there
is an objective evidence that the cost of inventories
may not be recoverable. The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly
or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have
declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred
to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is the
difference between the carrying value and net
realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable,
significant judgement is required. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent by all means to
which the amount will be recovered. During the
year, certain inventories written down in prior years
have been subsequently sold at prices higher than
their then net realisable value. Provision regarding
these inventories have been reversed.
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The fair values of investment properties and
property, plant and equipment measured at
revalued amount are determined by using various
valuation techniques. Details of the judgements
and assumptions have been disclosed in Notes
16 and 17.

The fair value of a financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss is determined by using
valuation technique. Details of the judgements and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 28.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of steel cords. Revenue recognised during the year are

REGSETENREVERY
¥ BEMREENAFENERS
REERMNET - BB REBR
MFBERKIF16 RI7THE -

BRAFEAABZZERBENR
FEDERGBEXNEE -G/ *
i N RR ) FHIB E M Rt 28 R 4 5E

AEBEERFMERILE AFECDHE
RHEEREIT

as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HILEE
2023 2022
—=E-= —=E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Sales of goods - Manufacturing BEmiHE — SUEMER
of steel cords 2,493,165 2,462,767
Rental income (Note 16) e WA (KIFE16) 1,369 1,475
2,494,534 2,464,242
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Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the good or service
may be transferred over time or at a point in time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Group manufactures and sells steel cords. Revenue
is recognised when the control of the products are
transferred to the customers at a point in time, when
products are delivered to the customers, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specified location,
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customers, and either the customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied. A receivable is
recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

The Company’s managing director, being the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM?”), examines the
Group’s performance and allocates resources from a
product perspective. The Group’s operations are
currently organised into one reportable segment which
is steel cord segment.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each
segment without allocation of changes in fair value of
investment properties, derivative financial instruments
and financial liability at fair value through profit or loss,
certain foreign exchange gains or losses, central
administration costs, the emoluments of directors of
the Company, interest income on bank deposits, finance
costs and rental and other income. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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AT RAEEREENEZHRDED
ZERBNREZON

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE—-_E-_=%+=-HA=+—8H1t

FE
Steel cord
HK$’000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers KR BEIMNIBERFE D B 58 2,493,165
Segment results DEELE 101,939
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Rental income e A 1,369
Other income HalA 61
Other gains, net and foreign exchange Hith i o - 558 R HNEE
losses, net E518 - JFEE 873
Changes in fair value of investment KEMFERNTEZEE
properties (2,077)
Expenses = (13,581)
Finance costs, net BTG AN - FER (18,914)
Profit before income tax bR AT B B 69,670
Income tax expense FRe iz i (7,164)
Profit for the year RE 62,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—_ ST -_—F#+-A=+—H1t
FE
Steel cord
] 8 4%
HK$’000
BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE
Segment revenue from external customers KB INIBERFE R D EBL 58 2,462,767
Segment results DEPEE 101,213
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Rental income HEaEWA 1,475
Other income H A A 312
Other gains, net and foreign exchange Hith i as - 558 RONEE
gains, net WS - JFEE 17,117
Changes in fair value of investment KEMHEANTEZE
properties 1,138
Expenses £H (12,952)
Finance costs, net BTG AN - JF R (50,615)
Profit before income tax B P15 B¢ A& A 57,688
Income tax expense FTSBisZ 1 (9,830)
Profit for the year REZ 5T 47,858
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities by operating and reportable segment:

AT B B R 2 5 4
2 EERAMEZ W

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Steel cord S BEAR 3,146,310 3,030,252
Total segment assets DESEE BT 3,146,310 3,030,252
Bank balances and cash RITHEF NS 77,138 145,807
Pledged bank deposits BRI TER 20,002 80,101
Unallocated assets RKOBEE 68,699 71,270
Total assets BEMETE 3,312,149 3,327,430
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As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
Steel cord )3 1,111,303 1,062,955
Total segment liabilities DESRBEETE 1,111,303 1,062,955
Bank borrowings RITER 487,537 454,552
Financial liability at fair value BEATEF ARG ERAE
through profit or loss - 132,074
Unallocated liabilities AOWEE 23,636 20,106
Total liabilities BERT 1,622,476 1,669,687
For the purpose of monitoring segment REEDEKRERFALSE D HBER
performances and allocating resources between ZREmE :
segments:
e  all assets are allocated to operating segment s BRETYE BERRE &

other than certain property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, certain
prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating O
segment other than certain current income
tax liabilities, bank borrowings, financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments, certain
deferred income tax liabilities and certain
payables and accruals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZEZ-=F+=-—A=+—H1
FE

Steel cord

HK$’000

BT T

Amounts included in the measure of BRENGFESBEER T IBER 2

segment assets or segment profit S8

or loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRET 182,466
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBEZITE

equipment 100,348
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRAEZINE 1,249
Amortisation of land use rights - Hb {5 FAAE 2 5 3,707
Net impairment losses on financial assets & &t& E R (EE K F5E 518
Provision for inventories, net FERE  F8 410
Losses on disposal of property, HEYE - BERXECEK  F58

plant and equipment, net (678)

Amount regularly provided to CODM EHRHFIELEERREETE

but not included in the measure of ERTESBEE 28
segment profit or loss:
Income tax expenses FT{S i sz i 7,584
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE_E-__F+t-A=t—-HL

FE
Steel cord
| B 4R
HK$’000
BT T
Amounts included in the measure of BERIGEIBEER I TFERZ
segment assets or segment profit S8
or loss:
Capital expenditures BEARRET 70,610
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBEZITE
equipment 104,481
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFRAEZITE 1,249
Amortisation of land use rights b FAAE 2 8 3,891
Net impairment losses on financial assets & & EREBKFHE 1,114
Provision for inventories, net FERE  F8 4,881
Losses on disposal of property, HEYE - BEMXECEK  F5
plant and equipment, net 88
Amount regularly provided to CODM EHRHFIELEERREETE
but not included in the measure of RRGTEDBERZERE .
segment profit or loss:
Income tax expenses Fristis 9,520
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The Group’s operations and non-current assets
are located in the PRC (including Hong Kong)
which is the country of domicile of the relevant
entities of the Group. Accordingly, no further
analysis of revenue from external customers and
non-current assets by geographical location is
presented.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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AEBzEERFRBEEDUR
AEBEHBAERNMERR  F
(BHREEE) Bt AT 5K A5
REFPZEXBLIFRBEE M
D IRHE — AT o

R EE B ER10%2 5
FHSEENT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+t—HLHFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Customer A ZEA 315,183 524,858
Customer B =ZFB 291,857 313,473
Year ended 31 December

BEt+=-H=1+—HBLEE
2023 2022

—E—-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Government grants (Note) AT w78 B (B 73) 5,963 19,032
Sales of scrap materials HEREEMR 1,826 1,706
Others HAh 250 =
8,039 20,738
Note: The government grants mainly represented financial supports Mzt BN EEE B B 5 BN EH 2R R

for business development by the local governments in the

MNP F (T ZF BT EEE

PRC (2022: the government grants mainly represented financial
supports for business development by the local governments
in the PRC and approved subsidies from Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Hong Kong
Government). There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

BT B TS BRI BS RE
RBRFHZRERES TR ET SN E
HARE) - BLMRNE A RBITHIRM S E
fRAEIEA -

3R 2023 ANNUAL REPORT 159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MRS MR

160

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—HLHFE

2023 2022
—==-= —F-=
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Fair value gain on a financial liability ZAFEFAEBZZERMEEY
at fair value through profit or loss A B (FI5E28)
(Note 28) 3,554 21,700
Fair value loss on derivative financial T &/ T EZ AFEEX
instruments (Note 30) (Ffi7¥30) (643) -
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEW¥  FE k&G EE
and equipment, net Pt (2,055) (92)
Impairment losses on property, plant ¥ . = KRG 2 REIEX
and equipment (Note 17) (BHEE17) _ (112)
Others HAh (194) 2
662 21,498
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and RIBEKRN - HEERDIEER 1TKREHR
distribution expenses, administrative expenses and BRI EBASTWOT -

research and development expenses are analysed as

follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+t—HLHFE

2023 2022
—Eg=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T TT
Cost of inventories sold (including net BEHEFERAN(BIEFEFE
provision for inventories) (Note 21) #)(ME21) 2,108,550 2,123,045
Employee benefit expense (including EERFMFEZ(BIEESME)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (FFzE10) 301,678 261,756
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - WE KRB ITE (EE17)
equipment (Note 17) 101,811 105,929
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEGAEZITE(ME18)
(Note 18) 1,249 1,249
Amortisation of land use rights 4t {55 AR A 2 B 85 (Bt 3E20)
(Note 20) 3,707 3,891
Auditor’s remuneration FETEM A B
- Audit services —F5 IR 1,485 1,537
- Non-audit services —IEEFT R 408 398
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Wages, salaries, allowances and TE& ¥& A RHMER
other benefits 258,716 226,957
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKEHKA—REBH TR
Mandatory Provident Fund M AEE RGN F S
retirement benefit scheme in
Hong Kong 182 201
Pension costs — social security BRIRERAR — R B8
contribution in the PRC HERESHRIR 42,780 34,598
301,678 261,756
Note: As at 31 December 2023, there were no forfeited contributions Wi R E—=F+=-_A=+—8 #®EJH
available to offset future retirement benefit obligations of T B AN 6= B R SRR IR AR T R A5 102 W it
the Group (2022: same). F(ZZEZZF : HR)-
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The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
included two (2022: one) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 37. The
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2022: four)
individuals during the year are as follows:

HE_ZT_=ZF+-_A=+—HI#&F
B AEEFHEESHNEREABERE
(Z2==F: —R)EZT EMcE kM
RH ST R DT - EFANEMNEHRT
=EZ(ZTZ=F : IR)ESENFHHN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=+t—HLHFE

2023 2022
—g=-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Salaries, allowances and other e AL R EMMEF]

benefits 3,966 5,021
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 515 985

Pension costs — defined contribution  EREMAA — BT
plans 394 373
4,875 6,379

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

MesENT :

Number of individuals

EEAE
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
Emolument bands B < &3 [
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7B #51,000,001 T2 7B ¥
1,500,0007T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 7B #1,500,001 T & /B
2,000,000, 2 3
3 4

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or other
members of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: same).
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2023 2022
—E-= —ZF=-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Finance income 57 i’%’Z/\
Interest income on bank deposits 1T F B A 2,515 2,246
Foreign exchange gain on financial Tﬁ’&$ﬁu+)\?§ T2 ERBEZ

liability at fair value through profit SN TR 5 W as (B9 5E)

or loss (Note) 4,488 —
Total finance income B TSI A 4858 7,003 2,246
Finance costs 57%’%@711(

Interest expenses on bank borrowings #R7T Zﬂg X (22,846) (22,747)
Interest expenses on loan from a Xﬁ—ﬁsﬁ% NEIERZ

related company BT H - (1,049)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities FE&EZF B H (KizF18)

(Note 18) (60) (126)
Amortisation of loan transaction costs E X HAk AN 2 4 (10) (389)
Foreign exchange losses on B2 INEETE H B 18

borrowings (3,001) (14,479)
Foreign exchange loss on financial BEATERFABRZERAEZ

liability at fair value through profit SN 5 1R (M9 5T)

or loss (Note) - (14,071)
Total finance costs RPN (25,917) (52,861)
Finance costs, net IR - JFEE (18,914) (50,615)

Note: It represented fair value change on financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss attributable to foreign exchange

translation (Note 28).

BEE - Bt

BRRNIMNEE LIRE 2 A FERTA
BRzseBABZ A HEZS (HFE28)-
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Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2023 2022
—E2=-= -

HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T

Current income tax: EHFSH
- China corporate income tax — TSR 13,855 11,085
Under/(over)-provision in prior years  AIFETRE (HBEE) B 945 (550)
Total current income tax B HIFTIS TR 14,800 10,535
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EREFTSHL (M 5E29) (7,636) (705)
Income tax expense FrisHi sz 7,164 9,830

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2023 as there is no assessable
profit subject to Hong Kong profits tax (2022: same).

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC
effective from 1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law”),
companies in the PRC are subject to income tax of
25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

The applicable CIT tax rate for Jiaxing Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“JESC”) and Tengzhou Eastern Steel
Cord Co., Ltd (“TESC”) were 15% for the year (2022:
15%), as they are qualified as High and New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTE”).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

HE-_T_=F+-A=+—HItF
B AEBEW B AR EENESH
ERTURN - A \EFBNGEH 2 B
(ZFZZ%F : MR-

BEB-TENF—A—BAERZFH
EMSBA(TEEMSRE]D  BRIEE
BEREREA TARPBEE R BEZRN
25% M FTIS B ©

AEERHERTHERAR AR ZHE
R DRBEMRT MEARBRQE B
NI DEOVEREERMEHRTES15%
(ZT=—F :15%) RitFIAmER X
MEE(THIEMER]) 2ER -
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The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax N EE B B TS FE B S A B B 1B B B A
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise ARS AR ERENSHEEZEF A M
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits BEOBEASENEReENERENT:
of the consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-= T -F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
Profit before income tax B P15 B¢ Bl Al 69,670 57,688
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ¥z F A & Bl F 9 5 7 R 5t
applicable to profits in the HH B R (F ()
respective countries (Note (i)) 10,830 8,167
Expenses not deductible for taxation “FAIIKINFIIEZ B
purposes 17,674 16,763
Income not subject to taxation TEFARIE Z WA (14,614) (7,575)
Tax losses for which no deferred RIERBELEFT SRS EE
income tax was recognised 291 517
Tax incentives for research and T A B i 37 A AR D A JEB A BT Y
development expenses available for 255 X B 758 22 (B 7£(ii))
two subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC (Note (i) (9,122) (10,618)
Withholding tax on dividends f% B 2 TE1e i IE 1,160 3,126
Under/(over)-provision in prior years  ARIFEMHT R (HBEE)#E 945 (550)
7,164 9,830
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Notes:

i The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.5% for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 14.2%). The
change is carried by a change in the profitability mix of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the respective countries.

ii The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority
relating to the research and development expenses of two
subsidiaries in the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the
Group may claim an additional tax deduction up to 100%

(2022: 100%) of the relevant research and development
expenses incurred in a year approved by the PRC tax

authority.

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries:

BEE

HE-_ZE-_=F+-_A=+—HIFE"
IEFERH R A15.5%(Z T -~ :
14.2% ) B8 Ty R AN 5 B 7 & B A FfT 8
NRIEFIRE NS BB B ATE

ANER B A R B B B RS A R AR P
B AR ESE - BRIBEZTBE
T RAR - AN 5 [ AT i) A R 5 7 B PR A
EFRAMNERMEERNI0%(—F

Z % 100%)FEINRUUR R ©

T2MBERRZFBAT ¢

Place of Particulars of issued Principal activities
incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group operations
BRIt % BERTRE/ FEXK
WEAREM REERRER R R AEBEARE RE&EHE
2023 2022
ZEZ=fF ZT--F
Bigland Investment Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$2 (2 ordinary 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company shares) in the PRC
AERERRRA BE BRAT B2 (ERikeR) 100% 100% RAERENERE
Everwinner Investments Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 (1,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited company ordinary shares) in Hong Kong
KEMBRERRAA B BRAA 751,000,000 100% 100% REBRFREER
(%i®A%1,000,0008%)
Fair Win Development Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$500,000 (500,000 100% 100% Property investment
Limited company ordinary shares) in the PRC
BRERBRAF B BRAA 75 #500,0007T 100% 100% RAERENERE
(& 3®7%500,0008%)
Heroland Investment Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$2 (2 ordinary shares) 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited company in Hong Kong
AEREBRRA B BRAA B2 (L RmRR) 100% 100% REBRENLRE

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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Principal activities

incorporation and  share capital/ Attributable equity and place of
Name of subsidiaries kind of legal entity registered capital interest of the Group operations
BRI B ERTRE/ FEXK
WEAREM REERRER A fRA R AEBEARE REEHH
2023 2022
—EB-z=E —_T__F
JESC# The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100% 100% Manufacturing of
liability company US$70,000,000 steel cords in the
PRC
RERR hE BREAAQF  aMA&RZAT70,000,000% T 100% 100% RPEEESE
e
TESC? The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100% 100% Manufacturing of
liability company US$109,000,000 steel cords in the
PRC
BRI hE BRAEERA  #EMRZA109,000,000% 100% 100% RPERESESE
T MER
Shougang Century The PRC, limited Registered capital of 100%* 100%*  Provision of
(Shanghai) Management liability company US$7,000,000 management
Co., Ltd.* services in the
PRC
BM(LE)ERERAR  PE AREMERAF  EMARZ7,000,000%T 100%* 100%* MRPERERHEER
fR#%
# A wholly foreign owned enterprise 8 2INEREE

* Directly held by the Company

2 For identification purpose only

: RABEERH

A EHRR
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital and issued
any debt securities subsisting at the end of the year
or at any time during the year (2022: same).

On 24 March 2023, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK0.73 cents per fully
paid ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$14,389,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The dividend was paid in July 2023.

On 18 March 2024, the Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per fully paid
ordinary share, with total amount of approximately
HK$19,584,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The final dividend is subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The final dividend proposed after 31 December 2023
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December
2023.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

ARAEERR  ERINHARTE KB
RADNETEZERFERE IBRAE
BEEFECEZF N ZMBAR - AR
RAEERRFAINEMHBERRZER S
SERREBNHITR-

0 B 2 AR RS SR A S AT
P VR 4 £ ] (805 0 2K o B AT £
BEH (=B : 1R):

EEEgR_T=F=-AZ-THMAEH
KEHZE T -_—_F+-_A=+—HIt
FEZAERESRBZRANE B
B H50.73(l - 48 F8 4 A7 14,389,000
ToWERZBEZ=F+AX I

EEenN _T_NF=A+ N \BEZEK
BEE_T_—F+-_HA=1+—HLF
B2 RERKRE SRS RAR L BRSE
Bl 48 EE4) & 85 #519,584,0007T ° K
HRSFENERITHRREAFAE L
RREHZ N B _=F+_-_A=1+—
BEBEARPBRETSHARE
—=F+-_A=1+—HBHAaG-
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing FIREXRERN IR AT A AJE
the profit for the year attributable to the owners (EREEGSMNBRNERND EITE R
of the Company by the weighted average number RENFE B ET & o

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHFE

2023 2022
—E-= T

Profit attributable to the owners of AR AIHEA ARG ARF T

the Company used in calculating ARG EERELRRF

basic earnings per share (BT T)

(HK$°000) 62,506 47,858
Weighted average number of BT B INE T

ordinary shares in issue (shares) (B&) 1,970,205,023 1,964,007,474
Basic earnings per share RREER AELESR

attributable to the owners of the  EAZMCGEAL)

Company (HK cents) 3.17 2.44
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Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of potentially dilutive ordinary
shares: convertible bonds (Note 28) (2022: same).
The convertible bonds were matured in February
2023 and the Company has made full redemption
of outstanding principal amount of HK$126,000,000
of the convertible bonds. For the convertible
bonds, calculations are done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average market
share price of the Company’s shares for the period)
based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding convertible bonds.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
convertible bonds issued are considered to be
potential ordinary shares and have been included
in the determination of diluted earnings per share
from their date of issue to the mature date in
February 2023. The convertible bonds have not
been included in the determination of basic
earnings per share.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

BREERNNERAAREBITYE
BRENEF B ABRREBRAEE
FEEEARMAE - ARFH—
HETE S LR ATRRES
F28) (T ——F: R AT,
BREANR-_Z-_=F_A3H K
AR BRBERREERNS BB
126,000,0007T 2 AT A &5 o HLA]
BRESFME - Eﬁ*ﬁﬁT%%
ﬁﬁﬁmw%%MT%E@

UEEAEAFE(TEALRA
ﬁﬁﬁirmﬁﬂmf)ﬁﬁmk
HEE -
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEFE

2023 2022
—F=-= —ZF==
Profit attributable to the owners of AR AR AR ZANF & q A
the Company used in calculating AR EFRERZF
basic earnings per share (B¥TT)
(HK$°000) 62,506 47,858
Profit adjustment for convertible B A 3R AR (& 25 i s ) 33 B
bonds (HK$’000) (BEFT) (8,042) (7,629)
54,464 40,229
Weighted average number of BT E B INE T
ordinary shares in issue (shares) (B ) 1,970,205,023 1,964,007,474
Adjustment for convertible bonds B AR &% M 38 & (A5
(shares) 86,489,201 381,818,182
Weighted average number of BREERN 2 ERR
ordinary shares for diluted e (RM)
earnings per share (shares) 2,056,694,224 2,345,825,656
Diluted earnings per share RREER AELEER
attributable to the owners of EE RN (BL)
the Company (HK cents) 2.65 1.71
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The movement of the fair value for investment properties
is as follows:

AMEN AT ERBIT

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HET A

BF

HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January 2022 E/\\—7——£'E ﬂ = 57,446
Changes in fair value recognised in ERER N EEE (M)

profit or loss (Note) 1,138

Exchange differences E N ZEFE (2,947)

At 31 December 2022 R-E__F+-_HA=+—H 55,637

At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-_=F—H—H 55,637
Changes in fair value recognised in EREBEEERZATFEZS (M)

profit or loss (Note) (2,077)
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EEZ=¥% « FE MEE (KiFE17)

(Note 17) (9,358)

Exchange differences ME X, =58 (474)

At 31 December 2023 R—B-_=F+—-_HA=+—H 43,728

Investment properties are held for long-term rental
yields and are not occupied by the Group. Investment
property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes
in fair values are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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Note:

The investment properties of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong and residential property units
located in the PRC with following details:

BEE

AREENREMFIBUABTEN T ENEEN K
AR B EEY R EL - BT

As at 31 December

Rt+t=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E:-= —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong (IR EBH T EYEEN 22,100 22,500
Residential property units located in the PRC i /A BIHI(EE Y 2B 21,628 33,137
43,728 55,637

The fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers”).

The valuations were determined using the direct comparison
approach. Sales price of comparable properties in close proximity
are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot/square meter.

REBCREMER_S_=FR=_FT=_=
ToA=t+—BZAFEHBYBEAEEESR
BEEEMBEIE ETEEBERAE (g
8 ) EHE -

HERERAERLEBOL - R R AT LRy
REHEERERIEBEPIMYERE) 2Z
EMHHE - WHEDEZREANGAREEE
FHRFHREOER
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Note: (continued)

(a) Industrial property units located in Hong Kong
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong are:

BiEE - (&)

IR BBE T Y EN
NREBEANIERMEEMEEMERNE
REZBRBAZREOT

As at 31 December

B+=—HA=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2023 2022
fh{ET % EEBERASE —E-=fF —E-
Direct comparison approach Adjusted market price per square HK$5,100 HK$5,300
foot
HELEE KRG THRTHER 7% %5,1007T 75 65,3007

As at 31 December 2023, if the adjusted market price per
square foot increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on profit
or loss would be HK$1,105,000 (2022: HK$1,125,000) higher/
lower. The higher/lower the adjusted market price per square
foot, the higher/lower the fair value.

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
residential property units located in the PRC are:

Valuation technique

hERS %

Unobservable inputs

EEEEGARE

RZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H WMRE
ABRGFHRMBESLEFTHR5%
AMBENTERREN RDEBEE
1,105,0007C( =& = — 4 : ##1,125,000
T EABRFFEARMIBERYER, W
K AFESS, K-

AR B EEY R EN
NRTFENEEMEEMGEEMERNE
BELERGAREBENOT

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F

174

Direct comparison approach

BELEBE

Adjusted market price per square
meter

ARG T IIATHER

Ranged from
RMB42,000 to
RMB54,000
(equivalent to
HK$46,000 to
HK$60,000)
SFERARY
42,000TE AR
#54,0007T (A0 E
TA7E%46,000T
Z£8%60,0007T)

Ranged from
RMB43,000 to
RMB59,000
(equivalent to
HK$48,000 to
HK$66,000)
HEHARE
43,000 E AR
59,0007t (ABE
48,0007
Z75%:66,0007T)
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Note: (continued)

(b)  Residential property units located in the PRC (continued)
As at 31 December 2023, if the adjusted market price per
square meter increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on
profit or loss would be HK$1,081,000 (2022: HK$1,657,000)
higher/lower. The higher/lower the adjusted market price per
square meter, the higher/lower the fair value.

There were no transfers of investment properties between
fair value hierarchy classifications during the year (2022:
same).

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2022: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income:

BiEE - (&)

(b) fIRFBERFEMEEN(E)
R-ZZE-_=ZF+_A=+—"H MREEK
ABRGFHRMBERLEFTHR5% -
AHBENTEBREN RLEE
1,081,0007C( =& = — 4 : ##1,657,000
L) AT E AN ERYR,
K AFESS,BIE-

MAREEREMENTFEBRE S EZML
E|ER(ZT-—F : 8R)-

R-EBE-=F+-_A=+—8 ANEEWLETH
REFEENEHNETUERBBEERRE(ZT
ZZF MR-

AT BERNERE 2 E S RAES

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
Rental income (Note 5) WA (MIFE5) 1,369 1,475
Direct operating expenses arising from RAFEEERSBMANKEMEZE
investment properties that generated B s
rental income (142) (171)
Changes in fair values recognised in the ERFEEERGERER A TEZS)
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income (2,077) 1,138

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out
its investment properties under operating leases

ranged from one to four years (2022: one to five years). F)o

AEERBLEHELHEAREMEDN
HERR—ZEWNF(ZT_—

T —2h
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Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold  Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AELHR HENE BER & £ER
BF i85 B& B A& HRIR Rit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ABTr  ABfr  REfr  R%fr  B%Tr BETR EETR
At 1 January 2022 R=B--%-A-A
Cost or fair value RARATE 444,150 3,961 2,482,060 33,526 20,944 26,996 3,011,637
Accumulated depreciation and ~ ZFTHERAE
impairment loss - (3,671)  (1,659,673) (26,836) (14,989) (271)  (1,705,440)
Net carrying amount FREE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26725 1,306,197
Year ended 31 December 2022 EZ=%-=F
tZB=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BOSEFE 444,150 290 822,387 6,690 5,955 26,725 1,306,197
Additions NE 74 8 1,615 828 406 67,772 70,703
Disposals e - - (1,162) (58) (459) - (1,678)
Transfer &5 31,951 - 32,625 381 - (64,957) -
Depreciation (Note 9) EGE) (12,269) (152) (90,637) (1,381) (1,496) - (105929)
Revaluation (Note) Efh(Kfsk) 34,898 - - - - - 34,898
Impairment loss (Note 8) B (HEs) - - (112) - - - (112)
Exchange differences EX AR (37,046) - (76,023) (537) (423) (2,770) (116,799)
Closing net carrying amount ~ SREAFE 461,764 146 688,693 5,923 3,984 26,770 1,187,280
At 31 December 2022 R-BZZF+2R=1-H
Cost or fair value RARATE 462,389 373 2,296,076 31,047 16,605 21,018 2,836,848
Accumulated depreciation EIRERAE
and impairment loss (625) (3,567)  (1,607,383) (25,124) (12,621) (248)  (1,649,568)
Net carrying amount SHFE 461,764 146 688,693 5,923 3,984 26,770 1,187,280
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Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
buildings improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

BELR AEnx HER i %ER
g= £ B R k-] RRIR ait
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bfn  R%Tn  EWTR EMfx BRTn EWTR ENTr

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-E==F

tZAZt-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount ~ SIEEFE 461,764 146 688,693 5,923 3,984 26,770 1,187,280
Additions AE - 526 2,085 2,496 947 176,585 182,639
Disposals e (162) - (2,691) (65) ) - (2,965)
Transfer B 84,035 - %49 4,482 - (187,8%) -
Depreciation (Note 9) e (W) (13,404) (170) (85,640) (1,443) (1,154) - (01,819)
Revaluation (Note) Efh(Hfik) (6,729) - - - - - (6,729)
Transfer from investment R PEE (FiH16)

properties (Note 16) 9,358 - - - - - 9,358
Exchange differences EiZER (6,308) - (10,427) (99) (42) 226 (16,650)
Closing net carrying amount SR E 529,454 502 690,439 11,294 3,688 15,745 1,251,122
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=E+-R=1-H
Cost or fair value RARATR 529,454 4199 2,338,662 36,765 16,967 15,989 2,942,036
Accumulated depreciation ZihE - (3,697) (1,648,229 (25,47) (13,279) (244)  (1,690,914)
Net carrying amount FEEE 529,454 502 690,439 11,294 3,688 15,745 1,251,122
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Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to net of their residual values
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and 2%-4%, or over the term of the

buildings leases, whichever is shorter
Leasehold 20%, or over the term of the
improvements leases, whichever is shorter

7%-20%
10%-33%

Plant and machinery

Furniture fixture and
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss. When revalued
assets are sold, it is the Group’s policy to transfer any
amounts included in property revaluation reserve in
respect of those assets to accumulated losses.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings and plant
and machinery under construction and pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs comprises direct construction costs, the cost of
plant and machinery and applicable borrowing costs
incurred during the construction period. No provision
for depreciation is made on construction-in-progress
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are brought into use, the costs are transferred to other
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated above.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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Note:

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group represent industrial
property units located in Hong Kong, commercial property unit
located in the PRC and industrial property units located in the
PRC with following details.

B3

AEENHEE L METRUNEBNTERYE
B URPENERYERECRMURNTENT
EWEEL - FBEOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2023 2022
—EB-=F B4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Industrial property units located in Hong Kong A& # 2 T ML 14,900 15,000
Commercial property unit located in the PRC i/ Bl 2 B £ Ehr 10,153 840
Industrial property units located in the PRC AR Bz T ¥ EN 504,401 445,924
529,454 461,764

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are carried at
revalued amount. If the leasehold land and buildings had not been
revalued, they would have been included in these consolidated
financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
with carrying amount of HK$408,350,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$345,175,000).

The revalued amount as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
assessed by the independent and professionally qualified valuer,
Vigers. The valuations were determined using either:

- Direct comparison approach: Sales price of comparable
properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences in
key attributes such as property size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square foot/
square meter; or

- Depreciated replacement cost approach: Current cost of
replacement/reproduction of the properties. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is replacement
cost per square foot/square meter.

AEENHET HREFREHSEEIIE M
HELHREFHREG LR T =Z=F
T A=t BRELEABRRANEZRE
{8 & 7 #408,350,0007T( =T = — F : B
345,175,0007T ) 5F A 4R & B 5 HRES o

KRB =FR-T-__FF+-_A=+—HWHE
HEEHEY B ABESEEROGERMEIE AT
o HEFRAUTE—FEETE

—  EBEELEE RMIBORAT L EYEZH
EERSHIZBUHWINMERRE) 2 ZE
SEHARE - WEHEETEREANBAR
BRETAR/TFHARNER &

- BWEEBRANE: BRMEEERA
BEUERA - WHET EREANB AR
BRETAR/FHROMEBELA
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Note: (continued) BT - (8)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements using EAFREANELERG ASE L AL ESE
(B=RNTEEH :

significant unobservable inputs (level 3):

(@

Industrial property units located in Hong Kong IREBEBZ TEYEEM
MR EBH T EYESAEMERNE
BEIBRBAASBOT

(@)
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units located in Hong Kong are:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2023 2022
fh{ETR % EEBERARE —E-=F —T o4
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price HK$5,100 HK$5,200
per square foot
ISR KAREFHRTSER 7 ¥5,1007T 7 165,2007T

As at 31 December 2023, if the adjusted market price per
square foot increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$745,000 (2022:
HK$750,000) higher/lower. The higher/lower the adjusted
market price per square foot, the higher/lower the fair value.

RZZEZ=F+=—A=+—H WNEHAE
BEYARMIBER LA TH%  HE
b2 E R ERE BIE IR DB
745,0007T( — & = — 4 : # 750,000
T EABRFFEHFRMIBERYER, &
K AFESS,BIE-

Commercial property unit located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the

MNRAPEZ BEMEEN
NRTFENEERMEEMEEMERNE
commercial property unit in the PRC are: SEEERGASIELT

As at 31 December

B+=H=+—8

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2023 2022
1877 5% FOEERE A B —g==% —Eo—fF
Market comparable approach Adjusted market price per RMB16,200 to RMB16,900
square meter RMB42,000 (equivalent to
(equivalent to HK$18,900)

HK$17,800 to

HK$46,000)
M LE A KRBT IRMISER AR¥16,200t AK#16,9007T
Z AR%42,000 (HER
T(EERBYE  B%18,9007T)

17,800 T E &Y

46,0007T)
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Note: (continued)

Commercial property unit located in the PRC (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, if the adjusted market price per
square meter increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on
other comprehensive income would be HK$508,000 (2022:
HK$42,000) higher/lower. The higher/lower the adjusted
market price per square meter, the higher/lower the fair value.

Industrial property units located in the PRC
The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the
industrial property units in the PRC are:

BieE - ()

MR B 2 Y ¥ B AL (4E)
RZZEZ=F+—A=+—H8 WNEAE
BEHRTIBER LA THEs%  HE
b2 E R ER AL IR B
508,0007T (= Z = =4 : ##42,0007T)°
KARGTHAMBERES K 2
FlEME, MK -

NIz T ¥ ¥ BN
NRTFENTEMEEMEEMERNE
REZBRBAREOT

As at 31 December

Valuation technique

HERE

Unobservable inputs

BEBERAMNE

R+=—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E-=F B &

Depreciated replacement cost approach

Unit replacement cost
per square meter

Ranged from Ranged from

ERESERATE

Adopted depreciation rate

ERAZITEE

FFHKREMEBRA

RMB1,000 to RMB900 to
RMB2,000 RMB1,800
(equivalent to (equivalent to
HK$1,100 to HK$1,000 to
HK$2,200) HK$2,000)
HEHARYE HERARE
1,000t ZARYE  900TZEARE
2,000t (AEER  1,800T(HEER
B¥1,100TEHE  BIK1,0000 2%
#2 2007T) #2 0007T)

Ranged from
31% to 97% 38% to 97%
EHEHII%NE HE R38N E

97% 97%

Ranged from

As at 31 December 2023, if the unit replacement cost per
square meter increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on
other comprehensive income would be HK$20,920,000
(2022: HK$21,514,000) higher/lower. The lower the unit
replacement cost per square meter, the higher/lower the fair
value.

R-—BE-—=¢+=-RA=+—RH 08§
EHARBEMEERA L TFEE%
HEME2ERSZOTEG RN RS
7 1#20,920,0007C( — T — —F : B
21,514,0007T ) & F KB E B AN i
5/ AFERS, B -
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Note: (continued)

(¢)  Industrial property units located in the PRC (continued)
As at 31 December 2023, if the adopted depreciation rate
increased/decreased by 5%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$31,659,000 (2022:
HK$28,812,000) higher/lower. The higher/lower the adopted
depreciation rate, the higher/lower the fair value.

There were no transfers of leasehold land and buildings
between fair value hierarchy classifications during the year
(2022: same).

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

The consolidated statement of financial position
shows the following amounts relating to the
leases in respect of office premises:

BieE - ()

RIARR Y TS (E)
RZE-_=F+-_A=+—H WEH#HA
ZIER T TH5% - HEM 2 E kS
KRB G RN, R #531,659,0007T
(ZZT - — 4 : %28,812,0005T)° &
TERMS, MK APESS,HIE-

RAFEHETHRETORFEBRD
BYEEHR(—T_—F : fAR)-

IR BAEE A RBAZR
EER

AR RFITE T HIEM A
MR AEIEW L

As at 31 December

R+t=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= .
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT

Right-of-use assets BEECRAE

Offices premises /NELYE S 416 1,665

Lease liabilities HEAE

Non-current I ED - 446

Current M E 446 1,292
446 1,738

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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The consolidated statement of comprehensive
income shows the following amounts relating to
the leases in respect of office premise:

RE2EKERIIRA 5 EHEA

EMEHERBEOTHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE

2023 2022
—F=-= —ZF==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Depreciation of right-of-use BEGRAEZITE(HE)
assets (Note 9) 1,249 1,249
Interest expense on lease MEABEZMEXH(FHEE11)
liabilities (Note 11) 60 126

The total cash outflow for leases during the year
ended 31 December 2023 is HK$1,352,000 (2022:
HK$1,352,000).

The Group leases various offices. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 3 years
(2022: 3 years).

BHE-_T-_=F+-HA=+—HL
FEAEEEEANBESREEA
11,852,000 ( Z T = —F : &
#1,352,0007T) °

AEBLEEAETHAZE - HEAR
BER=F(ZZE_=F:=F)2
[&] & HAPR ©
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Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

° variable lease payments that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date

° amounts expected to be payable by the group
under residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

HEMELZEERBEBENHIER
BEEEFE-HERERFENATHE
ENSEFERE

o EBEENF(BRELMEEM
OB A FE U TR B R -

o EREBELLELHEGE S
BIRB AL E SRR A
RAEHH

o FHREEFERTHAKEAN
FEf 3R

e BEEEBERMNTEE(MAE
BB ETREZEEE)
P54

s RHEEHIRMRAKESITEER
BEKIEER KRIEHEED
FERAZIK -

BB A BT T AR
BE - BENRELMAREN
g

HENRBERES MY KA Z
T DB M AERE A
ARz IRIREE 603 5 1 A =
B R B EREAERE -



Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for which
the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

BEEMBIZKAE B

HERBENIBRITESHE

s HHEHMBBHZATZTH
ME KRR R A HEE R
B

o MAEEREM M
o ERMRA-

BRFRRKEEHEMIEHEE -E‘B
Do AEERFEELBLERKEE

RFORESEAEEMIEEES
Do BR HRAKEESEEA
MEMERE EEAKEEMIE
HEFD D ﬁmﬂﬁﬁ%—ﬁ
EENHEER O ETEREE

HENMRETSEEENER B
TR WA ge B & R A RN
- HERBTEELSEHEARF
EMHEEEEMNERNBZINGE
MR - HEEETSAERBRE
R

HEMREZBEERS M RFR -
AEENHEEASHNRBEEELIE
BT EULERT - ERA A
ARIBEERA - RAHEAELR
URBERFE TN ESEEEFEREE
BRI EE - ERUERE AR L
B EEEAE MM A F
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the landlord, which does
not have recent third-party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group
entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The group is exposed to potential future increases
in variable lease payments based on an index or
rate, which are not included in the lease liability
until they take effect. When adjustments to lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect,
the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the assets’ useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land
and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the
right-of-use buildings held by the group.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
without a purchase option.

HEERmITENEHEE LA R
BEEEHENHEBNTIRERR
REDRERRER BHHEERE
ERHEEME12E A N EZ
REBEEENEE -

As at 31 December

R+t=—B=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-= g

HK$’000 HK$°000
BET T BEET T

Financial assets at amortised cost: ZEERATENSREE :
Trade receivables JEUS BR 7Kk 645,519 565,447
Bills receivables eSS 713,917 653,069
Deposits and other receivables e N H A e BN 1,652 3,768
Pledged bank deposits EEPIRITFR 20,002 80,101
Bank balances and cash RITHEFT IR E 77,138 145,807

1,458,228 1,448,192

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: IR R AT ENLHEE -

Trade and bills payables FERBRR R iR 795,445 800,885

Other payables and accruals EtEfR N TERRE A 260,762 212,341

Bank borrowings RITE 487,537 454,552

Lease liabilities HEAE 446 1,738
1,544,190 1,469,516

Financial liability at fair value BAFHEFABZZSHEE

through profit or loss:
Convertible bonds AR ES - 132,074
Cross-currency swap R X B2 H 643 -

1,544,833 1,601,590
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The Group’s interests in land use rights represent the
prepaid lease payments under operating leases, being
a part of the right-of-use assets of the Group.

AEER L ERENERELEHY
THRNHETR BRAKEEEEH
O —8D -

HK$’000

BET T
At 1 January 2022 RNR-_E-_—_F—HF—H 146,264
Amortisation (Note 9) B8 (M17E9) (3,891)
Exchange differences ME N =R (12,231)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZEBE-_—_F+=-_F=+—H 130,142
At 1 January 2023 M-T-—=#—F—H 130,142
Amortisation (Note 9) e (M3E9) (3,707)
Exchange differences ME 5 =5 (1,831)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+=-_A=+—H 124,604

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$3,707,000
(2022: HK$3,891,000) has been included in costs of
sales.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost represents consideration paid for the right to use
the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of leases.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

R AFEE & R B 3,707,000
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T PR T TT

Raw materials R 184,557 152,790

Work in progress ER G 70,997 77,068

Finished goods BIRK 2 111,124 209,562

366,678 439,420

Less: provision for inventories W FERE (16,665) (17,117)

350,013 422,303

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during RAERHEXNAFNEFEERARBE

the year amounted to HK$2,108,550,000 (2022: 2,108,550,0000( — & — — DB
HK$2,123,045,000). 2,123,045,0007T ) °

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —EF-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T PR T IT

Trade receivables (Note (a)) UL BR SR (P 7 (a)) 667,322 587,033
Less: provision for impairment losses & : EUERFURE B LG

on trade receivables (Note (c)) (Fff5E(c)) (21,803) (21,586)

645,519 565,447

Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEU =15 (MH5E (b)) 713,917 653,069

1,359,436 1,218,516
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The carrying amounts of the trade receivables and bills
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

R H IR R EBEENREENATIIE

WA

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H

2023 2022

—E-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
RMB AREE 1,222,681 994,520
us$ X7T 106,034 150,163
EUR BT 29,365 73,697
Others Hib Gk 1,356 136
1,359,436 1,218,516

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range
from 30 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date was as

follows:

AEE-—RETHESEFI0BE
OEHEERA - BWEREER
BEZEHHGHRZRRONMEZ510
™

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—=E-= -

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT

Up to 90 days +FZ=90H 512,979 317,331
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 111,399 202,979
Over 180 days %1 180H 42,944 66,723
667,322 587,033
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The aging analysis of the bills receivables based
on invoice date was as follows:

EUEETERESEASRLEY
R AITZIIMT -

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—H=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 90 days FZ=90H 80,533 34,226
91 to 180 days 91%180H 311,170 288,126
Over 180 days %m180H 322,214 330,717
713,917 653,069

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bills
receivables mature within one year (2022: same).

The carrying amounts of the bills receivables
include bills which are transferred to banks
or suppliers by discounting or endorsing the
bills receivables on a full recourse basis.
Under these arrangements, the Group has not
transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these receivables. The Group
therefore continues to recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in its
consolidated statement of financial position
and measuring them at amortised cost.

R-B-_=F+-"A=+—HB 'K
EENEREEFHBEHE—F
ZAR(ZEZ—F : }FR)-

AT AAEERRERRIZE
HEREERRTRITHEE
THER ZBIRRE - HRA
SRV ARERAEXTRER
BEZEXRRERNER - Fi#
HEBEERZERWEE 2 2F
EEELEAEEE ZFEE
BERBHEERARASE
e MBI KR AR
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The relevant carrying amounts a

re as follows:

BRAFREENT ¢

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= T -F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Bills receivables discounted ®RZ2HEREECHRETF
to banks with full recourse  RITZEKEE
Transferred bills receivables a0 e W R IR 17,601 335
Associated secured borrowings #HEIE B E K (17,601) (335)
Bills receivables endorsed to E2HEREECEET
suppliers with full recourse  HEEZERERE
Transferred bills receivables R E W 570,116 538,215
Associated trade payables 1B A FE SRR3R (528,543) (450,115)
Associated other payables AR EL A e (25,976) (72,590)
Associated prepayments FERE TR K (15,597) (15,510)

The movement on the provision fo

r impairment

FEWERFORE R R B AN T

losses on trade receivables is as follows:
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—=E-= —EF_—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year F7) 21,586 22,402
Net impairment losses on trade AN ERKRFBEIBIFE
receivables for the year 518 1,114
Exchange differences ME =% (301) (1,930)
At end of the year R 21,803 21,586

192  SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BH{ERHZRUEEERAT]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying values of each class
of receivables mentioned above. The Group did
not hold any collateral as security for these
receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: same).

RS HH FAEERRA L
EREEFENRAE - R_F
“=Ft+-HA=1+—R X&EEY
IS A0 VE R % 5 FE R

ENE#RR(ZE =

F MR-

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T T
Current portion TEE A
Prepayments TE K 40,359 20,567
Tax recoverables (Note) AT eI IE (P EE) 3,328 39,585
Deposits oA 504 142
Other receivables H b fE U TR 1,148 3,252
45,339 63,546
Non-current portion FEREIBD
Rental deposits Heke - 374
Prepayments for the acquisition of BEMXE  BE K&E 2 EK
property, plant and equipment 30,325 20,554
30,325 20,928
75,664 84,474

Note: Tax recoverables are mainly represent input value-added tax
arisen from the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
and purchase of materials.

MIEE - ATREHIREESBEYE BELRE
NEEM R EE R ET
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The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and

BN e ARSI ENL T

other receivables are denominated in the following H|EEEEHE -
currencies:
As at 31 December
BR+=ZA=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
RMB AREE 74,932 83,870
uUs$ ETT 4 4
EUR BXTT 435 11
Others Hih & 293 589
75,664 84,474

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for
bills payables (Note 26) and bank borrowings (Note 27)
are:

() pledged bank deposits: HK$20,002,000 (2022:
HK$80,101,000) (Note 25); and

(i)  bills receivables: HK$17,601,000 (2022: HK$335,000)
(Note 22(b)(i)).
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As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Pledged bank deposits BIKIREITFER 20,002 80,101

Pledged bank deposits represents bank deposits
of the Group which were pledged to secure credit
facilities on bills payables granted to subsidiaries
of the Company for the purchase of raw materials.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s pledged
deposits were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest
rate on pledged bank deposits was ranged from
1.45% to 1.55% per annum (2022: 1.45% per

annum).

BEERMRITFREAERENRITF
REEIRABL AR B 2 KB R FI5L
BERMHZENZERGEER
JE o N8 B K 7 A Bk T B A
AR¥EHE -

R—ZEZ_=F+=ZA=+—8"
EEBRITERANERENEXA
1.45%%E1.55%( — T = = F:
1.45%)°

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2023 2022
—=E-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Bank balances and cash RITEGFTRIRS 77,138 145,807
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The carrying amounts of bank balance and cash
were denominated in the following currencies:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BITETRAEOEEENTIIE
A -

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
RMB AR 46,114 41,977
HKD B 5,569 2,181
us$ ETT 22,469 74,156
EUR BT 2,838 27,493
Others Hibh gk 148 =
77,138 145,807

As at 31 December 2023, funds of the Group
amounting to HK$65,481,000 (2022: HK$141,235,000)
were deposited in bank accounts opened with banks
in the PRC where the remittance of funds is subject
to foreign exchange control.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
as at 31 December 2023 were HK$77,089,000
(2022: HK$145,755,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the effective interest
rate on bank balances ranged from 0.01% to
4.99% per annum (2022: 0.01% to 4.31%).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

RZZEZ=F+ZA=+—H 'K
&= @ & £175 165,481,000T( — &
— % : #%141,235,00070 ) K
EHRBEREARIRITHAARITERS
mAEBESNESEINEEH

RZEZ=F+=_A=+—8H"
AEBNEAGEERRABK
77,089,000 T ( — T = —F : B
145,755,0007T ) °

RZEZ=F+=Z_A=+—8"
RITETFERFFNEXROI%E
499%( — L — — £ :0.01% %
4.31%)°
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As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Trade payables (Note (a)) FETBR R (B 7E(a)) 707,608 601,058
Bills payables (Note (b)) FE 215 (M15E (b)) 87,837 199,827
795,445 800,885

Other payables and accruals - current HttENRRBRER - K5
Contract liabilities (Note (c)) a#BaEMTEC) 4,793 861
Accrued wages and salaries FERIENE® 30,566 25,372
Other tax payables H b IR 8,306 7,336
Other accruals HiiERE A 9,058 8,088
Interest payables FEASTHIB, 2,215 847

Other payables (including payables HE{SR(2EME  HE

for property, plant and equipment)  NR#EZ B K) 249,489 203,406
304,427 245,910
1,099,872 1,046,795
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables,
bills payables and other payables and accruals are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEBH RN BNEENMEMERN
REEREARREENA T IIEEHE:

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= T -F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
HKD Bk 13,531 10,325
RMB AR 1,060,471 1,004,118
uss$ ET 23,867 29,131
EUR BT 1,961 3,221
Others Ha g 42 —

1,099,872 1,046,795

The Group’s credit period granted by the suppliers
is 30 days. The aging analysis of the trade payables
based on invoice date was as follows:

HEE - RETAKREENEE
R EBAEFIREZRAHREH
ZERER DM EFNT :

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+—H
2023 2022
—Eg=-= —E -

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Up to 30 days =30H 319,356 164,146
31 to 90 days 31290H 191,594 135,552
91 to 180 days 91%180H 169,927 232,148
181 to 365 days 181£365H 20,231 62,714
Over 365 days %12 365 H 6,500 6,498
707,608 601,058
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The aging analysis of the bills payables based on
invoice date was as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

ENEEREZZEBHRR KR
D25

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—H=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Up to 30 days FZ=30H 5,628 15,673
31 to 90 days 31£90H 33,524 37,984
91 to 180 days 91%180H 36,851 139,065
Over 180 days % 180H 11,834 7,105
87,837 199,827

The bills payables of the Group are secured by
pledged bank deposits as disclosed in Note 25.

As at 31 December 2023, the contract liabilities
for the advanced payments received from the
customers included in the other payables and
accruals amounted to HK$4,793,000 (2022:
HK$861,000).

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31
December 2023 that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year amounted
to HK$861,000 (2022: HK$922,000). The Group
expects to deliver the goods to satisfy the
remaining performance obligations of these
contract liabilities within one year or less.

AEEZ BNEBEASERRITE
AR TP TE25 4K 5 -

NZTBE-=F+-—A=+—8 4
HaEZERERRIBEREME
K& TEIR B A 515 % 4,793,000
TL(ZZT =4 : £%861,0007T)°

HE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—H1t
FEEEADBA  BEEOAEE
B € ¥ 45 4 - 5% 861,000
(ZZF == : &%922,0007T)° &
EEEANE—FRERBERARZM
Y BT LA B EH T
BHET-
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As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8
2023 2022
—E_-= g

HK$’000 HK$°000

BET T BT T

Bank loans IRITER 469,936 454,217
Discounted bills with recourse B RENEIBEE

(Note 22(b)(i) (FzE22(b)(i)) 17,601 335

487,537 454,552

Current portion MENE D 487,537 454,552

Secured B 17,601 335

Unsecured 4K 469,936 454,217

487,537 454,552

The Group’s bank borrowings were repayable as follows: REBRSETERZBESNOT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Within 1 year —FR 487,537 454,552

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

RITEFROREAEREEL A FERS -

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of fixed
rate borrowings and variable rate borrowings are
HK$122,432,000 (2022: HK$274,552,000) and
HK$365,105,000 (2022: HK$180,000,000) respectively.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

R_E-_=ZF+_A=+—H BEEF
EKERRFEFNEERZEMED A
5 #122,432,000C( T == F : B
274,552,0007T ) & # #365,105,0007T
(ZZ =% : #%180,000,0007T)°
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, bank
borrowings of HK$17,601,000 (2022: HK$335,000) are
secured by bills receivables as disclosed in Note 24.

As at 31 December 2023, total undrawn facilities
amounted to HK$261,755,000 (2022: HK$167,824,000).

The range of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contractual interest rates) on bank borrowings
are as follows:

BEZFT-_=F+-A=1t—BL*F
ERN S mﬁﬁféff‘x/% 17,601,000
(=T =% : j&#335,0007T) = AR
H&zﬂz‘?f’ﬁz%ﬁﬁﬂﬁwﬁfzﬂﬁé °

N_E-_=F+-"A=+—8 K&
& 458 A7 061,755,000t ( — 2 = —
& 1 B1167,824,0007T)

RITERCERMNE(TBERETLF
ﬁ.—\)El'\] BENT

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2023 2022
—ZEgq2-= —E-=

E

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFFEF|EK :
Fixed rate borrowings EEMEER

S =

Variable rate borrowings FREAMEER

2.40% to 5.00% 0.65% to 6.47%
2.40%%5.00% 0.65%%6.47%
4.50% to 7.02% 3.22% to 8.15%
4.50%%7.02% 3.22%%8.15%

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in the following currencies:

AREBRITERNEEEN T IIEEE
18 :

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2023 2022
—_E2-= —EFE-—

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

EUR BXTT - 23,175
us$ ETT - 390
RMB AR 187,537 250,987
HKD s 300,000 180,000
487,537 454,552
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On 11 February 2019 (the “Issuance Date”), the
Company issued convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$150,000,000 (the “Convertible Bonds”)
to Jingxi Holdings Limited (“Jingxi Holdings”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd
(“Shougang Group”, which is the substantial shareholder
with significant influence of the Company). The
consideration for the Convertible Bonds was
HK$150,000,000. The Convertible Bonds are interest
bearing at a coupon rate of 4% per annum.

The holder of the Convertible Bonds has:

(i)  the option to demand the Company to redeem the
Convertible Bonds on 11 February 2022 (the
“Original Maturity Date”) at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding plus any accrued and unpaid
interest;

(i) the option to convert the Convertible Bonds into
ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion
price derived on certain conditions at the date of
conversion falling 6 months from the Issuance Date
and up to the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds; and

(i) the option to extend the Original Maturity Date
twice by one year each to the date falling on 11
February 2024.

The Convertible Bonds, together with the abovementioned
options, were designated as a financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Convertible Bonds are initially recognised at the
fair value as financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss. The fair value of the Convertible Bonds as at
31 December 2022 was valued by the independent and
professionally qualified valuer, Greater China Appraisal
Limited. The valuation was determined using Black-
Scholes model with Trinomial Tree method.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

RZE—NEF-A+—B(%TH]) K
NAIMRAAEERBR AR RAEZER])
(BEHEEERAR(TEMER ] AAF]
BREEAFENZFERR)NEZENB
NA])EITAEL R A5 %150,000,0007T
A RIRES ([T RES |) o AT RRE
FH R (B A7 #150,000,0007T ° 7] #2 A%
BEHFREFI%NEEAEGTE -

AR ESRFEARSR

() MRZZBEZ—F-_A+—BURHKEZ
HH ) BkARQAIE100% M & E
BASEIMEMRERNEREE
B[R EH A EE

(iy HERE(REATBREREZET
F6fEAEZ2H A FHER A
ETIRE) SR RBRESEBR AR
NAEBREER Rk

(i) ERRHBIFHARK BR—FFE
TECNF AT —RHIEREE

AR E S  ER LAUEE - W E /R
NHEFABRRZEMEE-

AR EFNTRAFEERRRRF
Bt ABEZeBMAB-R-_T_—

TZA=1t—8 BB EFNRFEHR
BYMAEXERONGEMEENES
[RARETTHE - s A ENEERAMA
7o o BRI A HTRAY B = NADE o



During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
received from the holder of the Convertible Bond an
extension notice to extend the maturity date to 11
February 2023 and a conversion notice to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$24,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.33 per
share. The conversion shares were issued on 7 February
2022. As a result of conversion and revaluation of the
remaining extended Convertible Bonds, a gain on fair
value of HK$21,700,000 was recorded in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Convertible Bonds were matured in February 2023
and the Company has made full redemption of
outstanding principal amount of HK$126,000,000 of the
Convertible Bonds. As a result of redemption of the
remaining extended Convertible Bonds, a gain on fair
value of HK$3,554,000 was recorded in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The movements of the financial liability at fair value
through profit or loss during the year are as below:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BHE-_ZT-_—_F+=-A=T—HL*=F
B AREE T RERESFEAZLN
EHEANNERIBAE S _=F=
A+—H8 I8 lEEnEmARRkE
AERBNEE0IBTERALE LS
#24,000,0007T 2 A] # j% & 5 o # 3% AR
M —E-—F - BT AR
REGBRGHEEHATRRES B2 =
T —F+ZA=F+—HLEFEZFA
BREA AT EKEAE21,700,0007T ©

RBREFR_T_=F A3 H-
ARRERHELOREELSRAER
126,000,0007T 2 AJ IR EH - B EE
FIrEEH A MR ES HE_T ==
EJr A=+—BLFEEZFABED
N B A H3,554,0007T ©

KEJ*TE’&M?{E;HU\TE fZ SRR BN

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLHEE

2023 2022
—E-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

At beginning of the year F) 132,074 183,278

Settlement BT (128,520) (5,504)

Conversion R - (24,000)
Fair value gain recognised in ERERERATEKR

profit or loss (Note 8) (K¥5E8) (3,554) (21,700)

At end of the year FR - 132,074
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Note:

The key unobservable inputs used in the valuation of the financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss are:

i

FAEZZEABEREABRNERAFEF AR
HZERAGES

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2022
fRE R % EEBERARE ===
Black-Scholes model with Dividend yield 6.82%
Trinomial Tree method

s « MTRIMETEA R = 0% % B Wk =

Volatility 55.32%

Tk

As at 31 December 2022, if the dividend vyield shifted upward by
1%, the impact on profit would be HK$221,000 higher. The higher
the dividend yield, the lower the fair value.

As at 31 December 2022, if the volatility shifted upward by 5%,
the impact on profit would be HK$1,502,000 lower). The higher
the volatility, the higher the fair value.

There were no transfers of financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss between fair value hierarchy classifications during
the year (2022: same).

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

HE-_Z_—_F+_A=+—HLFE HRE
Wﬂftﬂweﬁ%%%QMﬁE%Mnnmo
MBI RME AT EMIE -

BE-_ZE-_—F#+-A=+—HIFE HEKH
K EFA5% - R 28R A B #8%1,502,000
ToRBEYS  AEESS -

F$¢ BAFEFABSZEHBERTERE
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As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2023 2022
—E=-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSHIAEEE (10,026) (1,505)
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSHIIEAE 27,733 28,007
17,707 26,502

The movements of deferred income tax during the year

are as follows:

EEFMBRERAFE 2

gk :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-BA=+t—HLFE

2023 2022

—E-= —E-F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

At beginning of the year F7) 26,502 22,981

Credited to profit or loss FFAERE (7,636) (705)
(Credited)/charged to other GGTA)/ R b 2 E s

comprehensive income (1,051) 5,225

Exchange differences b X =58 (108) (999)

At end of the year FR 17,707 26,502

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset tax
recoverable against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority.

i 35 77 FE A TE AT 01T 2 HE N DA R U ]
MIARE RSN A EERE  mELEMS
MR S [F] — B BRAK R AR R By - IEE PR S X
HEEKRBER TIAEH-
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The movement in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year is as follows:

Decelerated

BLERGEHABERBBERAFECE
E U

Provision for
impairment

tax loss on trade

Provision for

Total deferred

depreciation  receivables inventories  Tax losses  tax assets

RS
HERX BEBE
AERBITE R FERE HEEE EEAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2022 R=B-—F-f-H (13,638) (29) (2,166) (8,698) (24,531)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (3 A)/HEIES (72) (17) 66 (4,117) (4,140)
Exchange differences X =5 1,085 6 177 596 1,844
At 31 December 2022 R-B--&+-R=t-H (12,645) (40) (1,923) (12,219) (26,827)
At 1 January 2023 R-B-=%£-A-H (12,645) (40) (1,923) (12,219) (26,827)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (s A)/HEiES (118) 12 34 (8,305) (8,377)
Exchange differences ERESE 233 (73) 24 229 413
At 31 December 2023 R-BZ=%+-A=1-H (12,530) (101) (1,865) (20,295) (34,791)
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Withholding

tax on

distributable
profit of Total
Revaluation subsidiaries deferred
of properties in the PRC tax liabilities

RAEREAT
ZARERE EEHE
MEER ZBRBE BEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZ#-HF-H 36,633 10,879 47,512
Charged to profit or loss MRERE 309 3,126 3,435
Charged to other comprehensive income I £ 2 E Y% 5,225 = 5225
Exchange differences EREH (2,843) - (2,843)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE--f+-A=+-H 39,324 14,005 53,329
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-=f-F-H 39,324 14,005 53,329
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (Bt A)/MiAEsE (419) 1,160 741
Credited to other comprehensive income & AE A2 E Kz (1,051) - (1,051)
Exchange differences BEHES (521) - (521)
At 31 December 2023 R-B-=§+=h=1-8 37,333 15,165 52,498

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of HK$122,623,000 (2022:
HK$68,780,000) which shall expire in three to ten years
(2022: three to ten years) and estimated unused tax
losses of HK$303,557,000 (2022: HK$299,119,000) are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arise.

R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H &A£8AH
fhEr AR B A HIBEE &% 122,623,000
T(ZZF = —fF : %¥68,780,0007T )"
ESHAE=-Z+F(ZT=_=_F: =
E+F)UHERDAFEEEBE
303,557,000t( = & = = F: H
299,119,0007T ) I £ R Hi A A K 45 AR
REFHEEEEBZ AR RRET
A
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$117,435,000 (2022:
HK$141,902,000) which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised, as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments. However,
where derivatives do not meet the hedge accounting
criteria, they are classified as ‘held for trading’ for
accounting purposes and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss below.

The full fair value of hedging derivatives is classified
as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months.
It is classified as a current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.

The Group has the following derivative financial
instruments in the following line items in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

R_E_=ZF+_A=+—H £5H
B 75%117,435,000L( T ——F : /&
#141,902,0007T ) /Y AT 105 52 & 1 =
2 FARERETE A SEREEMN A T LA
B M EERBEERIBEE -

MEERRARKEEEHBENM IS
ERIBIERE Al B - BEVTEER IR
EEMEIRTNGE EREFTEER
o EMEREARIEZERE | LA
NFHEFABRBZARAT ©

EEHRENAKRIPEZM2@EA -
ERTEEMNEHBAFESHEMNS
FRBEEXEE - ZEEHEB ORI
HALK12ER EMITEERS T
MRRBDEEXRB -BHUTLEEMRS
REMARBDEERRE-

AREBEUATTEERIANRGS Y
BARKIATHIRE F

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T TT
Current liabilities REBEE
Cross-currency swap R X E#t= B 643 -

For information about the methods and assumptions
used in determining the fair value of derivatives
please refer to note 3.3.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A
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The following amounts were recognised in profit

or loss in relation to derivatives:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ATEBETLEEMNSEERNER
PR

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—H=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Fair value loss on derivative TESRMIAMNAFEIBL
financial instruments (643) -
Number of
Shares
BHEE
Thousand HK$’000
B BT T
Issued and fully paid: EBITRARRA
At 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—HF—H 1,898,653 1,191,798
Conversion of convertible bonds iR Al I E S (5 (a))

(Note (a)) 72,727 24,000
At 31 December 2022 RZE_—F+=H=+—H 1,971,380 1,215,798
At 1 January 2023 R-E-—=F—H—A 1,971,380 1,215,798
Cancellation of shares (Note (b)) FEiERR ) (MH3E(b)) (2,476) -
At 31 December 2023 R-B-—=F+-A=+—H 1,968,904 1,215,798
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Notes:

()

On 7 February 2022, the Company issued 72,727,272
ordinary shares in relation to the exercise of the conversion
right attaching to the convertible Bonds to convert the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$24,000,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.33.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
repurchased 12,654,000 ordinary shares for approximately
HK$2,699,000. 2,132,000
approximately HK$380,000 were cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the remaining 10,522,000
ordinary shares for approximately HK$2,319,000 were

repurchased shares for

cancelled in January 2024 and was charged to retained
earnings within shareholders’ equity.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
repurchased 344,000 ordinary shares. All of the repurchased
shares were cancelled in February 2023. The total amount
paid for the share repurchase was approximately HK$69,000
and was charged to retained earnings within shareholders’
equity.

The buy-back and cancellation were approved by
shareholders at last year’s annual general meeting, and the
payment was made out of the Company’s distributable profits
with no reduction of capital in compliance with HKCO.

The shares were acquired at an average price of HK$0.213
(2022: HK$0.202) per share, with prices ranging from
HK$0.163 to HK$0.243 (2022: HK$0.190 to HK$0.210). The
total amount of HK$2,699,000 (2022: HK$69,000) paid to
acquire the shares has been deducted from retained earnings
within shareholders’ equity.
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BEE

RZZFE-_—F-_A+tH ARFERES
BT AT IR AR E S M TS A S R M SRR
M- DR E A IRIRAR IR 19 7 #50.33
TLES K 4 %8 575 524,000,000 2 Al #2
BfES - B1772,727,272 8 L iAAL -

BHE-_T-_=Ff+-A=+—HL*F
& R R A LA & A 2,699,000t fE
[5112,654,0000% & i %« H B L4 B 8
380,0007T Fr % | #92,132,0000% E 7 &
E_E-_ZF+_A=+—BHLFERNTE
0 H 8 49 DA 8 %52,319,0007T Fr B8 B /Y
10,522,000 LR E R T =_HF— A
FESH - B YRR R A A R AR B s I AR 40
|}§é\ °

BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HBIEE"
AR EI 8 T 344,000 L @A - FTE R
BOER=ZZE=-_=F A= -BBERH
Fr 2 < MY 4R BB 40 5 78 #569,000T © B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Commitments in respect of the  BEWH  BE L& EH 2 FE
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
— contracted for but not —BETAME MR ERE TSR
provided in the consolidated HELEE
financial statements 78,842 119,083

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

RBEEHR AEERBFOEZ
ARREEYESARRNT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2023 2022
—E_-= T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BB TIT

Within one year —F R 1,035 1,103
In the second to fifth year F-EFRAFN

inclusive 1,010 576

2,045 1,679
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HL%E

2023 2022
—E-=F —E--F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELEZRERE
Profit before income tax BRETEH AR 69,670 57,688
Adjustments for: G
Net impairment loss on trade receivables — EMEBRZFREEX 518 1,114
Net provision for inventories FEFRHE 410 4,881
Amortisation of land use rights THERE EE 3,707 3,891
Changes in fair value of investment RENMELTEZE
properties 2,077 (1,138)
Change in fair value of a financial liability ~ ZATEFAEZZ EHERE
at fair value through profit or loss NFEZEE (3,554) (21,700)
Depreciation of property, plant and 0¥ BERZEINE
equipment 101,811 105,929
Depreciation of right-of-use assets BEFAEZNE 1,249 1,249
Impairment losses on property, nE BERREIRERE
plant and equipment - 112
Change in fair value of derivative MTESBTAAFEZE
financial instruments 643 -
Losses on disposal of property, plant HENE BER&EL
and equipment, net BE- 8 2,055 92
Finance costs BRI AR 25,917 52,861
Finance income FERA (7,003) (2,246)
Operating cash flows before movements  HEZ & EBA LEHLTE
in working capital 197,500 202,733
Changes in working capital: 2EEEHE
Inventories RE 66,210 (2,600)
Trade receivables FEWERR (88,334) 168,504
Bills receivables EUEE (69,771) 90,666
Prepayments, deposits and other BN ke REMWEKT
receivables 17,605 7,992
Trade and bills payables EREREER 15,814 (225,570)
Other payables and accruals HEih AR ERER 23,380 (59,525)
Cash generated from operations MEEBMEELRE 162,404 182,200
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In the consolidated statement of cash flows, NEEReRERT LEME.
proceeds from disposal of property, plant and MENMKXEZTERENT
equipment:

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T PR T T

Net carrying amount AREFE 2,965 1,678
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE - HENEZEZ

plant and equipment, net E = (2,055) (92)
Proceeds from disposals of LEME BEREREZ

property, plant and equipment FiS 508 910 1,586
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The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TRANAEEHRETBELN

Ho-HBRELTHELNBERZT
RenBeIARKRERELERN
AEBHEGRERERK D ERE
AHELRSRENEE-

Financial
liability at
fair value
Loan from through
Bank Interest ~ arelated  profit or Lease
borrowings  payables  company loss liabilities Total
RE-B  BAYE
BELAR HABEZ
#7857 EAAS 2R SREBE HEEE At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BBt BT ABTn  BMTr BBTn BTx
(Note 27) (Note 28)  (Note 18)
(Btskar) (Mike8)  (Wri18)
At 1 January 2022 RZE-§-A-H 479,838 463 24,570 183,278 2,964 691,113
Cash inflow REmA 805,766 - - - - 805,766
Cash outflow REmi (799,063) (19,081) (23,377) (5,504) (1,352)  (848,327)
Exchange differences EiER (32,378) (52) (2,242) - - (34672
Non-cash movement FRETY 389 19,467 1049 (45,700) 126 (24,669)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZE+ZB=+-A 454,552 847 - 132,074 1,738 589,211
At 1 January 2023 RZBZ=E-f-H 454,552 847 - 132,074 1,738 589,211
Cash inflow BEmA 718,903 - - - - 778,903
Cash outflow Ko (744,087) (14,808) - (128,520) (1,352)  (888,767)
Exchange differences EiEE (1,831) (6,812 - - - (8,643)
Non-cash movement ERENY - 22,988 - (3,554) 60 19,494
At 31 December 2023 R=B=ZE+ZfA=+-H 487,537 2,215 - - 446 490,198
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A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 7 June 2002. Under
the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”)
of the Company shall, subject to and in accordance
with the provisions of the 2002 Scheme and the Listing
Rules, grant share options to any eligible participant
to subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.
A new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) was
adopted and the 2002 Scheme was terminated by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 25 May 2012.

The 2012 Scheme became effective on 29 May 2012
upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
granting approval of the listing of, and permission to
deal in, any shares falling to be issued and allotted
upon the exercise of the share options granted.

The share options which have been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme remain
valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue.

The Company operates the 2002 Scheme (subsequently
replaced by the 2012 Scheme) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
for their contributions to the Group or potential
contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
2002 Scheme include any director (including executive
and non-executive), executive, officer, employee or
shareholder of the Company or any of the subsidiaries
or any of the associates or any of the joint ventures
and any supplier, customer, consultant, adviser, agent,
partner or business associate who will contribute or
has contributed to the Group.
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Qualifying grantees of the 2012 Scheme include any
director (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive), executive, officer,
employee, shareholder of the Company or any of the
subsidiaries or any of the associated companies or any
of the joint ventures and any supplier, customer,
consultant, adviser, agent, partner or business associate,
who will contribute or has contributed to the development
and growth of the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, the 2012 Scheme will remain in force for
a period of ten years from 29 May 2012. The 2012
Scheme has expired on 28 May 2022.

The offer of a grant of share options under the 2012
Scheme may be accepted within 60 days from the date
of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 by the grantee. An option may be exercised
under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme at any time
within 10 years from the date of grant of the options
or may be determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion. The minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its discretion.

The exercise price per share in relation to an option
under the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme shall be a
price to be determined by the Board and shall be no
less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the option is offered to an eligible
participant/a qualifying grantee, which must be a
business day; or (b) the official average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of option to an eligible participant/a qualifying grantee.
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Pursuant to the 2002 Scheme and 2012 Scheme, share
options held by any eligible participant/qualifying
grantee will lapse automatically upon their termination
of employment but the Board is empowered to extend
the exercise period of the concerned share options at
its discretion. Relevant exercise period of share options
held by the eligible participant whose employment
terminated during the previous years was extended and
approved by the Board. Such change does not
constitute modification of the 2002 Scheme.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

Since the adoption of the 2012 Scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or
outstanding thereunder until it expired on 28 May 2022.
No new share option scheme has been adopted after
the expiration of the 2012 Scheme.

The Company’s substantial shareholder with significant
influence is Shougang HK, which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the Beijing
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission. Shougang Group Co., Ltd., together with
its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) other
than the Group, will hereinafter be referred to as the
“Shougang Group”. Accordingly, the Group is
significantly influenced by Shougang Group, which is
part of a larger group of companies ultimately controlled
by the PRC government.

Apart from the transactions with Shougang Group, the
Group also conducts businesses with other PRC
government-related entities in the ordinary course of
business.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—BLFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Consultancy fees paid and ExXfTREMNEREZ

payables 2,760 2,760
Settlement of convertible bonds (&~ A] #2 A% (S % 128,520 5,504
Conversion of convertible bonds ¥ A] #j% (& %5 - 24,000
Loans repayment BEEER - 22,390
Interest expenses on loans BERZFEZH - 1,049

Amount placed with Shougang R & H&EBEMEHRA AT
Group Finance Co. Ltd. EZ®H 17,104 -

As at 31 December 2023, amount due to
Shougang Group was approximately
HK$2,530,000 (2022: HK$2,531,000). The
balance was interest-free, unsecured,
repayable on demand, and denominated in
HKS.

The Group has entered into various
transactions, including sales to, purchases
from and other operating expenses paid to
other PRC government-related entities. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company,
these transactions are considered as
individually insignificant to the operation of
the Group during the reporting period.
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In addition, the Group has entered into
various banking transactions, including
deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks
and financial institutions which are state-
controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Royalty expenses B2HEH 3,882 2,177

As at 31 December 2023, amount due to a
shareholder was approximately HK$944,000
(2022: HK$1,345,000). The balance was
interest-free, unsecured, repayable on
demand, and denominated in RMB.

N—_E_=F+-_HA=+—
H #&X—UBRRZEEHR
E#944,000c( — = —4F:
75 #51,345,0007T ) i & 5
RECBER RBANEER
AR BEAL -
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The key management of the Group comprises
all executive directors of the Company, details
of their emoluments are disclosed in Notes
10 and 37, and share-based payment
transactions are disclosed in Note 34,
respectively. The emoluments of the directors
of the Company are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company
having regard to individual’s performance, the
Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market condition.
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As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E2=-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG NG 2 1,811,636 1,852,405
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables T8/ 5% H h fE K 80 349
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE YA Bf /B A =) 3R I 429,062 353,777
Bank balances and cash RITEFTRRE 11,321 3,907
Total current assets REBEEMRE 440,463 358,033
Total assets EEHATE 2,252,099 2,210,438
Equity and liabilities ExkasE
Equity attributable to owners BERADAEE AR
of the company
Share capital g A 1,215,798 1,215,798
Reserves E 590,382 641,113
Total equity A 1,806,180 1,856,911
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As at 31 December

R+t=—BA=+—8H
2023 2022
—_B-= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals HEMNRRIERER 2,926 7,869
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 643 =
Bank borrowing RITE 442,350 213,584

Financial liability at fair value BEAVTEFABRZEHAE
through profit or loss - 132,074
Total current liabilities REBEEEHE 445,919 353,527
Total equity and liabilities EEREERASE 2,252,099 2,210,438
The statement of financial position of the Company AR BERARKERZE_MHFE=A

was approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March

2024 and was signed on its behalf:

RE

TNAREEZSHE YHUTEERS

Su Fanrong
NN
Director

£

Yang Junlin
H&RM
Director

EE

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
arE MRS R

Capital Translation Retained
reserve reserve profits Total
BAGfE ERfRE REEF &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BT BT BT
At 1 January 2022 W-ZE-_%-F—H 23,990 151,223 447,338 622,551
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year AERFE - - 164,318 164,318
Other comprehensive loss Hin2EKE
Exchange difference arising on RS 25 SHmELN
translation into presentation currency EXEZ - (116,116) - (116,116)
Total comprehensive AEE2E(BR)/ WaLs
(loss)/income for the year - (116,116) 164,318 48,202
Share repurchase RiEE = = (69) (69)
Dividend paid ERRE - - (29,571) (29,571)
At 31 December 2022 RZZZZF+-RA=+-H 23,990 35,107 582,016 641,113
At 1 January 2023 WZ2-=%-A-H 23,990 35,107 582,016 641,113
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year REEESB - - (14,743) (14,743)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
Exchange difference arising on AR 25| EEmEELN
translation into presentation currency [E X Z% - (18,900) - (18,900)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREEBRESR
for the year - (18,900) (14,743) (33,643)
Share repurchase RipiEE - - (2,699) (2,699)
Dividend paid EHRE - - (14,389) (14,389)
At 31 December 2023 WZE-=6+-A=1+-H 23,990 16,207 550,185 590,382

Note: The capital reserve of the Company represents the benefit

of acquiring a shareholder’s loan from a previous shareholder
upon the acquisition of a subsidiary in previous years.

BYRE - AN R A2 B A T A BT 4R R U —
Bt B8 X BB - Al — L AT IR R AR B 3K

Al E
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The emoluments of each director of the Company
is set out as below:

BREZZHEHEIIMT

For the year ended 31 December 2023: BE-—ZE-_=%+=-A=+—H1It

FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES(FHRAAFLAFANELRER BECARELHE

Employer’s
contribution
toa
Allowances  retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total
BER  BIMER
ik it BUER  BAGEM ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Executive directors UnEs
Su Fanrong EAF - 2,641 37 18 2,696
Yang Juniin (Note a) it (Msta) - 2,401 74 18 2,493
Li Jinping 27 - - - - -
Ye Qian (Note b) £2 () - - - - -
Zhang Dan (Note c) R (k) - - - - -
Non-executive directors FUTES
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTEES
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Note d) ERR(Mid) 160 - - - 160
Lam Yiu Kin HER 240 - - - 240
Feng Yaoling R 240 - - - 240
Ho Suk Ying, Sabrina (Note e) gt (Hske) 80 - - - 80
870 5,042 11 36 6,059
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For the year ended 31 December 2022:
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B —"F+-_A=+—HIt

FE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAEEEZ(MRRARALAZANBARRE BHCHARLMNE

Employer's
contribution
toa
Allowances retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries in kind scheme Total
BER  ETMER
we §e EWEN  BNEEA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BB BB
Executive directors UnEs
Su Fanrong BLF = 2,641 37 18 2,696
Yang Junlin (Note a) it (Msta) - 1,200 3% 9 1,244
Li Jinping 2T - - - - -
Ye Qian (Note b) £2 (o) - - - - -
Non-executive directors FUfER
Adam Touhig Adam Touhig 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Yip Kin Man, Raymond (Note d) SRR (Mid) 240 - - - 240
Lam Yiu Kin HiEe 240 - - - 240
Feng Yaoling HR% 240 - - - 240
870 3,84 72 21 4,810

None of the directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office
as a director during the year (2022: Nil).

FA MECHNESNENESTH
iz i W ER S A B E R B 2 (= F

T )
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Note:

(@

Mr. Yang Junlin was appointed as an executive director
on 1 July 2022.

Mr. Ye Qian was resigned as an executive director on
1 August 2023.

Mr. Zhang Dan was appointed as an executive director
on 1 August 2023.

Mr. Yip Kin Man, Raymond was resigned as an
independent non-executive director on 1 September
2023

Ms. Ho Suk Ying, Sabrina was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 1 September
2023.

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year (2022: same).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Company does not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2022: same).
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As at 31 December 2023, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors (2022:
same).

Save as disclosed in Note 35, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2022: same).

This note provides a list of other potentially material
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the group consisting of Shougang Century Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries.
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Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for business combinations
by the Group (refer to Note 38.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate an
investment because of a loss of control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business,

o equity interests issued by the Group,

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement,
and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest
in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from
such remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker. The CODM,
who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Company’s managing
director that make strategic decisions.

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”).
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Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at the year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, within “finance costs, net”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the
date of that end of the reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(iiiy all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.
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Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

Goodwill that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the
date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

SHOUGANG CENTURY HOLDINGS LIMITED BE{ERHZELERR A A

AEESECREENBAN
TEFEER ¢

.« BEUAFEIEGIA
H {2 R 2 A BB

@) R

\

o BERABERAFE-

D BEERNEREEESR
BEMNEHEAMB S REN

BHEFK -

HEATES ROEET S
ELIQ &Eﬁ*gﬂﬁnaﬁﬁ/\TE/\ o

EEHERELEENEHE
ALK AEETEY
BERREETEDE

NERTAEEZEREER
RHBEER RHAR/ANEKHE
AmBEAHEERECRS -
HEREMEERERE ZHE
MEEm%ERE  AAKER
KA BRI D R M FAA
Cl R - & @& E AR -7

_7J
s ©



At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
all of its debt instruments at amortised cost.

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b)(ii) for further
details.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The
accounting for subsequent changes in fair value
depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged. The group designates
certain derivatives as either:

° hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value
hedges)

° hedges of a particular risk associated with
the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges), or

° hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation (net investment hedges).
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At the inception of the hedging, the group
documents the economic, relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, including
whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging
instruments are expected to offset changes in
the cash flows of hedges items. The group
documents its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised
in cash flow hedge reserve within equity.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit
or loss within other income or other gains,
net.

Where option contracts are used to hedge
forecast transactions, the group designates
only the intrinsic value of the options as the
hedging instrument.

Gains or losses relating to the effective
portion of the change in intrinsic value of
the options are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity. The changes
in the time value of the options that relate
to the hedged item (‘aligned time value’) are
recognised within other comprehensive
income in the costs of hedging reserve
within equity.
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When forward contracts are used to hedge
forecast transactions, the group generally
designates only the change in fair value of
the forward contract related to the spot
component as the hedging instrument.
Gains or losses relating to the effective
portion of the change in the spot component
of the forward contracts are recognised in
the cash flow hedge reserve within equity.
The change in the forward element of the
contract that relates to the hedged item
(‘aligned forward element’) is recognised
within other comprehensive income in the
costs of hedging reserve within equity. In
some cases, the entity may designate the
full change in fair value of the forward
contract (including forward points) as the
hedging instrument. In such cases, the gains
or losses relating to the effective portion of
the change in fair value of the entire forward
contract are recognised in the cash flow
hedge reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss, as follows:

° Where the hedged item subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset (such as inventory), both
the deferred hedging gains and losses
and the deferred time value of the
option contracts or deferred forward
points, if any, are included within the
initial cost of the asset. The deferred
amounts are ultimately recognised in
profit or loss as the hedged item affects
profit or loss (for example through cost
of sales).
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° The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of the interest rate swaps
hedging variable rate borrowings is
recognised in profit or loss within
finance cost at the same time as the
interest expense on the hedged
borrowings.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is
sold or terminated, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or
loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity
at that time remains in equity until the
forecast transaction occurs, resulting in the
recognition of a non-financial asset such as
inventory. When the forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging
that were reported in equity are immediately
reclassified to profit or loss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign
operations are accounted for similarly to
cash flow hedges.

Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge
is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves in
equity. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in profit or loss within other gains, net.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss when the foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold.
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Certain derivative instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair
value of any derivative instrument that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in profit or loss and
are included in other gains, net.

Raw materials, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the
latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of
weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Trade receivables, bills receivables and other
receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds
the trade receivables, bills receivables and other
receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables, bills payables and other payables
represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and bills and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss as “finance costs,
net”.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised
during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The Group has convertible bonds which are
classified entirely as liabilities because they were
issued in a currency other than the functional
currency of the Company. As the instrument
contains an embedded derivative, it has been
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition and as such the embedded
conversion feature is not separated. All transaction
costs related to financial instruments designated
as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the convertible
bonds are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to profit or loss.
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The income tax expense or credit for the period
is the tax payable or recoverable on the current
period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group
measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides
a better prediction of the resolution of the
uncertainty.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation
to investment property that is measured at
fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through
sale.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets
are not recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is
recognised profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.
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Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set
up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the
Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, in accordance with the
rules of the Pension Scheme.
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The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately
6% to 21% of the wages for the year of
those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses and profit-sharing
based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Up to 2022, the Group operates an equity-settled
share-based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for share options of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of options is recognised
as an expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and
nonmarket performance vesting conditions
(for example, remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
marketing performance and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital.
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e TR R

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary
shares; and

° by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated
with dilutive potential ordinary shares;
and

o the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before
the end of the reporting period but not distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Research expenditure and development
expenditure are recognised as an expense as
incurred if they do not meet the criteria: (a) it is
technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sales;
(b) management intends to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (c) there is an ability to
use or sell the intangible asset; (d) it can be
demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits; (e)
adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset are available; and (f) the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group
as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Properties

IS

Use

A%

AEER -_T_=F+_RA=+—HHEZR
BYRFBWOL

Group
interest
AKE&EEz Category of lease
Eiz HERLNER

1. House 5 - 18 and carport
District 5, Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC
PRI R™
SR B HRI5IE89%
ERIEERZE5R
5-185REEEAL

2. Workshop Nos. 16, 17 and
18 on 12th Floor
Honour Industrial Centre
No. 6 Sun Yip Street
Chai Wan, Hong Kong
BB RER FH65%
RHIERL128
16, 1718

3. Apartment Unit 4-14-5, Level 2
Block 4-8, District 4
Legend Garden Villas
No. 89 Capital Airport Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
PRC
FEIL R T
AR B HRI5IE8%
WFYEaEU FEAR

F4-8RE212
4-14-551 %

Residential
F=

Industrial

I%

Residential
F=E

100%  Medium-term lease

HEE R

100% Long-term lease
REAHERY

100%  Medium-term lease

SR
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In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the FHEARFREF BNESAMRE NV a@ZEE
following terms shall have the meaning set out below: IMRHE

“Articles”
[Z24A)

“Bekaert”

[ Bekaert |

“Bekaert Combustion”

[ Bekaert Combustion |

“Board”

=

“Board Diversity Policy”

[EEEKBZTILEREK]

“Capital Industrial Financial”

[ERER]

“Corporate Governance Code”
[fbEEa<TA]
“Companies Ordinance”

INGIESUN

“Company”/“Shougang Century

[ARR] / [EERE]

the Articles of Association of the Company
ZAYNGTFEE SRR e

NV Bekaert SA, a company incorporated under the laws of
Belgium, a substantial shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
of the Company

NV Bekaert SA @ RIELLFIEERFMKILZ RF] - BARAZE
EZRR (BEIFRAEKRIER)

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Bekaert, is a substantial shareholder (as defined
under the SFO) of the Company

Bekaert Combustion Technology B.V., Bekaertz 2 & B A 7] -
RARBZFZRE (REEFLRPEEIIEE)

the board of Directors

ARPERS

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Board Diversity Policy
adopted on 26 August 2013 and revised from time to time
thereafter
BENMBRREERARIZESENESTEBREE S —=F/\H
N BEAN R R T R{EE]

Capital Industrial Financial Services Group Limited (Stock
Code: 730), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange

EEREXTRRBEEBRAR LR (BRMHR : 730) @ NERET
Mz BRAA - BRI PAER EH

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules
FHRAIMSKCIFE 2 (EERTAD

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
B & EBFE622F N FHED

Shougang Century Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability and the Shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BERMBREEERAT  —RREFEEMK L ER A A REKSD
PREE AP EIR BT
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DEFINITIONS
e

“Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy”

[ 548 1 55 B EHUR |
“Conversion Price”
[HRR(E |
“Conversion Rights”
[ SRR |

“Conversion Share(s)”

[ 3RS |

“Convertible Bonds”
[ ES |

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Employment Ordinance”

[ & 1R {51

“EUR”

[T ]

“Fair Union”

[ Fair Union |

“Group”
[AEE ]

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Continuous Disclosure
Obligation Policy adopted on 28 March 2011 and revised from
time to time thereafter
BEMREERGRA TZ% ERBEARKE T ——F=A=+
N\ B ERANE R BE 12 N ER

HK$0.33 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustment)
R A %0.337T (7] TA%E)

the rights to convert the Convertible Bonds into Conversion
Shares

i RI HR AR F 8 R AR A £ B A R

the Share(s) to be issued by the Company upon the holder(s)
of the Convertible Bonds exercising its/their Conversion Rights
attached to the Convertible Bonds in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the instrument constituting the
Convertible Bonds

RATR AR E S B ARIBEX AR ARE S T AR GG
TR S IR 35 P R AR (B 25 I 75 ) B A 12 18 T 1 TR AR B

the 4% unsecured fixed coupon convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$150,000,000 due 2022
(extendable to 2024) issued by the Company to Jingxi Holdings
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement
RAARBRBERBHREAET TRAZERON AT LB R/ BEE
150,000,000t —F = —F2H (AIERE T _MF) M4%E
EHEE R B AR ES

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
EREDIESTE R IR I5RD

Euros, the lawful currency of the participating states within
the European Union

BT - BREERC B BAEE B

Fair Union Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Shougang HK

Fair Union Holdings Limited * B5#F& 822 &K B A A

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR R EKE AR
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“HKD/HK$”

(BTl /1%

“Hong Kong”

[&# ]

“Internal Control Manual”
[ABREEE RS

“JESC”

[F=ERT7 ]

“Jingxi Holdings”

it did

“Li Ka Shing Foundation”

E===

&

EeE ]

“Listing Rules”

[ EmARAI

“Model Code”

[ 1227 Rl

“Policy for Nomination of a Director of

the Company”

[TBRARESHR

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

B BREEER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P BB B RERIITEE

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s internal management
and control manual adopted in 1999 and revised from time to
time thereafter
BERMBRAEEERARZNEEEREEESI B — LA NFRMNT
REE 1B T ERHEET

Jiaxing Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

RERSHESKARAR  RETBVEZFEMKILZAE - BEAA
Az EEE2ENBE AR

Jingxi Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Fund

RAZERAERAR - —FRBEBEOTMHXINERAR - RE
MESHTEMNEB QT

Li Ka Shing Foundation Limited, a “charitable body” within
the meaning of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112
of the Laws of Hong Kong), a substantial shareholder (as
defined under the SFO) of the Company
FERESSBERAF - RBEBEIZ112ERBIROIFAREZ [
REEE|  RARFIZEBRR REZBFEBEHRIIER)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange
B 22 P g 2 R AR Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIMIERC3 ( LM ETAESTETIEF I ZNRLESTA])

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Policy for Nomination
of a Director of the Company adopted on 18 December 2018
and revised from time to time thereafter
BEMEREERARZREREARESFHENR_ZE—A\F+A+
J\B BRI R HE & T ER]
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(B %]

“PRC”
[ |

“RMB”
[ARK]

“SCHL Code”

[EEREST A

”

“SCHL Corporate Governance Code
[BERKEEERTA

“SFO”
[ &5 RS A

“Share(s)”
[ A A7

“Shareholder(s)”
[ ]

“Shougang Finance”
[ & 8 B 755
“Shougang Fund”

[EfES ]

percentage point(s)
ERa

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this
report shall exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

hEARKNE  $AREMS - TEESE - FEURPIRRITTR

=] AN =
EPNE=Y-

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE  RBEIEEE%

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors and Specified Individuals

adopted in 2004 and revised from time to time thereafter

BENMBRREERARIZEEAFEALTETESRRX ZNFETE
— RN R HER TR EE]

Shougang Century Holdings Limited’s Code on Corporate
Governance (revised from time to time)
BEMRREERARZGEEARTE (RREZFT)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)
BBEBIEST1BEFEF KR RG]

ordinary share(s) of the Company
RRFZ EBAR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SSESTEPN

Shougang Group Finance Co. Ltd., a company established in
the PRC with limited liability and is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Group

BENEEMBERAR - —HRPEEMRIHBEREERR - B
BHEENEENE AR

Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd., a company established in
the PRC with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Shougang Group
EREHESAERAR - —ERTBEKZNEREMERF > BEH
SENZEHBAR
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“Shougang Group”

EEEESEN

“Shougang HK”
[EEEE]

“Stock Exchange/HKEX”
[ B 32 P |

“Subscription”

RIBERE]

“Subscription Agreement
[ R %

“TESC”
[BEMERTT ]

“TESC Phase Il Project”
BN —Hi1E A |
“USD!!
E

“%!!
[% |

Shougang Group Co., Ltd. (a state-owned enterprise under
the direct supervision of the Beijing State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission), a controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company
BEMERERAR (—ERPBEKNZNEERE  JIUERBEEEE
EEERZEeEREE) RARA—BERKRR (RELTHR
AlE)

Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, a substantial
shareholder (as defined under the SFO) of the Company
BER (F8) ARARF  REBAMKILZAERAR  BEARQ
Al FBRE (REZEFLBEGRIEE)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
FEMERXFMER DA

the subscription for the Convertible Bonds by Jingxi Holdings
pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions of the
Subscription Agreement

TRPE AR AR IR SR 10 o O R AR XX BRI AR IR BB AT R IR (B 5

the subscription agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered
into between the Company and Jingxi Holdings in relation to
the Subscription

RARRAAZERRRBSEEIVNBEHR - N\F+A+N
H B R s

Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
under the laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

BENR A MEERBR AR - BREBEPEVEERTMKLZZ AR - BEAR
Al EEEEME QT

the construction project of production lines
HERERIAR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
of America

Xt XBRZEEER

per cent
Aok
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